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Started NIBL Capital Market
Limited after registering at
company registrar office

2013

Managed First IPO as a
co-issue manager (Mega
Bank Nepal Ltd.)

Launched First Closed Ended
Fund NIBL Samriddhi Fund 1

Managed Nepal's first
Insurance Sector FPO (SICL) Launched Second Closed Ended
Fund NIBL Pragati Fund

Opened 2 branches Lagankhel &
Pokhara and becomes first
Merchant Bank to open more than 1
lakh Demat Accounts

First Merchant Bank to go Merger
with Ace Capital Ltd and Received
Corporate advisory License

Launched Nepal's first Open Ended

Started_Branch Service from Fund NIBL Sahabhagita Fund
Putalisadak Branch and

Setting Up Corporate Advisory
Department as a revenue unit

Issued IPO of NIFRA the largest Issue size till date and
Launched Third Close Ended Fund NIBL Samriddhi Fund
11 and received Pre-Approval license for Specialized
Investment Fund (SIF)

Co-lIssue Manager of Nepal's First IPO
through Book Building Method and
Specialized Investment Fund (SIF)
license received under Specialized Launched first Private Equity
Investment Regulation Act Fund- NIBL Equity Partner
with size of 10 billion

Open ended fund reached Rs. 6
Billion, the largest in the industry.
PMS Assets Under Management
(AUM) reached Rs. 7 billion.
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[As Per Mutual Fund Regulations, 2067)
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Mutual Funds are subject to market risks. Please read all documents carefully.
NIME Sahabhagita Fund is Nepal's first open ended mutual fund after implementation of Mutual Fund Regulation, 2067
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Managing shares. Managing investments.

NIMB Ace Capital Ltd., a subsidiary of Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited, is a limited liability company that has been
registered at the Office of Company Registrar and received its certificate of operation on 2069/04/15. On 2074/10/28, after
successful merger, NIBL Capital and Ace Capital started joint operation as NIBL Ace Capital Ltd. In fiscal year 2080/81
NIMB Ace Capital, completed its first full year of operations post-merger with Mega Capital and while NIBL Ace Capital was
already an established force in the capital market, merger with Mega Capital Markets Ltd. further strengthened the reserve
of professional expertise, talent, a strong capital base and vigorous long-term vision.

The company recently completed its 12th year of operation and during this period, it has grown from a start-up investment
firm to one of the biggest players in the Nepalese capital market. Over the past twelve years, it has offered a wide range of
products and services related to capital markets to its clients efficiently through its experienced and energetic workforce.
Driven by a strong leader, dedicated workforce and its digital agenda, the company continues to maintain its image as key
player in the market.

(I\Ilutual Fund

NIMB Ace Capital, a licensed fund manager, currently oversees five investment schemes with a total Assets Under
Management (AUM) of Rs. 10 billion. This includes Rs. 4.98 billion allocated to close-ended funds and Rs. 4.91 billion
managed within open-ended funds.

~

Close Ended Fund: Open Ended Fund:
m NIBL Stable Fund ® NIBL Samriddhi Fund — Il ®m NIBL Sahabhagita Fund
® NIBL Growth Fund ® Mega Mutual Fund — |
- ° J
/n - I
Merchant Banking
NIMB Ace Capital is a licensed merchant banker from SEBON which offers the following services:
\= Issue & Sales Management m Securities Underwriting ® Share Registration Services )
(Portfolio Management Service )

NIMB Ace Capital has been offering comprehensive and risk weighted investment management, financial advisory and planning.
The Total Assets Under Management (AUM) was Rs. 7 billion.

A. NIBL Discretionary Portfolio: B. NIBL Non- Discretionary Portfolio

m NIBL Petal Plus Portfolio ® NIBL Lotus Portfolio C. NIBL Custodial Portfolio

{ NIBL Growth Plus Portfolio ® NIBL Lotus Secure Portfolio D. NIBL Customized Portfolio )
/- I

Depository Participant
NIMB Ace Capital serves as a trusted intermediary between the depository system (CDS and Clearing Ltd.) and its
clients, providing a secure, convenient, and fully digital solution for managing investments in shares and other securities,
\eliminating the need for paper-based records. )

~N

(¢ . .

Corporate Advisory Service
The advisory team at NIMB Ace Capital is committed to assisting clients in growing their businesses and strengthening
their financial position by providing a range of specialized advisory services, including:

B Business Plan B Market Assessment and Feasibility ® Loan Syndication & Debt Raising
\l Financial Restructuring ® Valuation and Equity Raising B Research/Customized Services B Escrow Agency )

/Specialized Investment Fund (SIF) )
NIMB Ace Capital obtained fund manager’s license under Specialized Investment Fund, Regulation 2019 from SEBON
in fiscal year 2079/80 which has been a major milestone in our journey to create a robust Alternative Investment
Vehicle. We received approval for our first Private Equity fund, NIBL Equity Partners (referred to as ‘The Fund’
hereafter), in fiscal year 2080/81. The Fund successfully raised a total amount of Rs. 1.05 billion. By the end of the
fiscal year 2080/81, the fund has made investments in a total of 3 investee companies operating in Agri-manufacturing/
processing (2), and manufacturing (1) sector.

Investee company Sector Brief about the Company
. . . Agri- Dairy A dairy company specializing in premium Greek yogurts along with traditional dairy

Delish Dairies Pvt. Limited Processing products and recently introduced flavored milk products.

: . Established on October 9, 2015, Fikkal Tea & Coffee Pvt. Ltd. is a leading coffee
Fikkal Tea and Coffee Pvt. Ltd Agri- Coffee Farm farm in Goddak, Illam, Nepal

Established in 2005, the yarn manufacturer based in Kamahariya, Rupandehi,
Jagdamba Spinning Mills Limited Manufacturing is part of the Saurabh Group, led by Mr. Bishnu Prasad Neupane specializing in
\_ fibre-based yarns like polyester, acrylic, and blended yarns. )
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NIMB ACE

CAPITAL LIMITED

A

VISION

Toremain the leading One Stop
Financial Solutions Shop and
grow our business to international
standards with passion and
integrity while building outstanding
value for all our stakeholders.

CORE VALUES

At NIMB Ace Capital, achieving
our goal is consistently focused by
keeping in mind our
core values of
— Client Value Creation
— Stewardship
— Integrity
— Innovation

.............................
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MISSION

NIMB Ace Capital is relentlessly
driven by entrepreneurial zeal to
invest in ideas that empower all
our stakeholders. We engage
with our clients, understand
their needs and create winning
strategies for them with our
expertise and sharp business
acumen.

&
People and Culture

At NIMB Ace Capital, our relentless
efforts focus on promoting and
sustaining a multidisciplinary and
team-driven work culture, which we
believe is critical in meeting the
unique needs of our clients and the
various business segments in which
they operate. We focus on an
all-rounder approach where we are
devoted to enhancing our
employees’ career.




ACHIEVEMENTS AND MILESTONES

No. 1 Position
in the Industry

- 20% market share
- AUM of 10 billion
- 5 close ended schemes

Managing shares. Managing investments.

No. 1 Position
in the Industry

- 16% market share
- 57 share registrar
- 4 million
shareholders
- 10 Debenture

- 1 open ended schene
- 98000 SIP with 48%

market share.

No. 1 Position
in the Industry
- 32%
market share
- 7 billion
Assets Under
Management
(AUM)

Mutual
Fund

Portfolio
Management

Specialized
Investment Fund

Largest Fund
Approved by
SEBON

- 10 billion
approved fund

- Market share
30%

Trustees

No. 1 Position
in the Industry

- 15% market share
- 150 public issues
- Ralsed 1 trillion
capital

Issues and Sales Registrar
Management To Shares
Depository Corporate
Participant Advisory Service

Growing
Business

- Serving over
95 companies.

3rd Highest
DP Client

- Above 528000
Demat accounts

-8.5%
market share
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NMB M KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Balance Sheet Figures Total Assets
Net Worth (NRs. In Millions) (NRs in Millions)

2,817

733 755
490 1,976 1,862
457
369
361 I I I 1,211 1,305 1,251
FY FY FY FY FY FY

FY FY FY FY FY FY
75/76 76/77 77/78 78/79 79/80 80/81 75/76 76/77 T77/78 78/79 79/80 80/81

Liquidity Ratio
(Current ratio)
1.41

;. s 1.45
I I 1.16 I 1.22 I

FY 75/76 FY 76/77 FY 77/78 FY 78/79 FY 79/80 FY 80/81

Cash flow from operating activities Cash flow from investment activities
(NRs. in Millions) (NRs. In Millions)
723.66
I 93.26 183.74
-759.58 As.91 1457
-1523.39

-45.79

-55.93

FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY

75/76 76/77 77/78 78/79 79/80 80/81 75/76 76/77 77/78 78/79 79/80 80/81

‘ N A 12" Annual Report 2023/2024

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn




Managing shares. Managing investments.

NMBACE  KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Earnings Ratio

Earnings per share (EPS) Dividend Ratio
26% 25% 25%
29.8
23 03 23.46
17.29 I
FY FY FY FY FY FY FY

75/76 76/77 77/78 78/79 79/80 80/81 75/76 76/77 T77/78 78/79 79/80 80/81

Profitability Ratio

Return on Equity (RoE) Net profit margin

62%
32% 49% 51% 52% 48%
42%

21%
17.23%17.17% ° 19%

1l

FY FY FY FY FY FY
75/76 76/77 77/78 78/79 79/80 80/81 75/76 76/77 77/78 78/79 79/80 80/81

Operating Profit margin

89%
88%
87%
84%
83% 83%
FY FY FY FY FY FY

75/76 76/77 77/78 78/79 79/80 80/81
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Dear Valued Shareholders

At NIMB Ace Capital, we are thrilled to celebrate 12
years of excellence and outstanding achievements in
the Nepalese capital market. What started as a modest
investment firm has evolved into one of the leading players
in the industry. Our consistent success is a reflection of our
sound business strategy, dependable services, and strong
reputation. Over the past decade, the capital market has
undergone significant transformation through automation
and digitalization, revolutionizing the way businesses
operate. Our highly skilled team has adeptly navigated these
changes, consistently setting us apart from the competition.
We see every challenge as an opportunity and embrace
this mindset in our daily operations. By developing well-
thought-out strategies, we have continuously enhanced
our product offerings and solidified our competitive edge
while staying committed to meeting our clients' needs.

Achievements

With determination and resilience, we continue to grow
and support our clients by delivering exceptional results
in an ever-changing economic landscape. To date, we
have successfully opened over 536,000 DEMAT accounts
and serve as share registrar for more than 57 companies,
catering to a vast network of over 4.1 million shareholders.
In the fiscal year 2080/81, our Issue Management and RTS/
RTA teams efficiently handled 11 Initial Public Offerings,
1 Debenture Issue, and 2 Rights Issues, demonstrating
our commitment to excellence. Our newly enhanced
Portfolio Management team is dedicated to providing
personalized services tailored to meet the unique needs
of our valued clients. To further strengthen our offerings,
we have established a dedicated call center. These
services encompass key areas such as Venture Capital,
Private Equity, Business Planning, Market Assessment and
Feasibility Studies, Escrow Agency, Loan Syndication and
Debt Raising, Financial Restructuring, Equity Raising, and
Research/Customized Solutions, ensuring comprehensive
support for our business partners. During this fiscal year,
we have provided service of Loan Facilitation to 2 clients,
Company’s Valuation Reports to 30+ companies, provided
corporate advisory services for new equity collection to 18
companies and along with this we are providing underwriting
services to issuing companies as well under corporate
advisory service. Likewise, we are currently operating four
mutual fund schemes under NIBL Mutual Fund and one
mutual fund scheme under Mega Mutual Fund with a total

‘ NIMB ACE
CAPITAL LIMITED
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CEO Message

corpus amount of Rs. 9.89 billion with Close Ended Mutual
Fund Schemes amounting to Rs. 4.91 billion and Open-
Ended Mutual Fund Scheme amounting Rs. 4.98 billion.
NIBL Sahabhagita Fund, the first Open-Ended Mutual Fund
Scheme in Nepalese Capital Market under Mutual Fund
Regulation 2067, has received approval to increase its size
from NPR 4 billion to NPR 6 billion. Currently, the fund's size
stands at NPR 4.98 billion, reflecting a 25% year-on-year
growth compared to NPR 3.99 billion in the previous year
and with NAV of NRs. 10.56 per unit. Similarly, 32,183-unit
holders have enrolled under Systematic Investment Plan
(SIP) till Asadh end 2081.

Projections/Innovations

Equipped with the financial accomplishments of the
previous year, we are now preparing ourselves to provide
assistance to our customers with the upcoming IPOs, right
issues and additional RTS/RTA companies. Currently,
we are successfully operating 4 branches outside the
valley and 3 branches inside the valley. We recognize
the importance of providing a comprehensive, end-to-end
solution to address the diverse needs of the capital markets.
To achieve this, we have established a dedicated unit at IT
Plaza, designed to integrate banking, brokerage, merchant
banking, and investment banking activities under one roof.
This strategic initiative ensures seamless coordination
across these functions, enhancing efficiency and delivering
a unified experience for our clients and stakeholders.

As Nepal rapidly transitions into a digital era, our dedicated
team at NIMB Ace Capital has been actively working
on transformative technological projects to enhance
user experience and operational efficiency. We have
initiated a website and mobile app development project
in collaboration with KPMG India to digitally refresh our
presence in the market, ensuring a modern and customer-
centric interface.

Additionally, we are partnering with Business Intelligence
(Bl) consultants to streamline and improve internal
operations, enabling data-driven decision-making and
increased efficiency. Our integration with various payment
gateways has further simplified transactions, offering our
clients a seamless and user-friendly experience.

To strengthen our technological backbone, we have
partnered with a reputable software vendor to implement
system improvements across our operations, focusing



on scalability, security, and functionality. Furthermore, we
have launched a dedicated call center service, providing
personalized support to our valued customers, reinforcing
our commitment to delivering exceptional service at every
touchpoint.

Financial results for FY 2080/81

In the last fiscal year, NIMB Ace Capital successfully
acquired Mega Capital, marking a significant strategic
milestone. The current fiscal year represents the first
full financial year post-merger, showcasing a steady
and forward-looking financial performance. This stability
underscores the successful integration of operations and
highlights promising growth prospects for the future.

The financial performance of the company for the year
ending Ashad 2081 indicates significant growth. Revenue
from operations increased by approximately 63%, from
Rs. 183.64 million in the previous year to Rs. 300.04
million, reflecting improved business performance. Other
income also grew substantially, reaching Rs. 116.56 million
compared to Rs. 94.17 million in the prior year. Despite
a slight loss of Rs. 0.82 million on financial assets and
liabilities at FVTPL, total revenue surged by nearly 49% to
Rs. 415.77 million. Expenses increased proportionally, with
general and administrative expenses rising by 39% and
depreciation and amortization by over 42%, bringing total
expenses to Rs. 216.25 million. The company's income
before taxes nearly doubled to Rs. 199.52 million, and
after accounting for tax expenses, the profit for the year
stood at Rs. 140.06 million, a robust 72% increase from the
previous year's Rs. 81.25 million. This demonstrates strong
operational and financial growth.

The net worth of the company for the year ending Ashad
2081 is Rs. 755,267,862, compared to Rs. 732,704,334
in the previous year. In addition, the net worth per share
for the fiscal year 2080/81 is recorded at Rs. 160.7. This
represents a 3.08% increase in net worth from the previous

year. Furthermore, the dividend for FY 2080/81 has been
declared at 25%, adjusted for share performance. These
figures prove a good reflection of our financial health and
build a solid profile of our company to excel. With the
current level of growth and innovation within our company,
and the growing prospects of the market, we believe that
the future prospect of our company remains in a dominant
position.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

As part of our Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
initiatives, we actively engaged in promoting financial literacy
and community development during the year. On Global
Money Week 2024, we organized an investor awareness
program at Nepal Rastriya Ma. Vi., Arghakhanchi, incurring
an expense of Rs. 26,135. Additionally, we collaborated with
the Securities Board of Nepal (SEBON) to conduct various
province-level investment awareness programs, furthering
our commitment to enhancing financial knowledge across
the country. Furthermore, we supported the Merchant
Bankers Association of Nepal (MBAN) by sponsoring their
annual sporting event, contributing Rs. 110,000. In total, our
CSR expenditure amounted to Rs. 136,135, reflecting our
dedication to fostering financial education and community
engagement.

In a nutshell, | would like to thank all the members of
the board and regulators for their valuable support and
guidance. Likewise, | am also grateful to our customers and
stakeholders for their ample trust and support. Similarly, |
express my gratitude to all the employees for their hard
work and dedication towards the company.

Shivanth B. Pandé
Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

.....................................................................................................................

Mr. Sachin Tibrewal
Chairman

# Chartered Accountant from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
# Currently CFO at Nepal Investment Bank Ltd

# Served as Assistant Manager for Deloitte Haskins & Sells, UK

# More than 20 years of experience in accounts, finance, taxation and audit

.....................................................................................................................

.....................................................................................................................

Mrs. Srijana Pandey
Director

# Head of Corporate Banking at Nepal Investment Bank Ltd.

# MBA in Marketing and Finance

# More than 23 years of experience in the field of credit management, project
processing, external liaison, policy and project evaluation

.....................................................................................................................

.....................................................................................................................

Mr. Rabindra Bhattrai
Independent Director

# Director of BIM Programme at Shanker Dev Campus

# Faculty member at ShankerDev Campus

# MBA from Tribhuwan University

# Former Director at Sagarmatha Merchant Banking and Finance Ltd.

.....................................................................................................................

.....................................................................................................................

Mr. Ananda Kumar Bhattarai
Independent Director

# Retired under secretary, Government of Nepal

# Experience of more than 34 years in various capacities in various Ministries and
Departments including Ministry of Finance

# Served as a resource person for stock market investor awareness programme
organized by different institution

# MBA from Tribhuwan University

.....................................................................................................................
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....................................................................................................................

Mr. Shivanth B. Pandée
Chief Executive Officer

# Master's degree in financial economics from the University of St. Andrews, Scotland, UK

#® Over 21 years of experience in the field of finance.

#® Areas of expertise include Economic Research and Financial Analysis, Mobile Banking,
SME Finance, Private Equity, and Venture Capital

....................................................................................................................

Mr. Suvash Thapa
Deputy Chief Executive Officer - SIF

# Holds Master's of Science, Accounting and Finance, from University of Bath, Bath, UK

# Holds over 16 years of experience specializing in strategy, partnerships, economic
and financial analysis, and program and operations management working with both
public/development and private sectors to secure desired results through innovative
solutions, including 7 years at Beed Management Private Limited where he served
as a Management Consultant and Financial Advisor in various sectors, as Head of
Department for Business and Trade at British Embassy Kathmandu and as Multi-Sector
Business Conglomerate in New Business Development Unit at Chaudhary Group and
as General Manager at Moses Private Limited — Strategic Partner at Frost & Sullivan
(Research & Consulting Services) and as CEO of Silver Lining Private Limited ( Data
Center and Cloud Services)

....................................................................................................................

Mr. Sachindra Dhungana
General Manager

# Chartered Accountant from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN)

# Holds Bachelor’s Degree and Diploma in IFRS from ACCA

# Holds over 17 years of experience specializing in the field of Investment Banking,
Merchant Banking, Wealth Management, Investment, Auditing, Accounting,
Consultancy, Due Diligence Audit including 7 years of experience in HLB P.L. Shrestha
& Co. and served as Manager- Assurance & Audit at S.R. Pandey & Chartered
Accountants for 3 years and over 10 years of experience in Nepalese Capital Markets
in Merchant Banking and Investment Banking, where he served as Chief Operating
Officer at Nabil Investment Banking Ltd for over 2.5 years
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....................................................................................................................

Mr. Shulav Shrestha
Assistant General Manager

# Over 14 years of experience in accounts, finance, investments and auditing in Nepal.

# More than 7 years expertise in the capital market sector.

# Acting CEO of NIMB Stock Markets Limited (Broker 75), showcasing exceptional
leadership capabilities and acting CEO of Mega Capital Markets Limitied (MCML),
leading its successful merger with NIBL Ace Capital Limited.

# Former CIO at MCML and Company Secretary.

# Visiting faculty at KUOSM, delivering investment-related courses for MBA and EMBA
students.

....................................................................................................................

Mr. Bishal Raj Paudyal
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

# Chartered Accountant (ICAI, India) and Member of ICAN (Nepal) with a strong foundation
in financial expertise and compliance.

# Former Audit Manager at SR Pandey & Co, Nepal, specializing in auditing for banks and
financial institutions.

# 3 years at an accounting outsourcing company in India, gaining proficiency in MYOB,
Australian accounting, and UK accounting laws.

# 3 years of professional experience in multinational companies in Thailand, focusing
on business case development, project management, data analytics, and operations
planning.

# Consulting CFO for 1 year at Myra ERP and CRM Head for 1 year at Daraz, driving
strategic financial and customer relationship solutions.

# Experienced lecturer at top-tier colleges in Nepal with a deep interest in strategy, financial
operations, and nurturing future professionals.

t‘f!fggﬂ‘i"t ....................................................................................................................
14 fe Ms. Rekha Pant

H u E. Head of RTS/RTA Department (Deputed from NIMB)
: 3

# MA in Economics
# Holds more than 21 years of experience in banking and finance industry.

....................................................................................................................

Ms. Shristy Shah
Deputy Head of Investment

# MBA degree from Pokhara University (PU), Head-Portfolio Management Service
Department

#® Has more than 8 years of experience as Portfolio Associate / Operation / HR & Admin at
Nabil Investment Banking Ltd and has been working for more than 8 years at NIBL Ace
Capital as Head of Portfolio Management Service Department.
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....................................................................................................................

Mr. Giriraj Pokharel
Head of Business Relationship

# Master's degree from TU
Holds over 8 years of experience with in Neplease Capital Market in Marketing
development

# Empowering businesses with strategic marketing solutions that drive growth, engagement
and lasting success

....................................................................................................................

Ms. Niva Pradhan
Head of HR and Administration

# Graduate of KSOU, Banglore, India in Human Resource Management
# Has more than 7 years of exprience in HR management, recruitment and office operations
# Passionate about exploring offbeat destinations and cooking

....................................................................................................................

Ms. Sunita Maharjan
Head of Depository Participant

#® Hold Masters’ degree from Tribhuvan University (TU)
Hold over 13 years of experience in Nepalese capital market in merchant banking industry
# In-depth knowledge of overall functions of merchant banking

....................................................................................................................

Ms. Ibika Adhikari
Head of Accounts

# Master's degree in business studies and semi- qualified Chartered Accountant from the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal.

#® Holds over 7 years of experience with 4 years in auditing, taxation, advisory and 3
years in the Nepalese Capital Market with prior roles as Accounts, Admin and Advisory
InCharge at Mega Capital Markets Ltd.

....................................................................................................................

Mr. Nischal Gautam
Head of Corporate Advisory

# ACCA member with over 4 years of professional experience across diverse fields.
# Expertise includes auditing, accounting, taxation, advisory, and valuation.
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MARKET LEADER IN WEALTH MANAGEMENT!
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NIMB Ace Capital's Portfolio Management Services (PMS)
have successfully managed funds exceeding Rs. 7 billion,
making us the largest Assets Under Management (AUM) in the
industry. Thank you for your unwavering trust and support!

NIMB ACE CAPITAL FAMILY

+977-01-4525280, +977-01-4005080 I M B A E NIM B
info@nimbacecapital.com N C Wholly owned
CAPITAL LIMITED uisitiary o S s 8
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ek oraToRtereh g T T frstent uTftfies dem fgfchent o1d dre |

@) fauw geaTEEs

?) I wruIehT framTaetier frm 22(2) T TME T TEvash STedary grafy |

R) 3T A Roco/ 0t UT FHEUHIRT HEATTA ATHIISTH TG =i @ THUhT STFEM /3 ThE qTd T |
) fafaer

FIHT A
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St DTFAT BIRTT

AT geareres giffq,
TIEUATS wE Fifuee fafiees
AT, FHISHTST |
fomrar: gfafafer frger T A )
TR,
P e T /ST E, TETT e, T s q/ gt
........................ o I FHEhT STEReHTenRT Bfaerder fafd 2059 @ diw oy T IRaTCERT faT g I HEuTeRT
TR ST AURUTETHT TR 3Ufed 9§ Serthel qeT ol devmt g7 T YUhiel 3t W 9T T der
TAGTT THRT @ATT e eeeeeeeeeeaeeeann I e FAT/TITHE, o
TET T e AT T o F FIIRT T 2T oo
AT T, e TS B/ ETHT gfafafer e T g g/ |
fraes,
TEIGT & e e
K 1 L I
BT & et e
B BETT & ettt
TR GTAT Tt
FIIT THTOT T T 2t
TR T e é’f\@ .................... q
fufa

NIMB ACE

CAPITAL LIMITED

SRITIART AT & e TRTTHTOT & e
Wﬂ?ﬁ: .......................... ST EGAT © e,

STET STfSeh ATETRUT TTHT SUTEI g ST TRUehT Ja9T-u |

aoy

2. SRYHT Tthel Wt HIBee W |
2. TVTeRETHT JAT T AT TSI T 7T A & |

FIHT A
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NIMB AC

Managing shares. Managing investments.

918 SIfficd ATENRT JeST AT AAAD! ThaIC SEATID! Ufddca

HTELUTT FATYAT AEAHTET,

TR tE Fnfuee fafadeamt el arfier @eRer T Sufeud qaeTs dearetess afufasr ahere T grfde s
T 3TfvyaTed ey |

qUTSEEh! TN, FGHTT TS STHSIEIE ST U STH I8 FFIHIcl ThadIqas aTal ay qu T "uTeieh! Ao qur
TRHIE STohe SHEETEHT ST YHehT Woa ATHT il &Rl TaEdi T q%d U § | UTd s Sreare faaras
Faarft (Adve sot) &I ToET MeReE qur fast veres, fades gemfaeal, SRT TTREH, T STawTa aur
HEATTT THST HaTehT AT AfEsh THT RISkl AT saaeemes qur feurfsredt T e aewrmhr &/ ™ srgafaus
U TRERT T8 OIS 3.9, oco/oct AT fafsreierd T &M (Private Equity Fund) frammaet Roou amifemy
W@'WWEWW(NIBL Equity Paﬂners)wmwﬁmmﬂfﬂ%ﬁﬁl AT TegedT
T JETTET a9eT 3 U dTferd YT HHdiee Hithd el oy qol TofHan daree 3ueied g & w=ar &t
Tesheteh! favard grfdet 7T uideg @ol & |

T, W IR TEIMTEEE HUE IH HIOHI Ao Afhw qUT ST sl uiguaet Wed e gHTE St
JT.F.R0¢0/ 0¢? I HATFITETRT TITET TAT AT JroiTee THd Tog |

I Yol 2063 DY GUBT A0 BT JUGHI 8 GBI AT

q. o st FRERE HaEaE

qefferr IHAT IPR TSR IAR TSI §a Ufoall Suehl FTFATTHT TR & MY | Roco TR HHGHT Ro’6.0% Tashl
T EHTE 02 ITAR HETTHT %0, %2 Wohl § | AT, R0<2 IR THGHT FIdivs aoiit Yo &, 34 @6
W 3T R B U T 1.9, T AT ST TR GSHTT &, 30 Tl <3 el bl T |

T STATIHT AU Tk THTa-oTT &. <% e <2 IS SUEeh! ATIRIT IR &.22 3 t4 FUS SETh ST
TR T &3 FUS SeEhT THASAT T FA £.230 36 ¥ FUS SR I s gefihd TUaHT & | &
Jurer RIS IS £.90 W o) FUS TS TTIRUT I &.© 36 <4 HUS s{alh! ghve I, &.€ e 3
FAUE TR TET=X T &% 376 o HIS TS FFIA FUE TRT Feof &% e 2R FUS Tk Trdro=reesh!
qresTies TeRTITeRT AT STufa feuent & |

qefteqT AT ATfEs T I fwTee, R0y A G¥Th diedl GATHET AISHT “TTTS ST TEvTHTaT HUe”
F AR & 3 IEAR Jhg T & ¥ 37d AHRREFHhI AT 7w Tehmere wiegfa g TiRafeunl T 3%
FITHT & 2 ITeeh] MR 9T T & & 76 TAA fodivs i amey f1aaT U1 WUh! & | I9 FFETe Uy e
ndee i STrdidenT HaTeealTs o U HesT a3 ToTd SSaeHT STed 3Ucishl N3 SATRTHITE SHISHTSIT gl
FTaT afed Jaefiaes, IRvaR, THE qUT U ATfet TG, Jead, STest T feRIeRaT Weh! e
AT T3 FHEATS Fatar f68 MUl & | e feprem ot fasht yeer twdma fafy=r sraeftgeent S qur
feaoerewa! arasiie sk (SMSfret) T fashl yerer Tramelt el Trg= T, T ST ReRT &UHT i TR
Frgent dea (fedser afed) Ha W T Thel WUHT B; TAHT STTEITI HaT SF-dd TTesh &A1 2eko Tl
WWW(ASS&S Under Management, AUM) &I& &.% I S S Th B |

GEATTT THIT HaT 3T=TTd [T &rsTe%HT TSt 4T YeT e TSR 3 |

faferera @t sy eerenr fafam JuTer frdios I€aTe T STaTIeRaRT EqHT R THeAT ATHT STgufd o= ure
T TAATSTaUe sfeedt A (NIBL Equity Partners) ATHeRT fafsriepd @THT 1 (Private Equity Fund) SEHT gt
T Gemte et St | ar fafriena et S frammaedt aufsmeant afad ermHishdieses sivenr RS fohr
TR 3% Taaht aad uTed R hivenT faren e aiferd isTeenT T T S JHd 718 ITTHT B |
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AT 98T TEET STl I AV T ek fafaeeeRl Trgul SIRET SEieEEE SEd A6 HEHIRT THd TR
YT HRATATEEATE qAT IFATATST YT I1E THAT GTAT GieT Tk sTaT THears Tterr Aaefi|r i 3%, 0¥ ¢ T4t
TeauTel @TaT Wit et @I H&AT U, ¢, 350 TS Tl HUH 3 |

anifeleh e Roco/0ct AT HEAHTT TehT 3TTRIH Wifd (NFRS 3FTER) T @fered faawor fregam @ & |

fa faawor R05q ATHE HAT Roz0 WG AETA

2. Wﬁﬁﬁ ¥\90 000 000, 00 ¥\90 000 000,00
2. SUSIEIEED 35Y,389,5%3.00 RER,90%,33%.00
3 T Tt 4,908 943,335.00 ,2¥3,303,5%R.00
¥ FA TSAT AAT A ,5%R,%¥R0,900.00 ,294,205,33%.00
« e graia ga 993,%¥90,%3R.00 5%,9199,30%.00
% TG qUT sk HisaTd 9%%,393,59%.00 935,549499,00
©. Ui 1,3¥0,934 40%.00 4,45%,23%,%4%9.00
<. T gEafd R¥%,4%0,%%%.00 9%4,243,3¥%.00
Q. FA TEAT ,5%R,¥R0,900.00 9,2\9¢,%05,33%.00
%0, HA AT ¥9Y,993 534,00 95 850,5%9.00
22. FAT @ 29%,34%,05%.00 9%3,93¥,99%.00
9R. G AT HATHRT 9RR,49%,4%0.00 99%,5%%,93%.00
B. ATAHT TTEAT Y], ¥4%,0%.00 I,]]4R0.00
9%. g /TR (A1) 9¥0,0%3,4%9.00 59,34 %,R43.00
Q. IR He&aT ¥,900,000,00 ¥ 800 000,00
9. gt T ST .50 99.3%
q9. ATaY (T W) T 9%0.90 UYL.5R

R qan fosht gary &ar -

I TRl uH Fnfuee fafaeger oTffe av Roco/ 0cg AT T STTHNERT FFd-eteh! ATEMNUT ST TEETERUHT
STRY T #ff Sore e areare S UTe T Ae STER R qoT fasht Yeaent w1 §va=1 T S |

&) HEWAH FEREH — IPO : 3T.d.R0¢0/0cg T FHel ¥ FeT AT I qAT ¢ FT AT ST IS FTSTTehT

Tl ST TT=RIS G701 TR |

fa &  Fodem/ Femfna faaeser am fAerEe g
9. fTofesT Aew s=an=g ot far.  |TamoT SRR
. AR faey we e fafids  |TEmeT SRR

frerem @ (3) Fftror
R,%%,¥0,00 000/~
R,%R,03,¥3R¥¥.¥0/ -

gieTer i ot fafaes HTETOT TR 2%,00,00,000/ -
¥, wdrad faie fafrs AT R R,R%,2%,%0,000/ e
a fosht yerreeh
W,  TASAEIGUS Lad HUE 5 : 92,30,000,000/ -

@) LR fTA™ - Auction of Shares

T I FHIET STATGHT SHAT W SAfh qAT HFITeEeRl AT {eehl HETTeh YR O9Eeh! IR faam feshiehr
wTeEHETe Tkt T e ShedTgde SFT TR S |

M AT JATfT & Fraelt @t - A Roco /02 T FHAl W FT FHFOHIHT T Teard deT §ra=
T B |
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IR THT
HTETOT I
HTETOT ST
HTEIROT IR
HTEROT IR
HTETOT IR

JATART T THA (T)  HiRad
%3,00,00,2%0/~

],£0,00 000/ -

R,2%,1%,000/ -
?,0%,02 23 0%%.R%/ -

2,04,%%,8% Roo/-

") YR AT gt fawut ¢ 3.F.R0c0 /00t I I TEHT FHT W T FHIHIATS qoT fedsen

fa & R am
9.  Temeram femm fafee
2. GriET EregTer fafee
3. ydH feuee fa.
¥, 9 fauee guefest fafmes
W,  STerT feew faftads
IR TR 8T Y8 718 3T B |
fa. & FruerRr AW
q YT EHIE AT S T
£ Toret g vt T
3 TRETST BIEAT fet.
¥ favy fasm S far.
Y Aree 2few Ui far.
% T3~ ST AuTet fef.
© g BIEGIIER fal.
s  Toor agfe faxfrr e fa.
¢ iy fgew S fa.
o feevadt rgTar St fa.
9 T ST I fatres
R it faem % fafaes
B S g g fafies
¢ fafesa Ag® s==R T T
W U e R &, T
% 9 g IR T
qo  qftea iy HEE fa.
& YN ARSI o deer fa.
% TSfe wEA fol.
R0 e 39 fd.
¥ HITAT SueTH S o
R AR gy fa.
R} VIR GHT SHATH S feT.
¥ U R &, T
W T ST ST fo.
¥ AR iRy we i fataee
e T gTger S far
e T Soue agfed feaxftr e fa.
% Jurer fafsaer fafear fafaes
AT FGEATI TFawefl &ar :

fa =

30
B3
R
EE
3%
ELS
3%
39
3z
EN
¥ 0
¥q
¥R
¥3
XY
¥Y
¥%
¥
Yo
Y%
Yo
29
4R
43
'Y
44
1%
PLC

TR AH

TASATSIITSA eI HUS
TSI agfg HUg—R

TS fuet TEvTiTdT HUe

TS T 0Ty HUS

T RIFT HUS ¢

Tt BIgT faifee
At gred fafaee

F1SHUST Afgaher shetel

Torafe ATEShITETR facfter g far.
gerent aregfar farfter e fa.
TIUET EEg e fafee

gatq farve fa.

20.% % U SHEHUE fgdm= R0eR
20,34 % HY S FOTTH, j0¢3

2R % TStae BIEA fa. feama Roc3
.4 % YT FHRHUE b FUTI, 0%
2.4 % TPt e fet. feamam Rock
R 9 wREft fegmaw Rocy

R % AT SueTTH-e d Tt 0c
¥ % BT FOTTH - © T

¥ % BT FOTTT - < T

¥ % Y o - § v

¢. o4 % TTREAT fede, Roek

’ % S farehrr S dUE, Roc

BT 39T O R0c4/0cs

20.30% LIASE ARE deh HUT fAtHeS oo
20.% U FHEHUE fgdm=l Ro%0

TG AT IHT T FFEATIH TR (Assets Under Management, AMC) R9.0% fasTder é!'fe_&’ 0 T 8.8 39 ¢
FE T T ITEh HEAT 2c4o WH & | It AMC T L. & 3Td 3 FUS Teehl T ATk HEAT 2,%%¢ Forll |

e g -

I 1T U SHRHVE WA & et T AUl I HIATees e I HFO-h! Shald wried died ¢ aer
TATIEE AT AN T Mobile App &1 THEIT Teer Trareft AT 3uctesr TS sgawT faarg awter sraefiar feausr
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QAT ©.¢ gfavrd ghg W HRE 3% 0%¥¢ T WIAT Wil HT TIAT HLAT U, R¢,3¥0 TART T JUH F | T
AT.T. I TequTel @rar §E&A ¥ 23,3 o |

WA WUE

T TS RIT3Tel HUE ST=Ideh! TASTISIUS TRWTHTAT hUE, TATTEIOU &ad HUE, TS aUe THig HUg—1
T TASATSUG AT U qUT W7 RIFRTeT HUE ST=hiidehl BT RIG3Te HUS—2 T ST A€ & I8 Hroier
&. R 37e R0 HUGhT HIT TS TTa ATTHT T | I IT.5.HT TTATSITU T2 BUSHT ShIGU-IEeaTs <. 3% Afaerdent
Tl (T dfed) Wfawer SO THRURT @ | AT, THIET STafamT TIATEauer Resiel ®Ue Jwaiide! TS e
T HUSel T A e Roco/ 03/ AT ThfA T T HATEHT STTTHT & | AT ASHT 2 a9 fafe
T&, ¢ 37d 23 FHUSH! Wohl B | HONTI THATETTUS T BUE FATSHT Roco/ 0%/ ¥ 1A Uiudeh g FhISUIgelTs
fafd 02/ 0%/ 03 a1 fRal YHHT TiEEHS |

GEIWT TLHYT 9T ¢

HEATTA qUHST AT A= folii=T SseenT wmet JaT e 78 SATSRHMT R 97 SRS Arft 0T Fefsehor
i fafear waravr &R TR & | 30 e fafe=T §or SRl Anfl aHTeRT GeaTeh Tidee o TR S | 2o F2T
Toreiar HToTeTs T @ TUEST FeT Ye TRURT B | qY, T4T A9 HETAohT AT JRTeIdT e el
I TTNUHT & | 9 AT &= AT TAT THRT TR FUTRAT Wehlel STaUes Tteh! AId ATEA T WS HETSHT o
Sire féar 7w gem 3= gfg arfaa T afe afaws |

ﬁﬁ%wﬁaﬁu:

faferiepa @Y sy demeenT fafrm Jurer fudiosr et shiv STawTIsheh! FTHT R AT SATHT STTATT T UTed
T LT oco/oce AT fafarishd aTHT 1T fmmEedt 004 T@IfSH NIBL Equity Partners TTHehT fafareisha
ST &I (Private Equity Fund) SISaTe gdl YHTOTYS UTed T HATGHT HTWESHT & | A1 3T oco/ocg AT
Tafsreiera ermT @i frmreett sETfsTHeRT Tt rTHIhdTaeeTTs hIVehT ShTs Tarshl TTHUERT AT YIS ThH ShIShT
farerrr sfor afera eseeaT T T R THT TS TSR ® | (NIBL Equity Partners) of STCTHEHHT ¢ 37el 3518
forpT TRl STEHE & <R HIS TTHT THHHH B |

. ifgw qan sFaxifey aftedidiane FFaeiaT FOEATE i STET TRHT WU AT SETRT THIET :

siferg STadTmT UEE | T I Roco/ ¢g T Ufea T statifes sTiier uftfeurfaent fademr fremgam miwsr @ |

forar Tofdear STgUH TRUW=T Yg@ T& TUhT WUdT Ui I HeTHhT dHehie TTe T 56 b a1 TeagaT
ST Yo fash daer favaent i Iig Fi @ AicherT Tl @ | favar srofdwe GgrewifaaT e guw §3
TThT @ | foerferd srefdereesh! G TauT Scoied UR ¢ Teds-0 Wohl & 9 fashraga stefa—=enT qgrehifa
I b IoF Wonl @ | Tavasht et s St e awar mifge fifqenr wrifesners gear aAsT g% et
B 9 AT Ha[T Fohetel FHiga Hifgeh Hiiqent wETEAS b fHeaar fausr &7 | SHes 2rT iR
Tgufa fratemr fasr afaer Menel oo fava @R Hifawr wieas g7 g shitaw Jfaw=s | favma =9 T
ITHTERTST T 3Tohioeg, Gooll SATIR ATGHT STare TRuT fava ST ufdegel 316t 0 9aS | JFel SRS
S At e ferr e mitusTer TR sTdfaes o aeigd IS ST ot 913 Wi 18 JdTerT faffaa
&g FERT FoH® T STHRIR Seen! WIS AeHiHTer HHSHRT gig g7 Tardur T |ies |

Tiftgw snfdw feafa:

Tava Tfqe=mT STIUhT TNEdHaTe Ut STIa=MT Ii TohRUcHsh THTE edhiel YSiIasTRAT TehRIcHeh TS Tieh
3@ | et et ATHIHT AT{Eeh TRTHT hINeh! HTawherdT ThRIcHeh THTE O TTUh! & | dfehe &t sTcafees aterar
TEaT T T8IT T heTichl SATSIGt Rt STl AFaT Ui shofl STUelTehd TR g Tehehl & | TTfefeh farfrctarsst
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FROT TTop o1l AU aedhl © | I9 Ty uftheufanr srofier afe werrert STa@t quT gHTdTETeh! JTHAT TRt
AT A EEETS STETHT TIUTA 716 HIHT TS T+ et ekl S |

T R faaett @t s fifq ferushr waar uf faaeft e e AT STeRiNa T ek dfes ety
WqeamT 7T A, 9T 2%, ¥R Uiav ghg W ex. ¥« e e T awer WUl ® | faeeft i ter
TaIa ST, TeTfaer ToRaT T & hTHaRERT ST Yhelehl & | FEhRUT HuTeiel faaefl emHieme @r sl
AT Tl denent & |

T WRA T ST quiEfed T T T JEl ST aTheR WUl SuTelel WRa T =T 3taa seAfasw
AT T FehuT 7T 3ferd STl A faT e | T Safaed qur Wit STeTe GrTeHT Wehtel wifasrT
fasft e gfig goes |

Juret fdios SiEaT wRiERT sTerEenT gt g THae U I FEY quT THy Heee SfhE STaEREmT FRRIHE
T IR T | Howe ATohe Ta@RhT GPRT HI STIhe BTl §1 THa], TH AT qUhT TEaE Tieeyer,
stferenter S quT facier ST o fomm srofietel TERIe FFOHRT THT AT HTHIEITE GEaTd T STEdT g esen
TG TG FHFIHIST HATEATS IRl TAHM YSi TSTRAT Ioa T qUT 3Teael TIHT LA T A6 HUH T |
AT, TR Aiwe sifehs STaETEMT FaT TR 99 TTHeh! SATHT UG T dich Tia-aH Samehl (STed ISft §TeHT gt
W,ﬁwwﬁmww, Green Bond or Green Financingmmﬂwmw, H'IH'I%%"FI"THQT
FIVATS o7 G3& STEATT ) ITEAIT AT LI e T Gol YShiarstrar fan fqermamr sire fag & & |

Fifre TEmR! SR TTEATs T T A0 T dh fAuRr wHiaer Hfaers s s g 18
TuhT A | AT At s g tgata uS fers Tt swriee oo aaTer SeTHT YewT 18 MUl a9 &
o wfaeefl, e T fshasrar uge gfg g7 faws | Foct ST} femr SPRESIAT Jehiiers TTa I+ T
Heitopd hFI-TehT HRIET 7% TREhd EFcl Soaied Jig g favard andier ferusht & |

3. gfdeeq @R Woa fafd @ F1| a9 R0t/ 059 H IUATSH T WIAEHT THUR HITHT FFeHT
"o AfHfdRT ST
a1 gideeT TR &8 99 IE FHAHIC TR IucTiougE |rd WiawmT MU sriceen! faatur e SdTas
afafaenr armes f sHIfs et & :

©  IH FFOHIRT FaT i T el AT UREHTs ST F9HT @R T ST (o -aHTae et et
qAT SATava Taf-RrHTeciee AT T el TeH |

© U TS SSe ST GEAHT SRT Teh! TETITRT T 3T HEiad et SHIiS [qeures Jyere et
THAT TR T R TSR B |

© T FHRATE W S fefHee T Yageh quT TIAElaue uH Fiiiee fafiee AeHT sTerwesh el
TASTSTIUS 3T BUS ST=Td FaT TR Rl ATSIHT HoaTetaT cA13 TTeshTd Welashl & |

©  fafsrieRd THT I (Private Equity Fund) STl T TuTer fodivsy Si€ene Iy sqaweiaehe! 9T
TRt ATt srgafa o ured W fafareied et i femmEet 00w FEIfSH (NIBL Equity Partner) JTHeRT
fafsreisea @Y &IW (Private Equity Fund) ST€aTe &l JHIUYS UTed TR ST AUl & | EerdeuT
. ¢ oTdl SHTS (! TRl ST & < HUS AT THEHeT & | SNHT TaaT shrwent faem sgam afera
TTIhATEECTS 3ohTS ferahT TR AT TohH hITehT 3T STTER TTHT A |

© Y FHFHIA HEANTT HHTISIoh ITETacaadTs UTAfHehd™T e 9 oY oG fafqd suar fafy—=r srispree
JEATS F=aLar far FSHT SR B |

O TIAEIIUA BT BV A<HIAh] TTATSIUT T HUSHT SHISUHIEEATS .34 UTqerdenl atel s Hfed
father farawor miwshr & |

O TR WY HGT =q fand gf@d WM TG TSRl o wefwer, faxfr ufdeeT qur geamshd
AR S |
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WAl FATEE

FrgieT STATTHT famTeeaT HeTeh &Yt JuTedt USft srofenT fafyr=T SsreedT el R Tgery HaT IucTesr T3 Hidagdr
TR sfoe TR Fehraee uTed STaeeh wliepfa a1 JeT 3evaes e+ o |

e ILTUEE
2. W]c forvmTeRT SPTdEReTs HUTICfaT STt i qpAT (System Based Automation) awh At |

. FFHICT UM T TFIUT HATEE Mobile App TT I FUNCH AT T YWTEhRT GFel USH T oFaeT
IESIEEN

3. He=e dfers, fadias qerer qen St aar gigsr afim wweteriar fnft @erer 7@ o1m.9.97e FHed fera 1T
Plaza 3T qHT deailelle GRYUT HaT Teh SHT THAETE T&H THAS |

¥, GATHT JTGHT 9T higq T AT ATEeh T ghg T T>T QAT TTeshasells UiEshd ST HTthd AfaerruT (retain)
T |

Y, Ay IeAfad qET ITIUET TRT THHT AT fF Ff TSR SMTEUahT © |
%) WU SR qrafee wiEs

STTTHY faeeHT 98 HFaHIel 18 STUhT Telve Sfshe Traf-er Hrigeen! qucHe Jig THeRT ATHT STTavarsh WHIAT T’
T ey e higd e |

©  ATTHY SA.F.R0<2/¢R AT 9 I R F2T FITHRI ATESIE ERM, R 2T dN{esh AT HIueh!
HrSTieh FTeheM, X F2T fafaa dement feamar, « JeT TRl Temfd T ¥ 9T FHFd-ieh! feaiat sl el
TET3H T T S | T Aforeal 1., AT TFI g TEhaAT 22 FT HFIHIehT TTaSTeh FTERTIHEE qHd 8
3TTefeR AT FFOT TR e THETaT |

O AT AT AT Y FH I T I el e faT 3 swroes aia 99 ¢ S el SFTET
TR B |

©  STATTHT 7.9 HT I FHFTTeT SSTEhT STTEAT T HFI-1eh! STTEAT &N HTEEHT qaeh Team{dend! daT ¥aM TS |
@) e aee:

T ITTAhT T TAT FHATEEATS THTTHRRT TS qT FATUTERER Teaumel WraT Wied quT aTf¥e ook 3313
FRAT THa Siie a5 | I%d fafr=T S[ochee 3o M 9T I geEd aATsq TreradT fefsed yhHT Hareh
HEATEE & : It doige AT, SO, Tedt ATET T FREBIT AR 7Td 9N % JUHT HIHgeaTs 3 faedr
IS ol & | SATST TAT mobile app AThA TEaTE TUT A I @TAT Wied HEATS THT SIS 16898 TT Video
KYC a1 TTeshehl  KYC verify T STa¥aeh JargR AT TR Soaleral caTe © | HISfeh ST 4T §=H0E
T S T, ST gHea T ST FRieRetars Wiiden / sndtfas &9t T gewr e rei arfdy yee e |
TequTel @TAT Giew TehgeaTs HUTel $-eHvE HAT S fof. AT 3 S Qa7 Wied T8 d AT TS |

) qTHfEh AT B

A, ¢/ <R TT TAAEIIUS R[GA VS T TRl GATGET ArsHIehT =T, Tafaerdr aramet st my
frdio didaTe Aawe Wil fds ST T § | TARTEau GRdTiTdT BUgeh! HeaTe aTg O HITe
T SFTEATIH "I'{CT, Tt éﬂ'&p Qi qr Systematic Investment ‘Iﬁ@!ﬁ HT ATdG §ﬁ' ‘JI'i%lv_é?I'lFrl'st o giafadsf qerr qast
T S fag & | GaAmE! amfes T T TS I TTehiad SIS STavTw ST qur e e
TS 9T gse T8 A & | gt ISRl 3T ITHWIEE Systematic Withdrawal T, Systematic
Transfer TfaeT GrHT eI TR ATAWH SAB IS TS S | GeIad IS Y-8 (Scheme Manager)
T FRdeedr o7 fashme T Tt URHATeTs o7 g at faRi ST Tt SeuTerHT TRl ATSTeEh! Fidthet
farawor m grwar gieat S fagT @ |
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o) fafreama st

Wﬁﬁ AT B fEmTEet 0wy SHIfSH NIBL Equity Partners TR Wﬁﬁ' T T (Private
Equity Fund) a1 gdT FHTUMIS UTed T ST WWehl hivel fafereiepd et shiw femmaett smfsrent afera
AT ATEEATS FISehT TS Tashl T T ThH sSR! e STt ST SiseedT e TS |

T) GEINT gl daT:

79 FroT qure fodres Sidwr wiepfa uverd e wmst dar sta e deeedr et J9r gae T
JTETEHT Y, TGS T g Fmaar fagae |

Capital Restructuring Advisory

Equity and Debt Raise & Valuation

Pre IPO Advisory

Market Research, Business Plan and Financial Projection
Escrow Agency

Investment Training to Network Clients

FDI Advisory

Subsidized Loan Processing and Faciliation

Merger and acquisition -Recommending and Finding merger partners

e & & & &6 6 6 86 & O

Issue and Sales Management Pre and Post Advisory Fee

) T fae:

T FIIeT ISiT STSTHehT TS SETSThT ATHT BTereey Ukt s qaefierssh, FqveR T aael quT 3UcTehT aTfel
IRET, Jead, Surest T e T M © TATET SIRaT e T 4T J=I1se ST & | STRTHT 7.8, HT SHirgar
qe TaTTeEeTs ST HosTlel Hhd SIIg ISl ITJeT Todad, geid, Furentst T STEHT ITRaT Hostel faeai
JISHT SATThT & TAT IT plaza OT 3=0 TN HRATA FHT0T T 718k arfarTg JId dl 3csh™S customer experience
faT ST Wl B |

) AFETSH (Online) ATHA AT TS T qAT Y 9 Qa1 TG (Automation) T TFafeeT :
FITE 2% o TORTTEhT UTS TAT STTEATS ST T STATERT FTHT T TT TTeehaeel T+ hrIge JHd ST&d -
©  FHANIEER! T G-I R THITEH T Gfeh TR TR IS oF WEied (Automate) Ta oSt |

© ferqe @rar Wied 3@ KYC I9eT ll-'-‘c_fllé 3TTh Self Present verification FIT§ e T Video KYC
glafrers st T |

© fere, AT ST Hell, TRATSIAUS HeWTaT hUSeh! o3 WitE UIHATelTs HesT qum Oiesh Hs aTg
seamless TFHT gal UFHAT 7T FfehT T User experience Mﬂﬁﬁl

© fafy fefSiea areie AThd ATawIeh Yook BT T ST T+ SaTeTs Toear T |

© {7 AT FiaUTeE Y T web based HTEIHETE UTHHATHRT AT TR T T T qT Gleemesars afwshd
Mobile App HThd THA JaTE TR | 3th TICHHAT 9 FFO-ter fa o fa g arqut darerr ardr frdiesi g
TrI-ad 3T value added services STEd S T, st Tehl3=C, TH.3TE.10., Margin Lending ST&T TaT o
T One Stop Solution T &7 feremre i |

¥. FEOATRT RN a1 soaatfies awey -

FOHI HATHT T FUSHRATARE S HEEUl { adnas gy fawar Wl @ | 99 gw-ads Saares adr
URETRTATeRT STTRHAT faehfea 18 oiSiT] Herarit g4 T SHFaHTen! TTidenT @i SUeh HTEAH G I9 hra-1eh! favame el @ |

Y. ST IHITHT AR ETRT T T HTLOT :
Ig GiqeT IHT HTeteh ATHIGHT JTHT WUhT & |
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%. mWﬁﬂ@'w

JUTART TSI T STRAT T TEHT A3 TaaIaielTe Hegel TTd U,
o= seTr o7 wfafs g MUkl deiicHe TTE I
SITSIET qUT GRATSSTRAT qletdTeh! STagT,

SAfaehiar aTfoTST Sehew qoT 3= fafaar deem qr | Froeed g0 Geeh Hra-Ishl TTAT A7 qaE=eh!
ESAEIR)

o TR HEHT AT &b SITohieh] 1A qoT AT AT RGeS geiel Fa@mel JaT HouTa-HT TATUshIeT
HHNIHE 3T I,

© T FehmIeEs] 99 GeRHT STRT g a1 Tt Tderee StEeTs JarTHT cars ane @,
© TG ST UehT TES Yiqurer,
©  FHTIHIEEhRT M T TR YSBAT (merger and acquisition of companies ), 37Tt

9. AT e w1 FfFTd Je@ WIH WU | U SATE ArHireRT qiertwa -

Tt FRERET SRauwT T SHEIT STed TETHRTET AiaaaT T 3% F hihId Seoid HUh! & | ITed Ffaspar
T YYFTIEEehT TFT-eT GeTeish Afaehl SATATRNUT HUKT & T LT ATHT STTEvTH HEH I ATediehushl & | aTs,
SATECEr 3.9, T BRI SeeTEHIT G TR T |

e & & &

c. WWE StghiE T fawied TfRust TR aiiE af oco/oc I @M weTe @iwiaer At
R0¢?/0¢/ 2R T THERT 232 31f daehel U HIATA TE ATHIN (F.%19,00,00,000/— FHT Ysilehl 4 HfawTaet g
I3 T &. 22,9%,00 000/ —) FT Hled Taaorht wEaTe FawTiE Ml & |

Q. FUT A WURT WU TR WU T AT, Tt TR 3Tfohe Hed, el UL Ahel ZIHT AT
Tl TUA FFIAI JT TEHRT AT THA T Iedl T JAha WOUis |1 39T okt & e o
TR THH qAT AHT HUHT I J0a A fihdT Tl W et @<t « aefterm adar s aft SR stea
TTReRT B |

0. farTa anfYer aHT FFUAT T THERT TEHF FEIHTRT FTETHRT WG T T ATAF TR 7T T
feaferant TRTaAEA © oG HroienT g TEEh HET & |

. FFAAT TAT AR TEEF FFAAIA AR THAT T TR THE FRGEEE T A AACAT FFoient
FILIETTHT TR Fel HEAYUT T : 76 FRIADT HY TR FHEo & |

R. formar sfefer AT FFaTRT ST AU EHIEE FFIRIATS ITAeY TTTHT ATTRTL : Hel THTH |

3. farma st avT FetRT deTeE qA qEIfiE T ER [T ST wrHeast fqawut T Fui
AT FIOEHAT (oET G WH! WU a1 G Mogtae FFuie I TR0 AHET : $al
THTH |

¢. e snfdw o FRe awfaa aesnaEe # gsaeE qar e afaes aae
TR EQTHRT TRAT JUASE TSR AT IR SR : TG FehThT ol GEBIAT THURIT o8 Frel-erT
T AT T T |

Y. FFIAIA FTEAT T AR @I TR WY TELT ATHAT SR @G TR FIOT, AT SATH G
T fthd Fo0 qar T AU @E TR aa FFOAA AT TRAT A e ST SegedT 3
Gig s THU |

1%. ATATE FOIUT SqFedT WY a1 AWTHT T HOERT WT Al faa<oT
FHFI TR TEI0T SHaET S| TRt AT AFe G faerm affq T e da sifaw sgaemeT giafa
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TS Wl ® | A afafaeesr Sow Tafnd TnT S e T aug-gmemr off aftfaeeel SEEOT qur @9t
qfafaeTs Hoate T gwbTa fa TTEa | T9Taehil STTNeh E-I0T T et ATt a8 sroter fafer fifa, fdemr
qUT UTHATE® AIAT T ST Tl S |

TG T OIS ST SRATIEIT T+ SFEeT JHd THTS U & |

Q. ferTar snfifer ARt et SqEEATT @eh! faraTon

T firdw Td A (%)
FHT @ F.C%,R3],UBR/ -
T T F.cC3%% QR / —
ST SGEITIA @ 7.99%,%3¥,909 /-

5. A@IEAUT AfHfdhT Teeageh! AHEE! fAogea T TRt aifestae, war aon gfaan, | affaa
THT FH FIRETEH (a0 T &7 afufaa w4 gyema fgar we awer fawor

FEOHT BT IETIRIET FiAfq TRehT ToT aTed FHGRT ST TRATRIE0T T4 STaeT TRUsT & | FHFoieh fafar
feafa, stafer femor T Siifaw Sraweme, ST TR STuTeT STTfaeh! STawelT BTerde Fd-ieh! TR T
RIS HeTeish Afafdet ¥ &4 TRl § |

R, GATAH, Tawel GATAEh, FUR T@, FFIART SATEMTHA TICEAT a1 (et Afsrerant e ar &=
HART LT TH, FFAHT AT G ST GEATH FFAAIATE el ThHH JVRTSH (! WY AT F/LT: Hel TUTH |

0. HATAH, UaFd HATAE, FUHRI THE qAT TEHIHRERATE WO TR TS HE, AT qan
SIERIEIRC T

&, AT QTHTT SEehep! faauT

frd w ™ ErETafiie) mifestfies w=r SftRTa
? ST oft gfer feagarer 2% 20,000/ - 3k sy
. A ot fastar qog 2% 9%¢,000/- 3k sy
3. Hues oft ez wgs 2% 95,000/ - 3 T
¥, g oft 75 HAT WS 2% 2%¢,000/ - 3k W
STHAT \99¥, 000/ -
g, g qETeA afufd Sehet faawor
frd w ™ ErETafiie) mifesrfoes W= SftRTa
2.  Ha® oft gfa feagarer \s 90,000/ - 3k sy
. TEe it festar qog e 90,000/ - 3k sy
STHAT 90,000/~
T, ST AT SeH sqeede ity Seweh! faawor
o w G SFRT TET mfeafas war e
2.  ddEH oft afe feagarer 2¢ 2¢0,000/- 3 w=T
. e oft Termg =g 2¢ 9¢0,000/- EEERNI)
3. O oft 3T FHR TS 2 240,000/ - o T
STHAT 490,000/~
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T, T qn sfaw e afufa sswe faawor
fad w= ™ TERR @ mieataw W St
2.  ddTe ot gfam feagarer %¢ 9¢0,000/- d3F T
. A oft oz w=g 2¢ 2¢0,000/- 3% =T
3. HaAwh ot 3TT FUR W Y 240,000/ - Sk s
STHAT 490,000/ -
g, FTHT afufy (faffesa et #w) Sewa faawor
fa & ™ 1 SRR EET  wieufuw W Sfteud
. ot gfeq feagama ITeTe R 220,000/ - EEER )
. ot gefiet o ) ] 230,000/ - 3 T
3. off ferard SRIgr s qaeT 2R 240,000/ - Saeh T
STHAT 3%0,000/ -
T. TR F@a! faaor
fad w LI mfeafas s & fthaa

2. V@ FEER fuma oft ferar srRIgr AT %. R0,c0,000/- TR T

31 T, YT T T RUERT iaeT araet wueRt qar fatemreett sEite yam iU B |
29, TEEHER JiRfde it T ATHIE T © TR |

Q. FFAT U, R0%3 FT IWT ¥q FHWH @ ar fesht nfvgsr gwatant faawor : axfter adur a9 ywre
%7 @ foskT e |

3. FEAT UA, 0%3 Fl IHT 90Y THIH TFIG FFUAISA HIHRT RIETLRT [GEToT
FFOAT U, 053 ol ST 20U THITSH EFeg HFIHT ofi=l HUehT RIS ToeuT aef Joold TTRUH S :

©

Roc¢? IATVIE HEWT HHHT THSTSUATT UH RIued fafaeect g ot JuTe gehve 3§ fa. A1 Ha
T &, % ,R%3,R%2/— TWRT T | AT AWTTGRh! =T AT TH FAUHIT G IS TS SATRHT
Y &. ¥,¢00,43%/ — TSI Tehl D |

T FIHT T SHEHIE W S T, w1 aware off afed feacarer T sfiwdt fasiar uve a@ eoien
HerereReRt &9aT; off ferara sETgt 91 W@ HrieRT tfushdaeht T T ot W U yE-3 et ST
T1h gt © | Ed ot geiier S @ aufa (fafwrfeena @t 1) & geer R g 9o © |

T AT AU SHRHE T s fafideer anfsramelead wrifaamr o0 Hroiers afew &l dere Tenl
SATRT T IS TRIUSHT & T AT TA qT 31 WTiateish JediTehT AT JH HEd-iel a1 §.% 00,000/~ (T
ARG W) T HFHICTs b 6 ARl & | ST grf-eq arul E<ee I8 HoHT Sare a8le
TR T |

Roc? NI HE TFHHT G&F g JUTd $Wedve W de fafieeel THeTEiaue &ae wug 3T=wid
THSRTI TEhT CTATETaue HEWTITAT HUSHT &, 44 FIS Yo dld , THSTSIIUT qrig FUS R AT & 3% S |
TS 1o UE /T &. 30 S ¥o ANg , TS [U Eele] HUS HT &, 28 S Hedt el U<l & fast
ST ATIT RIHT T S | SAehel W FJael HUE A=A TSR THehl BT B=dl U ¢ AT ISiT amad &. 2%
FUE 22 ARG THTHT TR S |

Roco-¢? AT G&F HIHT JUTel FHeve AT S feafieger Row’-co HY AT ey TSAEaTe Hewrhiar
BUS T & 20,%<19,3%% T TTATSTUA WIid BUSHIE & <, 23%,%¥ 2 U el B |

T FET T G HPITeRT TRl hRIaREEeh! Jaierd U qerr femee sigan fafar uresfiar wrm afeusr &
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4.

R¥. FEAT QA, R0%3 TAT TATAT FIH THIGH GATAF AHITRT TTIETHT GATSAAA 370 Fl L

(@) FEEE, fdes a1 ar FamaaRT e wEd aw FHART a1 Qs W, 9%, STE T 98 et
FLT : T FHEHIRT TodTetsh a7 UGTIhRIRT Aiotehen] ATAER HETHT TTCRRT FHrEter, Jurer fudios o ar
LT OIS TR T 37 g FrermenTt ke siferepa am @ et HifUeaT agHT R e |

(@) FFAHRT FF TATAH AT QR ATHH AR &1 T oigw o & wedr amn awawd EHt &), v L
THTHT |
(M) Fied, e g av o w7 famae e I ARt AT FET W Y R T |

T ATATTF LT : 3T SARIF FHEE THURT STRRT STHRRT TS |
YIS ST :

TqT UH @RI R T T I HEATs Teitad SATadTs EIEEeE UeH T ST quT STed
TATIHIETsheTS HelTeTeh AfffdenT abeae aTfeeh shastdl M9 e |

HETO T gfEe IR T Rt SERT IS STHT T IR EelTeteh Ahfd, SIeeTa qoT HEuRieeTs
faer errare fa =me=g |

T T T HERT 3T Wit AT HEdT YIS g IRREHT HEIITaeE, TTesher q¥iT ATl SRl
o fafeww we foemafte fatree ufa daters afifas! qwere gTfdeh TR Tehe T4g | FHFT-IehT STURK 31 quT
TATTGHT  STTHAT ST 917 T G0 W TRT FHICATshT ATe AR T3] § hPI-TehT ST Tt ShHeR gt
AT HEOTRT TidfafaenT aRAT GRRIcHeE ST SHARE JATsie §ER ST T UeIE/ STcHel ST 98AnT JRsg
g1 el sregenee uid Uit o 2fde SR ok TTag T I9 TTURUT 8T Tt%hel SHTSiaT ud J8l 3uTeerd aeqef

HETIUTIEECATS &liaeh 9=IaTg S Tag |

ot afaes g sfi afaw faga
FHT Ftae aTeTey

id : R0¢g/0e/0R
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N. Amatya & Co.

Charfered Accountants
UDIN: 241119CA00209UPYRT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NIMB ACE CAPITAL LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of NIMB ACE Capital Limited (the Company), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024), and the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in shareholders' equity, the statement

of cash flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024), and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of
ethics for professional accountant issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2063 and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAN's Code of Ethics for professional accountants, We

believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the year ended on Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024). These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matters | How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Investments

(Refer Note 14 “Financial instruments and fair value measurement” and Note 15 “Investments” of the

financial staterments)

Investment of the Company comprises of quoted | Our audit procedures included the following:

and unquoted marketable equity shares of various | = Tested the design implementation and

companies, fixed deposits in various banks and operating effectiveness of key controls over

financial institutions, investment in mutual funds valuation process of investments.

as seed capital, investment in marketable mutual | = Assessed appropriateness of the valuation

funds, private equity and debentures. The techniques with reference to NAS 39 -

valuation of the investments is done in Financial Instruments: Recognition and

compliance with Nepal Financial Reporting Measurement read together with NFRS 9 —

Standards (NFRS) - 9: Financial Instruments. Financial Instruments along with the

Investment in marketable equity securities and Company's own valuation policy.

mutual funds are valued at fair value through | * We have agreed a sample of year-end

profit and loss (FVPL). The investment in investment holdings to external valuations

debentures and fixed deposits with various banks and custody sources to verify the valuation

and financial institutions are valued at amortized and existence of these investments.

cost. = Obtained an understanding of price
verification control, which is designed to

House No. 409, Indrapuri Awash Chhetra, Dhapasi, Kathmandu, Nepal
T: 977-1-4D10660, Fax: 977-1-4010661, E: info@namatya.com.np




Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The valuation of the investment requires special
attention and further in view of the significance of
the amount of the investment in the financial
statements, the same is considered a key audit
matter in our audit.

review the appropriateness of valuation
methodologies to derive model inputs.

* Based on our audit procedures performed, we
concluded that the valuation of level 1 and
level 3 financial instruments is appropriate.

Revenue Recognition

(Refer Note 3 "Revenue” and Note 3.1 “Revenue from operation” of the financial statements)

Revenue comprises of issue and sales
management income, underwriting fee, share
registrar income, portfolio management service
income, fund management fee, mutual fund
depository fee, DP income, collection commission
income, advisory income and other operating
income.

The Company also recognizes net changes in gain
/ (losses) on financial assets and liabilities at FVPL
as a part of revenue in its financial statements.

Since the management considers revenue as a key
measure of evaluation of performance, there is a
risk of revenue being recorded before service is
rendered and is not recognised in the correct
period.

Our audit procedures included the following:

* Obtained and read the Company's revenue
accounting policy on revenue recognition in
accordance with the requirements of NFRS 15
- Revenue from Contracts with Customer.

* \Understood and tested the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of key controls over revenue generation and
its recognition,

* Obtained clear understanding of the process
of operating and deriving income from mutual
funds and portfolio management services as
per directives issued by the Securities Board of
Nepal (SEBON) and understood the process of
booking such revenue.

* Tested on a sample basis the recorded
revenue to ensure that the revenue is
recorded when the right to receive has been
established and the management is certain to
receive such an amount.

= Verified on a sample basis the related
documents include portfolio management
service income calculations and mutual fund
management fee income therein as per
regulatory requirements and internal policies
of the Company along with cash receipt with
special attention to the timestamp thereto so
as to ascertain the correctness of period of
revenue recognition.

* Based on our audit procedures performed, we
concluded that the revenue from merchant
banking operation recognition is appropriate.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon
The management of the Company is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements

and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.




If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements
The management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with NFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.



We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
We report that:

a.

Mgnish Amatya

N."Amatya & Co.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company, so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

The enclosed statements of financial position, statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and statement of cash flows have been prepared in conformity with the provision of the
Company Act, 2063 and the same are in agreement with the books of account maintained by the
Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the board or any member thereof or any employee of the Company has not acted against the
provision of law relating to the accounts nor caused loss or damage to the Company or
misappropriated the funds of the Company.

Chartered Accountants

Place: Kathmandu
Date: November 13, 2024 (Kartik 28, 2081)



NIMB ACE CAPITAL LTD.

1. Statement of Financial Position
As on Ashad 31, 2081 (Corresponding to 15 July 2024)

Amount in NRs.

Particulars Notes As at 15 July 2024 As at 16 July 2023
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Paid up capital 470,000,000 470,000,000
Retained earnings 219,434,396 212,141,722
Reserves 65,833,466 50,562,612
Total Stockholders' Equity 755,267,862 732,704,334
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred Tax Liability 6.3 - -
Employement Benefits 19 2,193,521 2,190,548
Total Non Current Liabilities 2,193,521 2,190,548
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and Other Payables 10.1 1,049,642,965 1,164,790,530
Other Current Liabilites 10.2 53,694,735 72,768,832
Provisions 20 1,621,015 2,631,180
Lease Liabilities 18 - 315,985
Employee Benefits 19 = 506,817
Current Tax Liabilities 6.2 - -
Total Current Liabilities 1,104,958,715 1,241,013,344
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity 1,862,420,100 1,975,908,226
Assets
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 11 108,625,937 81,964,432
Intangible Assets 12 4,784,685 4,013,087
Right of Use (ROU) Assets 13 - 193,790
Investments 15 73,994,751 316,176,304
Advance for Investment in Equity Instruments 10,402,000 10,000,000
Staff Loan 62,530,284 54,863,587
Total Non Current Assets 260,337,657 467,211,200
CURRENT ASSETS
Investments 15 1,266,140,355 1,268,749,687
Trade Receivables, advances and deposits 171 166,162,335 82,059,664
Current Tax Assets 6.2 8,132,849 16,120,976
Deferred Tax Asset 6.3 2,333,031 2,909,122
Cash and cash equivalents 17.2 159,313,874 138,857,577
Total Current Assets 1,602,082,443 1,508,697,026
Total Assets 1,862,420,100 1,975,908,226
Contingent Liabilities 18

As per our report of even date,

Sachin Tibrewal Srijana Pandey Rabindra Bhattarai Manish Amatya, FCA
Chairman Director Director Partner

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai Shivanth Bahadur Pandé Sachindra Dhungana N. Amatya & Co.

Director Chief Executive Officer GM Chartered Accountants
Bishal Raj Paudyal Ibika Adhikari
CFO Head- Accounts

Date: 13th November, 2024
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NIMB ACE CAPITAL LTD.

2. Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
From Shrawan 1, 2080 to Ashad 31, 2081 (July 16, 2023 to July 15, 2024)

Amount in NRs.

For the Year Ended

Particulars Notes
As at 15 July 2024 As at 16 July 2023
Revenue:
Revenue from operation 3.1 300,035,445 183,641,082
Other income 3.2 116,561,353 94,168,191
Net changes in gain/(losses) on financial assets and liabilites at FVTPL 151 (823,163) 1,171,574
Total revenue 415,773,635 278,980,847
Expenses:
Operating Expenses 4 32,437,981 30,083,033
General and Administrative Expenses 5 164,364,965 118,370,620
Finance Cost on Lease Liabilities 1,876 1,153
Depreciation and amortization 18] ,1132 19,449,264 18,679,308
Total expenses 216,254,086 162,134,114
Income before income taxes 199,519,550 116,846,733
Tax expense /(income) 6.1 59,456,022 35,592,520
Profit for the Year 140,063,527 81,254,213

Gains /(losses) on re-measuring available for sale financial assets = -

Gain/(loss) on Actuarial valuation of defined benefit liability - -

Total other comprehensive income /(loss) - A - -

Income tax income /(expense) relating to components of other = -
comprehensive income - B

Other Comprehensive income /(loss) for the year, net of income = -

tax (A-B)
Total comprehensive income for the year 140,063,527 81,254,213
As per our report of even date,
Sachin Tibrewal Srijana Pandey Rabindra Bhattarai Manish Amatya, FCA
Chairman Director Director Partner
Ananda Kumar Bhattarai Shivanth Bahadur Pandé Sachindra Dhungana N. Amatya & Co.
Director Chief Executive Officer GM Chartered Accountants
Bishal Raj Paudyal Ibika Adhikari
CFO Head- Accounts

Date: 13th November, 2024
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NIMB ACE CAPITAL LTD.

3. Statement of Cash Flow

For the Year Ended Ashad 31, 2081 (Corresponding to 15 July 2024)

Amount in NRs.

FY 2023.24 FY 2022.23
A. Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash Inflows 402,679,248 281,053,900
Interest Income 104,037,576 86,258,959
Issue and Sales Management & Underwriting Fee 22,215,011 28,579,715
Advisory Income 10,875,576 3,482,866
Share Registrar 5,007,035 5,153,730
Portfolio Management 12,616,216 11,680,845
Fund Management Fee 126,009,952 47,354,577
MF Depository 13,841,436 6,648,593
DP Income 93,038,255 72,712,347
Income from Investment 7,859,597 1,521,509
Other Income 3,624,144 17,660,760
Cash Outflows 249,585,410 202,342,373
SEBON Fee 9,222,264 5,577,639
CDS Fee 17,372,569 25,625,397
DP Commission Expense 985,300 841,892
Staff Expenses 105,564,238 89,091,178
Office and other Overhead Expenses 65,549,235 47,901,876
Income Tax Paid 50,891,804 33,304,391
Cash Flow Before Changes in Working Capital 153,093,838 78,711,527
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets 175,391,115 (115,361,824)
(Increase)/Decrease in Short Term Investments 186,371,220 (137,7183,479)
(Increase)/Decrease in other Assets (10,980,105) 22,351,655
Increase/(Decrease) in Liabilities (144,743,475) 129,910,489
Increase/(Decrease) in other Liabilities (144,743,475) 129,910,489
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 183,741,478 93,260,192
B. Cash Flows from Investing Activities: (45,785,181) (55,927,088)
Purchase of Fixed Assets (47,879,339) (57,360,471)
Proceeds from disposal of Assets 2,094,158 1,433,384
C. Cash Flows from Financing Activities: (54,000,000)
Dividend Paid (117,500,000) (54,000,000)
Current Year's Cash Flow From All Activities 20,456,297 (16,666,895)
Opening Balance of Cash and Bank Balance 138,857,577 131,148,771
Cash flows from Business Combination - 24,375,701
Closing Balance of Cash and Bank Balance 159,313,874 138,857,577

As per our report of even date,

Sachin Tibrewal Srijana Pandey Rabindra Bhattarai Manish Amatya, FCA
Chairman Director Director Partner

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai Shivanth Bahadur Pandée Sachindra Dhungana N. Amatya & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Director
Bishal Raj Paudyal
CFO

Date: 13th November, 2024

Chief Executive Officer

Ibika Adhikari
Head- Accounts

12* Annual Report 2023/2024
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NIMB ACE CAPITAL LTD.

For the year Ended Ashad 31, 2081 (Fiscal Year 2080/81)
1. Corporate Information

NIMB Ace Capital Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Nepal at office of company registrar (OCR)
under Companies Act of Nepal with its registered office at Lazimpat, Kathmandu. The Company is a subsidiary of Nepal
Investment Mega Bank Limited.

The company has been established with objectives of providing merchant banking services in Nepal. The company has
obtained merchant banking license from Securities Board of Nepal (SEBON) and also has obtained license of Depository
participant from SEBON and CDS & Clearing Limited. The company has obtained Fund Manager License under Specialized
Investment Fund Regulations, 2075.

The Company is engaged in business of issue and sales management, underwriting, portfolio management, share registrar,
depository participants and other advisory services. The Company is also fund manager and mutual fund depository
for NIBL mutual fund and Mega Mutual Fund and currently manages Four schemes namely NIBL Stable Fund, NIBL
Sahabhagita Fund, NIBL Samriddhi Fund Il and NIBL Growth Fund under NIBL Mutual Fund and Mega Mutual Fund — 1
under Mega Mutual Fund. The close end fund, NIBL Pragati Fund was matured on 2080 Poush 26 (2024 January 11).

The financial statements have been authorized for issue on 13 November 2024 by the Board of Directors.

2. Basis of preparation and presentation of financial statements

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS).
These financial statements are also prepared in accordance with the relevant presentation requirements of the
Companies Act, 2063 of Nepal.

2.2 Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention basis except for certain items that
are measured and presented at fair value as required by relevant NFRS as explained in respective notes. These
financial statements cover the reporting period from 1st Shrawan 2079 to 31 Ashad 2080.

2.4 Basis of preparation

TheThe financial statements are prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied
consistently to all the period presented in the financial statements.

2.5 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are prepared in Nepalese Rupee, which is functional currency of the company. All
amounts have been rounded to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise indicated.

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.
Company’s transactions including income, investment and expenses are denominated in Nepalese Rupee, which
the management determines to be the functional currency of the Company.

2.6 Significant Accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

Preparation of financial statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) requires the
management to make use of significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amount of asset and liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures of contingent items during the reporting
period. These accounting policies adopted are used on consistent basis. Estimates are reviewed on continuous
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised.

The significant accounting policies adopted, judgments and estimates while preparing these financial statements in
accordance with NFRS are set out in corresponding notes.
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3. Revenue

Revenue is recognized on accrual basis and is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The
management of the Company determines the amount of revenue based on the applicable service agreement. Fees and
commission arising from transactions are recognized on basis of completion of underlying transaction. Accounting policies,
estimates and judgments used by management for each item of revenue is detailed below:

Item of revenue Accounting policy, significant estimates and judgments used for revenue recognition

Issue management fee is recognized based on completion of work for the issue of
securities to the extent that it is probable that economic benefit will flow to the Company
and the amount can be measured reliably.

Issue management fee Management determines that the volume of work is completed to the extent of fifty percent
of total work at time of signing of agreement for issue management, and accordingly
recognizes fifty percent of total fee as income from issue management immediately after
signing the contract which is generally non-refundable. The balance of agreed fee is
recognized as income when allotment of the related issue is completed.

Collection commission is recognized as revenue after the related allotment is completed.
Collection commission ASBA commission income is also included in collection commission revenue on completion
of process for allotment of IPO.

Refund commission income is recognized one month after the certificate distribution has
Refund commission been started. However, refund commission revenue is recognized when allotment is made
for issue management whose refund commission has been predetermined.

Underwriting fee is recognized based on the recoverability of fee and non-refundability

Underwriting fee of fixed amount of fee. Management estimates that recoverability of fee can be reliably
measured at the date of issue.
RTS & RTA fee RTS/ RTA fee is recognized on accrual basis of service offered throughout the year.
Fund management and depository fee revenue is recognized as per the rate agreed with
Mutual fund depository the fund sponsor based on the fund size as guided by Mutual Fund Regulation 2067.
and fund management fee The rate of Fund Management and Depository Fee has been revised as per revised

Mutual Fund Regulation 2067 from Falgun 1, 2076. Following is the agreed rate for fund
management and depository fee for each scheme of mutual fund:

Fund R:‘l’j':gd Deposi- Revisgd
Fund manafg::ment manafg zm ent tfc:z De;’sgggo
NIBL Samriddhi Fund | 1.75 % 1.50% 0.50 % 0.20%
NIBL Sahabhagita Fund 1.25 % 1.25% 0.40 % 0.20%
NIBL Samriddhi Fund Il 1.50% 0.20%
NIBL Growth Fund 1.50% 0.20%
NIBL Stable Fund 1.50% 0.20%
Mega Mutual Fund - 1 1.50% 0.20%
NIBL Equity Partners 2% -
Setup Fee is recognized as one-time fee from NIBL Equity Partners as per the Constitution
Income from SIF of the Fund. Fund management Fee is calculated at the rate of 2% of the Fund’s Net

Assets Value.

Entry load is recognized as revenue when agreement with client is signed. Performance
fee, annual fee and service fee is recognized as revenue when it is due.

Due to uncertainty on recoverability of DP income that will flow to the entity, management

estimates that the income recognized on realized income basis shall provide reliable and

. L more relevant information about the effects of transactions, and conditions on financial
(D&e)ofs;t:ry participants performance of the entity.

Portfolio management fee

DP income is recognized on realized basis on the rate given in CDS Bylaws and the
regulations issued by the SEBON.

Dividend income is recognized when right to receive is established. Management

Dividend income determines the right to receive is established when shareholders approve the resolution of
dividend distribution by the entity at general meeting of shareholders.
Interest income Interest income is recognized as it accrues using effective interest rate method.

Other incomes are recognized when it is probable that consideration associated with the

Other income transaction will flow to the company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
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3.1. Revenue from operation

Following table summarizes the operating revenue recognized during the period:

Amount in NRs.

Particulars AS AT 15 July 2024 AS AT 16 July 2023
Issue and Sales Management Income 5,662,500 6,500,660
Underwriting Fee 14,433,631 11,486,615
Share Registrar Income 6,434,407 5,794,690
Portfolio Management Service Income 12,394,135 11,395,915
Fund Management Fee 105,679,665 56,333,754
Mutual Fund Depository Fee 15,048,612 7,913,614
DP Income 92,663,755 60,746,226
Collection Commission Income 3,554,449 6,265,902
Advisory Income 12,256,196 3,835,920
Income generated from SIF 28,197,551 -
Other operating income 3,711,522 13,367,786
Total 300,035,445 183,641,082

3.2. Other income

Following table summarizes other income recognized during the period:

Amount in NRs.

Particulars AS AT 15 July 2024 AS AT 16 July 2023
Interest Income 108,665,650 88,614,260
Dividend Income 2,258,064 73,758
Return on Investment 1,716,221 1,750,578
Other Non-Operating Income 3,931,419 3,729,595
Total 116,561,353 94,168,191
4. Operating Expenses
Amount in NRs.
Particulars AS AT 15 July 2024 AS AT 16 July 2023
SEBON Fee 10,318,106 6,095,484
CDS Fee 18,111,799 11,531,789
DP Commission Expenses 1,062,768 617,670
RTS and Issue Management Related Expenses 2,489,925 11,305,075
PMS- Commission Expense 455,383 533,015
Total 32,437,981 30,083,033

Apart from SEBON Fee and CDS Fee in regard to DP - AMC Fee collection which has been booked on cash basis, all other

expenses has been booked on accrual basis.

5. General and Administrative Expenses

Amount in NRs.

Particulars AS AT 15 July 2024 AS AT 16 July 2023
Employee Costs 83,373,341 69,117,996
Employee Training and Development 2,866,191 2,861,000
Staff Bonus Expenses 22,168,839 12,982,970
Office Advertisement and Business Promotion Expenses 15,931,356 9,578,529
AGM Expenses 91,911 26,408
Membership Fee , Renewal ans subscripition fee 2,042,132 1,744,396
Audit Fee 282,500 254,250
Internal Audit Fee 376,000 200,000
Audit Expenses 209,641 56,842
Bank Charges 34,782 42,975
Cleaning Expenses 2,030,482 1,368,704
Dashain, Tihar & Pooja Expenses 281,125 241,976
Non Capital Assets 244,520 207,860
Other Office Expenses 50,000 2,484
CSR Expenses and Donation Expense 136,135 790,643
Security Expenses 1,628,465 1,581,755

40 ‘L“JMEL&% 12" Annual Report 2023/2024

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn




Office Gardening Expenses 146,305 121,285

Electricity Expenses 200,136 108,843
Printing & Stationary Expense 3,777,899 2,687,761
Newspaper & Periodicals Subscription Fee 162,386 61,576
Communication Expense 3,920,783 3,574,433
Courier & Postage Expenses 123,765 96,704
Fuel Expense 1,668,273 1,319,395
Vehicle Annual Charge 128,510 155,713
Insurance 275,890 111,778
Rental 13,720,325 3,585,710
Software Expenses - Office 2,253,207 1,378,542
Repair and Maintenances 1,920,106 1,132,999
BOD Meeting Expenses & Other related Expenses 1,766,400 849,000
Miscellaneous Expenses 91,415 62,483
Consulting & Legal Advisory Expense 1,822,454 673,697
Budget Meeting Expenses 39,690 38,000
Annual Day Celebration - 740,968
Data Management and Entry Fee - 12,945
Management Fee 600,000 600,000
Total 164,364,965 118,370,620

6. Income taxes

Tax Expense for the year
Tax expense comprises current tax expense and deferred tax expense (deferred tax income).

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on taxable income for the year calculated as per taxation law and rates applicable at
date of statement of financial position. Current tax expenses include any adjustments to income tax payable or recoverable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized based on temporary difference between financial statement's carrying amounts of asset and
liabilities and their respective income tax bases. Deferred tax is determined using the tax rates that has been enacted
or substantively enacted by the statement of financial position date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled. The carrying amount of deferred tax is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent of non-recoverability of deferred tax assets.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax for the year are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case current and deferred tax are also recognized in other
comprehensive income or equity respectively.

Offsetting of current and deferred tax assets and liabilities
Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the company has legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amount and intention to settle on net basis.

6.1 Income tax expenses

Following is the details of tax expenses recognized in statement of Profit or Loss.
Amount in NRs.

Particulars AS AT 15 July 2024 AS AT 16 July 2023
Current tax expenses
in respect of current year 58,879,931 34,030,993
in respect of prior years — Expenses / (Income) - -
58,879,931 34,030,993
Deferred tax expenses/ (income)
In respect of current year (576,091) 1,561,527
Total income tax expenses recognized in current year 59,456,022 35,592,520
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6.2 Current tax asset or liabilities
Amount in NRs.

Particulars AS AT 15 July 2024 AS AT 16 July 2023
Current tax assets

Opening balance (net offset with current tax liabilities) 16,120,976 7,013,584
+ Advance Tax during the year 67,012,780 43,138,385
Closing balance (A) 74,026,364 50,151,969

Current tax liabilities
Opening balance (net offset with current tax assets) - -

+ Current tax payable during the year 58,879,931 34,030,993
+ Tax payable due to Business Combination - -
Closing balance (B) 58,879,931 34,030,993
Net current tax asset/ (liabilities) (A-B) 8,132,849 16,120,976

6.3. Deferred tax asset or liabilities
Amount in NRs.

Particulars Carrying Value Tax Base Difference
Fixed Assets 103,631,491 85,291,513 (18,339,978)
Provision for Leave 2,192,543 - 2,192,543
Provision for Expenses 2,421,015 - 2,421,015
Investment 1,340,135,106 1,361,638,295 21,503,189
Total Temporary Difference 7,776,769
Total Deferred tax Assets/(Liabilities) for the Year 2,333,031
Less: Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) relating to OCI -
Less: Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) up-to Previous Year 2,909,122
Deferred Tax Income /(Expense) of this Year (576,091)

7. Share Capital

The company applies NAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation to determine whether the contribution received is either
outsiders' liability/debt or equity. Financial instruments issued or their component is classified as liabilities if contractual
arrangements give arise to the Company having present obligation to either deliver cash or another financial asset, or
a variable number of equity shares to the holders of instrument. Otherwise, it is recognized as equity instrument. Any
incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction from the proceeds.

Share capital represents residual interests of equity holders in the company. The company's share capital is as follows:

Particulars Value per As at 15 July 2024 As at 16 July 2023
share No of shares NRs. No of shares NRs.
Authorized capital 100 10,000,000 1,000,000,000 5,000,000 500,000,000
Issued and subscribed capital 100 4,700,000 470,000,000 4,700,000 470,000,000
Paid in capital 100 4,700,000 470,000,000 4,700,000 470,000,000

Following is the reconciliation of outstanding no of shares at the reporting period end.
Particulars AS AT 15 July 2024 AS AT 16 July 2023
No of Paid in Capital at beginning 4,700,000 2,700,000
+ Additional issue of equity instruments - -
+ Issue of bonus shares - -
+ Acquired through business combination - 2,000,000
No of paid shares outstanding at period end 4,700,000 4,700,000

7.1 Shared held by holding company

Out of the ordinary shares issued by the Company, 100% of the shares are held by the holding company Nepal
Investment Mega Bank Ltd.

7.2. Right Issue

The company has made a right share allotment of NRs. 500,000,000 on 12th August 2024 (28th Shrawan 2081) i.e.
after the balance sheet date but before the financials are authorized for issue.

8. Retained Earnings

All accumulated profit less distribution is represented under retained earnings. The other comprehensive income/ (loss)

.............................
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has been presented separately under Retained Earnings as at reporting period. Following is the table of retained earnings.
Amount in NRs.

Particulars AS AT 15 July 2024 AS AT 16 July 2023
Opening Balance 212,141,722 188,376,990
+ Previous Year Adjustment - 653,629
+ Acquired through Business Combination - 4,004,210
+ Profit for the year 140,063,527 81,254,213
-Distribution During the period (117,500,000) (54,000,000)
- Transfer to General Reserve (14,006,353) (8,125,421)
- Transfer to CSR Fund (1,400,635) (812,542)
+CSR Expenses, Charged to Fund 136,135 790,643
Sub- Total 219,434,396 212,141,722
+/(-)Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) - -
Closing Balance of Retained Earning 219,434,396 212,141,722
Reserves

— General Reserve

As per Revised Mutual Fund Regulations 2067 implemented from Falgun 1, 2076, Section 38 Ka, every fund manager merchant
banking company shall allocate 10% of Net Profit After Tax every year to a General Reserve Fund for risk management and
maintenance of corporate financial stability. The company shall not distribute dividend from the allocated amount to such reserve.

Following is the table of General Reserve: Amount in NRs.
Particulars AS AT 15 July 2024 AS AT 16 July 2023
Opening Balance 48,897,148 30,273,539
+ Acquired through Business Combination - 10,498,188
+ General Reserve allocated during the year 14,006,353 8,125,421
Closing Balance of General Reserve 62,903,507 48,897,148
— Shareholder’s Equity

The shareholders’ equity as at the financial year end is tabulated below:

Particulars AS AT 15 July 2024 AS AT 16 July 2023
Share Capital 470,000,000 470,000,000
Retained Earnings 219,434,396 212,141,722
Reserves 65,833,466 50,562,612
Closing Balance of Shareholders Equity 755,267,862 732,704,334

The company through its Annual General Meeting held on 2080 Poush 25 (10th January, 2024) had passed a resolution
of calling right of 234.04255319% of its Share Capital. The right was called for amount equaling NRs. 100,000,000 out of
which NRs. 50,000,000 has been allotted to Nepal Investment Mega Bank on 12th August 2024 (28th Shrawan 2081).

The Shareholders’ Equity after the Right allotment stands as the following:

Particulars After Balance Sheet Date AS AT 15 July 2024
Share Capital 970,000,000 470,000,000
Retained Earnings 219,434,396 219,434,396
Reserves 65,833,466 65,833,466
Closing Balance of Shareholders Equity 1,255,267,862 755,267,862

— Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Fund

As per Revised Securities Businessperson (Merchant Banker) Regulation, 2064 implemented from Falgun 1, 2076,
Section 30 Ka, every merchant banking company shall form a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Fund and shall
allocate 1% of Net Profit after Tax every year to a CSR Fund. The expenses in related to CSR activities shall be

done, charging to the Fund during the year.

Following is the table of CSR Fund that has been shown under reserves: Amount in NRs.
Particulars AS AT 15 July 2024 AS AT 16 July 2023
Opening Balance 1,665,464 990,302
+ Acquired through Business Combination - 653,263
+ CSR Fund allocated during the year 1,400,635 812,542
- CSR Expenses, charged to fund during the year (136,135) (790,643)
Closing Balance of CSR Fund 2,929,964 1,665,464

Proposed Dividend
For Fiscal year 2080/81, the dividend shall be proposed and declared on the date of Annual General Meeting.
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9. Capital Management

The primary objectives of capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed
capital requirements and that the company maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximize shareholders value.

When managing capital, which is a broader concept than the equity in the statement of financial position, the objectives
of the company are:

— To comply with the capital requirements set by the regulatory authority where the company operates

— To safeguard the company's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns to
shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders; and

— To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

SEBON requires minimum of NRs. 200,000,000 equity capital to carry out all services that the company provides. The
management monitors its capital structure and required level of regulatory capital requirement based on the changes in
economic condition in which company operates. The management may adjust the structure by adopting the policies of
dividend payments, issues of new shares, acquiring new or retiring existing debts.

10. Current Liabilities

The company classifies a liability as current when such liability is expected to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period end and it does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period, and such liabilities are primarily held for ordinary purpose of business. Current liabilities of the
company have been classified into different group of Trade and payables, other current liabilities and provision balances.
Following tables details the current liabilities of the company.

10.1 Trade and Other Liabilities

Trade liabilities include the current liabilities directly related to the operating income or expenses.
Amount in NRs.

Particulars AS AT 15 July 2024 AS AT 16 July 2023
Issue Collection Refundable 155,469,958 139,882,558
RTS Client Dividend Warrant Payable 873,111,934 1,006,285,344
RTA Bonus and Tax Paybles 4,390,343 4,578,856
CDS Fee Payable 7,393,467 6,654,237
SEBON Fee Payable 4,372,376 3,276,535
Interest expenses payables 1,536,755 1,195,824
Advance received from Customer 2,765,644 2,392,156
DP Commission Payables 602,489 525,020
Total 1,049,642,966 1,164,790,530

10.2 Other current liabilitiess
Other current liabilities of the company include payable balances on account of general and administrative expenses.

Following is the list of other current liabilities.
Amount in NRs.

Particulars AS AT 15 July 2024 AS AT 16 July 2023
Audit fee payable 303,688 250,875
Salary, Wages and Bonus Payable 24,346,305 21,078,328
Statutory Liabilities 2,440,571 1,878,288
Staff Housing Loan Insurance Premium 16,492,524 9,343,273
Advance Received for Investment - 33,905,340
Other Sundry Payables 10,951,007 6,312,728
Total 53,614,735 72,768,832

11. Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are those tangible assets used for business operation, administrative purpose or for
rental to others. An item of PPE is recognized at the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment allowances if any when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with such item of PPE will
flow to the Company for more than one accounting period, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Costs includes purchase price and directly attributable costs incurred in bringing the assets to the present location and
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conditions of being operable as intended by the management. Borrowing costs incurred for qualifying assets are capitalized.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized to write off the costs of item of PPE less their estimated residual values using straight line
method over their estimated useful lives and is recognized in statement of profit or loss. Management estimates the useful
life for each component of assets separately. Following estimations of useful life on each category of asset is used by
management for depreciation.

Category of Assets Estimated Useful Life
Data Processing Hardware 5 Years

Office Equipment 10 Years

Office Furniture and Fixtures 6.67 Years

Vehicles 6.67 Years

Leasehold assets Over the lease term

De-recognition & Impairment

An item of PPE is de recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to flow to the Company
from continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the
difference between net sales proceeds and carrying amount of the assets and is recognized in statement of Profit or loss.

Following is details of PPE.

Amount in NRs.
Data A Office

Particulars Vehicle Processing E uionf:gﬁ Furniture Leals.\irslglcsj Total PPE
Hardware G & Fixtures

(A) Cost or Valuation
Opening Balance as at 17 July 2023 12,554,981 38,175,901 15,991,401 25,982,112 45,579,651 138,284,046

Additions during the year 22,100,000 4,918,783 2,767,872 2,938,325 3,341,023 36,066,003
Disposal 3,600,000 3,600,000
Balance as at 15 July 2024 31,054,981 43,094,684 18,759,273 28,920,437 48,920,674 170,750,049

(B) Accumulated Depreciation,
amortization and impairment

Balance as at 17 July 2023 4,296,604 26,156,232 2,962,745 11,706,849 11,197,183 56,319,613
Adjustment of previous year 55,435 43,131 694 99,260
Additions during the year 3,860,098 3,791,127 1,739,999 3,080,674 5,490,828 17,962,726
Deletion 2,279,836 - 2,279,836
Balance as at 15 July 2024 5,876,866 29,891,923 4,659,614 14,787,523 16,687,317 71,903,243

(C) Carrying Amount
As at 17 July 2023 8,258,377 12,019,669 13,028,656 14,275,263 34,382,468 81,964,433
Balance as at 15 July 2024 25,178,115 13,202,760 14,099,660 14,132,914 32,233,357 98,846,805

Impairment losses for the year have not been provided on any assets and no assets have been pledged as security against
borrowing or commitments.

12. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on straight line basis over their estimated useful life.
The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for as per Note 2.6 Following estimate of useful life on each item of intangible assets
is used by management.

ltem of intangible asset Estimated useful life
Software 5 Years

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at costs less any accumulated
impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from their use. Gain or
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset is measured as the difference between net proceeds from disposal
and carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in statement of profit or loss.
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Following is the details of intangible assets as at the period end.
Amount in NRs.

Particulars Software Total Intangibles
(A) Cost or Valuation

Opening balance as at 16 July 2023 8,658,647 8,658,647
+Additions during the year 2,034,205 2,034,205
-Disposal

Balance as at 15 July 2024 10,692,852 10,692,852
(B) Accumulated Depreciation, amortization and impairment 4,645,560 4,645,560
Opening balance as at 16 July 2023 30,141 30,141
+Additions during the year 1,292,748 1,292,748
-Deletion

Balance as at 15 July 2024 5,908,167 5,908,167

(C) Carrying Amount
As at 16 July 2023 4,013,087 4,013,087
As at 15 July 2024 4,784,685 4,784,685

13. Right of Use (ROU) Assets

The company has taken on lease the 2nd floor of the building along with a parking area from National Holding Pvt. Ltd.
The non-cancellable period of the lease is 5 years. After the end of such non-cancellable period, the contract provides the
right to terminate the contract to both the parties after giving 6 months’ prior notice. The agreement has been continued
after acquisition of former, Mega Capital Markets Ltd.

During the current year, the non-cancellable period of the contract has been expired and now the contract provides the
right to terminate the contract to both the parties after giving 6 months’ prior notice. Hence Right of Use Asset and the
pertaining recognition has been withdrawn.

14. Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurement

Fair value estimation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at measurement date in the principal, or in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the
company has access at that date.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities that is traded in an active market is based on the quoted market prices
at the close of trading date on the reporting date. The company uses the last traded market price.

The fair value for all other financial instruments not traded in an active market is determined by using the valuation
techniques deemed to be appropriate in the circumstances. These valuation techniques include the market approach,
income approach or cost approach, or other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants making the
maximum use of observable inputs and relying as little as possible on unobservable inputs.

For instruments for which active market in not available, the company may also use the internally developed valuation
model as per company's valuation guideline which describes about the methods and techniques generally recognized
as standard within the industry. Valuation models are primarily used for the unlisted equity securities or other financial
instruments for which market is not active during the year. Some of the inputs to these models may not be market
observable and hence requires the management judgments and thus valuation is estimated based on assumptions.

The output of a model is always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and
valuation techniques used may not fully reflect all factors relevant to the conditions the company holds. Valuations are
therefore adjusted wherever appropriate to adjust the factors including model risk, liquidity risk.

Fair value hierarchy
The company measures the fair value using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the input used
in measurements.

o Level 1 (L1): Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in an active market for identical instruments.

o Level 2 (L2): Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

o Level 3 (L3): Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation techniques
include inputs not based on observable data and whose unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the
instruments' valuation.

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn

46 ‘L“JMEL&% 12* Annual Report 2023/2024




Financial Instruments
Classification and Measurement

Financial instruments included in the statement of financial position are measured at fair value through profit or loss or
measured at amortized costs. Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or fair values
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) are classified into following:

© Financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading: financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for purpose of selling or repurchasing in near future. This category includes equities and other fixed income
securities. These assets are acquired principally for the purpose of generating a profit from short term changes in price.

© Financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value these financial assets and liabilities are designated
upon initial recognition on the basis that they are part of a group of financial assets that are managed and have their
performance evaluation on a fair value basis in accordance with the policy and strategy of the company.

© Financial assets available for sale: financial asset that are not classified as held for trading or designated at fair value
are classified as available for sale. Available-for-sale financial assets are those intended to be held for an indeterminate
period of time and may be disposed due to changes in interest rates, underlying prices or other requirements. Gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value of investments classified as available-for-sale are recognized directly
in other comprehensive income, until the financial assets are sold or impaired or retires, when cumulative gain or
losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at Amortized Cost

Financial assets and liabilities held to maturity are classified and measured at amortized cost. These financial asset
or liabilities are initially recognized at fair value including direct and incremental costs and subsequently measured at
amortized costs, using the effective interest method, less any impairment allowances.

Recognition

The company recognizes financial assets or liabilities when it becomes the party to contractual provisions of the instrument.
Recognition takes place on the trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract whose terms
requires delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned.

Derecognition

Financial assets are de recognized when the contractual right to receive cash has expired or the company has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are derecognized when the obligation specified in the contracts is
discharged, cancelled or expired.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position if there
is enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize
the asset and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Following table details the financial instruments included in the statements of financial position are measured at fair value
or amortized costs.

Financial instruments measured at fair value Fair Value method

Carrying amount (approximation to fair value assumed due to
short-term nature)

Closing price of scrips (L1) as at the statement of financial position
dates. or L2 or L3 value as determined by management

Closing price of scrips (L1) as at the statement of financial position
dates. or L2 or L3 value as determined by management

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments held for trading

Available for sale investments

Financial instruments measured at Amortized Cost Fair Value method

Carrying amount (approximation to fair value assumed due to
short term nature)

Employee Loan Amortised cost calculated using effective interest rate.

Carrying amount as effective interest rate shall be the interest rate
of each deposit instrument.

Receivables, short term payables and accrued charges

Fixed deposits investments
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15. Investments

Following table details the investments and analysis within the fair value hierarchy as at date of reporting period end.

Amount in NRs.

_ Fair Value FY 2023.24 Fair Value as at FY 2022.23
Investments in as at 16 July 2023
15 July 2024 L1 L2 L3 uy L1 L2 L3

(A) Held for trading (classified as current assets)

Mutual Funds 200,406,472 200,406,472 123,358,272 123,358,272 -
Equity Securities 68,891,415 68,827,782 - 63,633
Total 200,406,472 200,406,472 - - 192,249,687 192,186,054 - 63,633
(B) Available for Sale (Classified as Non-Current Assets)

Equity Securities 151,458,026 - 151,458,026 - 182,901,400 182,901,400 - 182,901,400
Total 151,458,026 - 151,458,026 - 182,901,400 182,901,400 - 182,901,400

(B) Measured at Amortized Cost

Fixed Deposit at Bank 914,990,000

1,134,000,000

Investments on Debentures 73,274,904

75,774,904

Total Value of Investment 1,340,129,402

1,584,925,991  1,584,925,991

Amount in NRs.

R Fai:;lilue as at FY 2023.24 Fair Value as at FY 2022.23
uly 2024 L1 L2 L3 16 July 2023 L1 L2 L3

A. Current Assets

Held for Trading 200,406,472 192,249,687

Measured at Amortized Costs 914,990,000 1,076,500,000

Total 1,115,396,472 1,268,749,687

B. Non-Current Assets

Available for Sale 151,458,026 182,901,400

Measured at Amortized Cost 73,274,904 133,274,904

Total 224,732,930 316,176,304

15.1 Net change in fair value of investments
Amount in NRs.

Particulars FY 2023.24 Net Gain / (Losses) FY 2022.23 Net Gain / (Losses)
A. Current Assets
Mutual Fund (2,608,160) 2,268,360
Equity Securities (1,458,930) (640,059)
Total (4,067,090) 1,628,301
Net Change in fair value (4,067,090) 1,628,301
+ Realized gain/(loss) on Investments - (456,727)
Net changes in gain/(losses) (4,067,090) (1,171,574)

The net change in fair value of investments has been
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15.2 Details of Investment
A. Investment on Mutual Funds

Fiscal Year 2023.24
Market Value Book Value

Name of Company Market Value

Unit  perunitasor 15 July2024 15 July 2024 Gam/(lff\?;;
y Amount (A) Amount (B)
Citizens Super 30 Mutual Fund 399,000 10.00 3,990,000 3,990,000 -
Global IME Balance Fund - | 250,000 9.10 2,275,000 2,335,000 (60,000)
Laxmi Equity Fund 313,426 9.47 2,968,144 3,005,755 (37,611)
Mega Mutual Fund - 1 223,500 7.72 1,725,420 1,785,765 (60,345)
NABIL BALANCED FUND-2 709,382 9.00 6,384,438 6,242,562 141,876
NIBL Growth Fund 2,232,100 10.64 23,749,544 23,749,544 -
NIBL Sahabhagita Fund 4,470,873 10.54 47,122,999 46,734,187 388,812
NIBL Samriddhi Fund-II 1,236,200 8.25 10,198,650 11,261,782 (1,063,132)
NIBL Stable Fund 1,143,390 10.00 11,433,900 11,433,900 -
NMB Sulav Investment Fund - Il 320,525 10.06 3,224,482 3,202,045 22,437
RBB Mutual Fund 1 247,300 8.16 2,017,968 1,998,184 19,784
Siddhartha Equity Fund 602,778 8.39 5,057,307 5,684,197 (626,889)
Sunrise Focused Equity Fund 898,300 8.24 7,401,992 8,695,544 (1,293,552)
Sunrise First Mutual Fund 98,000 10.35 1,014,300 1,085,840 (71,540)
Sanima Large Cap Fund 100,000 9.29 929,000 892,000 37,000
Himalayan 80-20 500,000 9.99 4,995,000 5,000,000 (5,000)
Fiscal Year 2022.23
Name of Company | Market Vaiue  Market Z:Igﬁ Book X:Igﬁ Gain/(Loss)
Al P Ao on  16July 2023 16 July 2023 (A-B)
y Amount (A) Amount (B)

NIBL Pragati Fund 1,051,384 9.71 10,208,939 10,534,868 (325,929)
Laxmi Equity Fund 320,176 9.59 3,070,488 3,169,742 (99,255)
Sanima Equity Fund 22,600 11.80 266,680 288,150 (21,470)
NIBL Sahabhagita Fund 2,503,201 10.68 26,734,187 26,350,325 383,862
Sanima Large Cap Fund 100,000 8.92 892,000 932,000 (40,000)
Sunrise Bluechip Fund 543,150 7.85 4,263,728 4,616,865 (353,137)
NIBL Samriddhi Fund-II 1,236,200 9.11 11,261,782 10,439,138 822,644
Mega Mutual Fund - 1 223,500 7.99 1,785,765 1,785,765 0
Global IME Balance Fund - | 250,000 9.34 2,335,000 2,500,000 (165,000)
NMB Sulav Investment Fund - |l 500,000 9.99 4,995,000 5,000,000 (5,000)
NIBL Growth Fund 2,232,100 10.64 23,749,544 22,321,000 1,428,544
Sunrise Focused Equity Fund 1,000,000 9.68 9,680,000 10,000,000 (320,000)
NABIL BALANCED FUND-2 752,382 8.80 6,620,962 6,440,390 180,572
RBB Mutual Fund 1 500,000 8.08 4,040,000 3,775,000 265,000
Siddhartha Equity Fund 602,778 9.43 5,684,197 5,244,169 440,028
Sunrise First Mutual Fund 250,000 11.08 2,770,000 2,692,500 77,500
Citizens Super 30 Mutual Fund 500,000 10.00 5,000,000 5,000,000 0
Citizens Super 30 Mutual Fund 12,587,471 10.00 123,358,272 121,089,912 2,268,360
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B. Investment on Listed Shares

Fiscal Year 2023.24

Name of Company _ Market Vaie  Market Z:Igﬁ Book Zglgﬁ Gain/(Loss)
e P ooy 15July 2024 15 July 2024 (A-B)
y Amount (A) Amount (B)
Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited 3,000 544.60 1,633,800 1,651,797 (17,997)
Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 1 841.00 841 765 76
Forward Mictofinance Laghubita Bittiya 270 1,413.00 381,510 382,851 (1,341)
Global IME Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 1,000 1,365.00 1,365,000 1,494,937 (129,937)
ngg[gﬁg'nﬁ“&m’g::;ﬂ‘%ﬁgg Promoter 19,000 103.00 1,957,000 1,946,336 10,664
Himalayan Life Insurance Limited 1,083 391.00 423,453 549,081 (125,628)
Himalayan Reinsurance Ltd 12,800 580.00 7,424,000 8,014,881 (590,881)
IME General Insurance Ltd. 10,295 558.00 5,744,610 5,765,200 (20,590)
Kamana Sewa Bikas Bank Ltd. 4,590 416.00 1,909,440 1,930,995 (21,555)
Kumari Bank Limited 52,542 153.70 8,075,705 8,669,430 (593,725)
Molung Hydropower Company Limited 3,990 410.00 1,635,900 1,661,898 (25,998)
NIC Asia Bank Ltd. 11,745 443.20 5,205,384 7,227,549  (2,022,165)
Nerude Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 1 720.20 720 681 39
Neco Insurance Limited 2,500 836.00 2,090,000 2,113,362 (23,362)
Eiérlr?i(t)gt?l Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha 1 1,409.00 1,409 1,294 115
Prabhu Bank Limited 32,000 163.70 5,238,400 5,176,842 61,558
Pokhara Finance Limited 1,000 592.00 592,000 672,203 (80,203)
Rasuwagadhi Hydropower Company 3,500 295.00 1,032,500 1,050,000 (17,500)
Samaj Laghubittya Bittiya Sanstha Limited 117 2,926.00 342,342 63,633 278,709
Sana Kisan Bikas Bank Ltd 1 853.70 854 - 854
Sarbottam Cement Limited 7,063 806.50 5,696,310 2,832,263 2,864,047
Shivam Cements Ltd 8,141 502.30 4,089,224 4,463,735 (374,511)
Sanima Mai Hydropower Ltd. 811 339.50 275,335 261,710 13,625
Sonapur Cements Limited 5,980 456.10 2,746,561 2,755,544 (19,083)
Suryadyoti Life Insurance Company Limited 1,414 429.90 607,879 782,630 (174,751)
Sagarmatha Jalvidhyut Company Limited 7,014 406.00 2,847,684 2,731,944 115,740
Sun Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited 5,000 511.30 2,556,500 2,608,090 (51,590)
Ei\:'vn?treocjjgar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha 1 851.00 851 B 851
Union Hydropower Limited 4,000 250.50 1,002,000 996,187 5,813
Upper Tamakoshi Hydropower Ltd 6,000 176.70 1,060,200 1,580,400 (520,200)
Total Investment in Shares 204,860 65,918,328 67,377,258 (1,458,930)
Fiscal Year 2022.23
Name of Company _ Warketvaiue  MarketZelee BookATE o nLoss)
Unit e U o8 16July 2023 16 July 2023 (A-B)
y Amount (A)  Amount (B)

Nepal Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 1 744.00 744 747 (3)
Butwal Power Co. Ltd. 3 330.50 992 966 26
Mero Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited 37 661.00 24,457 28,798 (4,341)
Ei?’r:ii?;c?l Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha 18 1,366.00 24 588 29,025 (4,437)
Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. 496 173.80 86,205 119,954 (33,749)
Rasuwagadi Hydropower Co.Ltd 7,000 300.00 2,100,000 1,911,000 189,000
Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 2,799 826.00 2,311,974 2,392,170 (80,196)
Forward Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya 263 1,321.00 347,423 500,850 (153,427)
Upper Tamakoshi Hydropower Ltd 6,000 426.80 2,560,800 3,252,000 (691,200)
Sanjen Jalavidhyut Company Ltd 6,000 296.90 1,781,400 1,560,000 221,400
NIC Asia Bank Ltd 9,105 793.80 7,227,549 6,337,080 890,469
Ngadi Group Power Ltd. 1 233.90 234 297 (63)
Jyoti Bikas Bank Ltd. 116 298.00 34,568 302 34,266
RSDC Laghubiita Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 1 613.10 613 555 58
Siddhartha Bank Ltd. 21,538 253.00 5,449,114 5,448,288 826
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Nepal Reinsurance Co. Ltd. 1,155 740.00 854,700 808,500 46,200

Surya Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited 1,283 610.00 782,630 496,521 286,109
Himalayan Life Insurance Ltd. 1,083 507.00 549,081 545,671 3,410
Nadep Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 238 608.20 144,752 247,282 (102,530)
CYC Nepal Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha 649 1,410.00 914,526 978,180 (63,654)
Samaj Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 117 543.87 63,633 63,633 0
Ridi Power Company Ltd 5,600 243.00 1,360,800 2,371,252 (1,010,452)
Agricultural Development Bank Limited 6,406 233.90 1,498,363 1,489,395 8,968
Citizen Bank International Limited 5,500 173.10 952,050 935,550 16,500
Kumari Bank Limited 52,542 165.00 8,669,430 8,485,533 183,897
Nabil Bank Limited 57 599.20 34,154 33,858 296
Prabhu Bank Limited 29,181 162.60 4,744,831 4,741,913 2,918
Sanima Bank Limited 4,328 260.50 1,127,444 1,129,608 (2,164)
Panchakanya Mai Hydropower Ltd 15,686 204.00 3,199,944 3,419,548 (219,604)
Sanima Mai Hydropower Ltd. 8,100 355.00 2,875,500 2,924,910 (49,410)
SHIVAM CEMENTS LTD 4,500 651.50 2,931,750 2,731,500 200,250
Chhimek Laghubitta Bikas Bank Limited 1 1,000.00 1,000 960 40
Nerude Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 103 688.00 70,864 71,997 (1,133)
Sana Kisan Bikas Bank Ltd 1 899.00 899 931 (32)
IME General Insurance Ltd. 10,295 560.00 5,765,200 6,053,460 (288,260)
Siddhartha Premier Insurance Limited 13,358 778.50 10,399,203 10,419,240 (20,037)
Total 213,561 68,891,415 69,531,474 (640,059)

C. Investment on Unlisted Shares

Fiscal Year 2023.24

Market Value = Book Value .
Name of Company Market Value - - (I?oas"s‘;

Unit perunitason 45,5024 15 July 2024

U iy s Amount (A) Amount (B) )
M. Nepal Ltd. 244,629 100 24,462,900 24,462,900 -
International Media Network Nepal Pvt. Ltd. _
- Ordinary Share 8,000 100 800,000 800,000
International Media Network Nepal Pvt. Ltd.
- Preference Share 192,000 100 19,200,000 19,200,000 -
H. Medical and Diagnostic Pvt. Ltd. - Ordinary Share 200,000 100 20,000,000 20,000,000 -
H. Medical and Diagnostic Pvt. Ltd. - Preference Share 800,000 100 80,000,000 80,000,000 -
Citytech Group Pvt. Ltd. - Ordinary Share 57,397 116.28 6,674,000 6,674,000 -
Total 151,136,900 151,136,900 -

Fiscal Year 2022.23

Market Value Market Value Book Value Gain/
per unit as as on as on (Loss)
on 16 July 2023 16 July 2023 (A-B)

16 July 2023 Amount (A) Amount (B)

M. Nepal Ltd. 244,629 100 24,462,900 24,462,900 -
International Media Network Nepal Pvt. Ltd.

Name of Company -
ni

- Ordinary Share 8,000 100 800,000 800,000 -
International Media Network Nepal Pvt. Ltd. 192,000 100 19,200,000 19,200,000 -
H. Medical and Diagnostic Pvt. Ltd. - Ordinary Share 200,000 100 20,000,000 20,000,000 -
H. Medical and Diagnostic Pvt. Ltd. - Preference Share 800,000 100 80,000,000 80,000,000 -
Citytech Group Pvt. Ltd. - Ordinary Share 330,575 116.28 38,438,500 38,438,500 -
Total 1,775,204 182,901,400 182,901,400 -

The fair value of the investment in equity shares of unlisted companies has been considered at the book value of
NRs. 100 per share as its strategic investment with smooth operation of business. As a result, the Company has
valued the same at book value per share and also, classified the investment under Level 2 under the Fair Value
Hierarchy for financial instrument.
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D. Investment on Debentures

Fiscal Year 2023.24

Name of Company Unit Cost Price per Unit T°}\a,:,§3,s,:
Siddhartha Bank Debentures 2082 2,500 1000.00 2,500,000
Goodwill Finance Debenture 2083 2,521 1000.00 2,521,000
8.5% Nepal Bank Ltd Debenture 2087 12,500 850.26 10,628,212
8.5% GBIME Debenture 2086/87 18,300 850.26 15,559,692
10.50% Century Debenture 2088 2,500 1000.00 2,500,000
10.75% SBL Debenture 2089 4,863 1000.00 4,863,000
10.50% BOK Debenture 2086 (ka) 4,703 1000.00 4,703,000
10.5% Himalayan Bank Bond 2086 5,000 1000.00 5,000,000
11% LBBL Debenture 2089 25,000 1000.00 25,000,000
Total 80,387 75,774,904
Fiscal Year 2022.23
T Unit Cost Price per Unit To}.\ar:1g3rs‘:
Siddhartha Bank Debentures 2082 2,500 1000.00 2,500,000
Sunrise Debenture 2080 2,500 1000.00 2,500,000
Goodwill Finance Debenture 2083 2,521 1000.00 2,521,000
8.5% Nepal Bank Ltd Debenture 2087 12,500 850.26 10,628,212
8.5% GBIME Debenture 2086/87 18,300 850.26 15,559,692
10.50% Century Debenture 2088 2,500 1000.00 2,500,000
10.75% SBL Debenture 2089 4,863 1000.00 4,863,000
10.50% BOK Debenture 2086 (ka) 4,703 1000.00 4,703,000
10.5% Himalayan Bank Bond 2086 5,000 1000.00 5,000,000
11% LBBL Debenture 2089 25,000 1000.00 25,000,000
Total 80,387 75,774,904

E. Investment on Fixed Deposit

Fiscal Year 2022.23 Fiscal Year 2021.22

Name of Company

Amount Amount
Fixed Deposit with Commercial Banks 95,000,000 0
Fixed Deposit with Development Banks 440,990,000 510,500,000
Fixed Deposit at Finance Companies 379,000,000 623,500,000
Total Fixed Deposit 914,990,000 1,134,000,000

15.3 Seed Capital Investment

The Company is the Fund Manager and Depository and its holding company, Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited
is the Sponsor of scheme, viz. NIBL Pragati Fund, NIBL Sahabhagita Fund, NIBL Samriddhi Fund Il and NIBL
Growth Fund under NIBL Mutual Fund and Mega Mutual Fund — 1 under Mega Mutual Fund. The Company has
invested 1% of the Fund under NIBL Mutual Fund as seed capital. As a close ended fund and open-ended fund,
the scheme is required to be held till the maturity date. Although there is no regulatory requirement that restricts
the Fund manager to transfer and sale of this investment in seed capital, the Company has considered to hold the
investment till the maturity. The investments are classified as held for trading and is measured at fair value through
profit or loss statement.

16. Risk Management

The company is exposed to various risks in nature of activities it carries. These risks particularly include market risk and
interest rate risk. The company's objective of managing risk is for the protection and creation of shareholders and investors
value. The company's investment policy has established a risk management framework, which is the continuous process
of identification, measurement, monitoring and control of risks.

Risk management structure

The board of directors is ultimately responsible for the overall risk management. The management of the company has
been delegated and instructed for the responsibility for identifying and controlling risks of the company.
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Risk measurement and reporting system

The company uses various techniques to identify and measure the risks. These measures reflect the company's
philosophy of management and risk tolerance as determined by the management. Determination of risk tolerance level is
the judgement, philosophy and actions of the management in response to the circumstances in given environment. The
management uses various tools and methods to measure and monitor the risks in relation to the aggregate risk across all
risk type and activities.

Following are three broad methods used by the company.

Risk mitigation

The company's investment and risk management committee decides the risk management framework and guidelines that
encompasses overall investment strategy, limit and tolerance of risk. The company uses other instruments for trading and
risk management purpose.

Excessive risk concentration

Concentration risk arises when a number of financial instruments are entered with similar or identical characteristics.
Those characteristics may be identified as sector of business; same counterparty, or have similar economic features that
are similarly affected by the changes in economic, political or typical industrial and other conditions. To avoid excessive
concentration risk, the Company focuses on managing diversified portfolio.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flow of financial instrument will change due to changes in market
variables such as interest rates, equity prices. The maximum risk resulting from financial instruments the company held
equals their fair value.

(a) Pricerisk
Price risk is the risk of unfavourable changes in fair value of instruments as a result of changes in the level of equity
indices and the value of individual instruments. The company manages prices risk by investing in a variety of scrips
in a particular sector and diversifying investment in particular sector.

(b) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility of changes in interest rate which will affect the future cash flow or fair value
of financial instrument. The company makes investment in fixed income securities and demand deposits in bank. The
interest income from such instruments will be affected by the changes in interest rate. The company's demand deposit
only is exposed to the interest rate risk.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its obligation in
full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous.

The company is exposed to settlement of operational obligations and investment commitments in portfolio companies.
The company policy to invest in listed securities in active trading market is readily disposable in normal market conditions
and hence is assumed highly liquid. Further the company has the ability to borrow in short term to ensure settlements.
No such borrowings have been raised during the year. The company does not have any foreign exchange currency risk
during the year

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligation resulting in financial loss to the
Company. Management of the Company determines the creditworthiness of counterparty as a mean of mitigating risk of
financial loss from defaults before entering into any business arrangement. Company's exposure to and the credibility of
counterparties are continuously monitored.

17. Current Assets

The company classifies assets as current when such asset is expected to be realized or consumed within twelve months
after the reporting period end and such assets are primarily held for ordinary purpose of business. Current assets of the
company have been classified into different group based on their nature of asset held. Following tables details the current
asset of the company.
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17.1 Trade Receivables, Advances and Deposits

These current assets include the assets directly held for the ordinary purpose of business. Following is the details.
Amount in NRs.

Particulars AS AT 15 July 2024 AS AT 16 July 2023
RTS Service Receivable 11,954,415 10,153,555
Underwriting & Issue Management Fee Receivables 17,216,364 15,780,795
Fund Management Fee Receivable 30,291,480 22,425,059
Fund Depository Fee Receivable 4,343,133 3,136,092
Other Sundry Receivables 3,307,886 1,927,266
Prepaid Expenses 16,128,473 8,411,309
Other Current Assets 12,414,286 4,379,094
PMS Income Receivables 2,883,742 9,743,615
DP Income Receivables 2,622,555 3,105,824
éﬂ:‘/gnce for unit purchase in Specialized Investment 65,000,000 2,997,055
Total 166,162,335 82,059,664

17.2 Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, Cash and cash equivalents includes cash balance in hand, demand
deposits with bank, other short term highly liquid investments with original maturity of three months or less. Following

is the details of cash and cash equivalents.
Amount in NRs.

Particulars AS AT 15 July 2024 AS AT 16 July 2023
Cash in Hand - -
Balance at Bank 159,313,874 138,857,577
Total 159,313,874 138,857,577

Restricted cash balances that are not available for use by the Company includes the amount collected from issue
managements and dividend warrant distribution amount. Following is the details of amount not available for use during
the reporting period.

The Company does not have amount of undrawn borrowing facilities that are available for use in future operating
activities or to settle capital commitments.

18. Lease, Commitments and Guarantees (Contingent Liabilities)

Determination of whether an arrangement contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception
of the lease.

The Company has an operating lease arrangement. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the
statement of profit or loss in the year which it becomes payable. Lease amount payable in respect of operating lease is:

Period Amount (NRs)

Upto 1 year

1-5 year

Above 5 years

Total -

Lease Liabilities for Right of use of assets

At the date of commencement, the company has recognized the right of use of assets and corresponding lease liability at
present value of the future lease payment discounted at rate of 10.00% p.a. over the lease period. The interest rate has been
assumed to be the effective rate of interest implicit in the lease for the purpose of discounting. Interest expense accrued on
lease liability, being a component of finance cost is presented separately as a charge in the statement of Profit or Loss.

Period AS AT 15 July 2024 AS AT 16 July 2023
Current lease liability - 315,985
Non-Current lease liability -
Total - 315,985

.............................
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Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events or present
obligations where the transfer of economic benefits is not probable or cannot be reliably measured. Capital Commitment
is the possible liability in the near future arising out of capital expenditure.

Following table details, the underwriting commitments issued for the IPOs as at end of reporting period.

Period AS AT 15 July 2024 AS AT 16 July 2023
Underwriting Commitment 2,198,112,999 1,958,343,228

19. Employment Benefits

The Company has schemes of employee benefits namely provident fund, employee gratuity and earned leave pay as per
Employee Service Bylaws, 2068.

Defined contribution plan - Provident fund and Gratuity

Under defined contribution plan, the Company makes payment of pre-determined amounts to separate fund and does not have
any legal or other obligation to pay additional amount. Contribution to defined contribution scheme is charged to statement
of profit or loss in the year to which they relate to as the company as no further defined obligation beyond such contribution.

The company and employee contribute 10% each on the salary of each employee to an approved Provident Fund
maintained at NIBL Retirement Fund.

From Bhadra 19, 2074, the Company has contributed the monthly gratuity liability of 8.33% of the basic salary in the
respective retirement fund account of the employees with NIBL Retirement Fund as per the Labour Act 2074 by charge to
statement of profit or loss. The total charge for the year amounts to NRs. 2,794,347 (2022.23 NRs. 2,108,824).

Defined benefit plan - Leave Pay

The Company provides for defined benefit in form of leave pay. The liabilities or asset recognized in the statement of
financial position in respect of defined benefit obligation at the end of the presorting period less fair value of plan assets.

These defined benefit obligations are measured on the present value of the expected future payments to be made in
respect of services rendered by the employees upto the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method.
Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the
Statement of Profit or Loss. These benefits are unfunded.

The characteristics of leave plan are as below:

Home Leave Plan Features

Salary for Encashment Salary as defined by Company Policy

Benefit Payable on Death or Resignation / Withdrawal or Retirement
Maximum Accumulation Home Leaves upto 60 days

Encashment Formula Leave Days * Salary / Leave Denominator
Leave Denominator Employee (30)

Leaves Credited Homely Home Leaves of 18 days

Retirement Age 60 Years

Sick leave Plan Features

Salary for Encashment Salary as defined by Company Policy

Benefit Payable on Death or Resignation / Withdrawal or Retirement
Maximum Accumulation Sick Leaves upto 30 days

Encashment Formula Leave Days * Salary / Leave Denominator
Leave Denominator Employee (30)

Leaves Credited Homely Home Leaves of 15 days

Retirement Age 60 Years

The summary of the employee data for valuation is as follows:

Particulars 2024 July 15 (Amount “NRs.”) 2023 July 16 (Amount “NRs.”)
Number of Employees 114 118
Average Age (Years) 32.07 31.83
Total Leave Days* for Home Leave 949 1,505
Total Leave Days* for Sick Leave 1515 1,682

* Total leave days are considered after maximum accumulation
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Age wise distribution of data

Age Band 2024 July 15 2023 July 16

Number of Employees Percentage Number of Employees Percentage
<25 18 15.79% 18 15.25%
26 - 35 65 57.02% 69 58.47%
36 —45 25 21.93% 26 22.03%
46 — 55 5 4.39% 4 3.39%
> 55 1 0.88% 1 0.85%
Total 114 100% 118 100%

The summary of the assumptions used in the valuations is given below:

a) Financial Assumptions:

Particulars 2024 July 15 2023 July 16
Discount Rate 9.00% 8.50%
Salary Growth Rate 9.25% 9.25%

b) Demographic Assumptions:
Withdrawal Rates (p.a.)

Age Band 2024 July 15 2023 July 16
25 & Below 18.00% 18.00%
26 to 35 18.00% 18.00%
36 to 45 18.00% 18.00%
46 to 55 18.00% 18.00%
56 & above 18.00% 18.00%

c) Mortality Rates:
Nepali Assured Lives Mortality 2009 Table: Sample Rates of Nepali Assured Lives Mortality

Age (in years) 2024 July 15 2023 July 16
20 0.103% 0.103%
30 0.122% 0.122%
40 0.220% 0.220%
50 0.572% 0.572%
60 1.438% 1.438%

Employee Benefits liabilities of the company are unfunded.

Valuation Results:

The assumptions and methodology used in actuarial valuation are consistent with the requirements of Nepal Accounting
Standard NAS 19 and the results are particularly sensitive to some assumptions such as the discount rate, level of
salary inflation and level of assumed mortality. Base on above stated assumptions, the actuarial value of Defined Benefit
Obligation calculated and the amount to be provided in the Balance Sheet as ‘Provision towards Home Leave Benefits
Liability’ and as ‘Provision towards Sick Leave Benefits Liability’ as at the reporting period are as below:

Particulars 2024 July 15 (Amount) 2023 July 16 (Amount)
Provision towards Home Leave Benefits Liability 897,446 1,336,186
Provision towards Sick Leave Benefits Liability 1,295,097 1,361,179
Total 2,192,543 2,697,365

The bifurcation of liability is as below:

Particulars 2024 July 15 (Amount) 2023 July 16 (Amount)
Provision towards Home Leave Benefits Liability

a) Current Liability 161,184 255,004

b) Non — Current Liability 736,261 1,081,182

Total 897,446 1,336,186

Provision towards Sick Leave Benefits Liability

a) Current Liability 237,305 251,813

b) Non — Current Liability 1,057,792 1,109,366

Total 1,295,097 1,361,179
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The reconciliation of defined benefit obligation in regard to provision towards Home Leave Benefits Liability and Provision
towards Sick Leave Benefits Liability are as below:

Particulars 2024 July 15 (Amount) 2023 July 16 (Amount)
For Provision towards Home Leave Benefits Liability

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 13,36,186 953,443
Service Cost

a. Current Service Cost 160,625 113,626
Interest Cost 1,13,576 81,043
Benefit Payments directly by Employer (727,317) (376,872)
Actuarial Loss (Gain) — Experience (37,522) 564,946
Actuarial Loss (Gain) — Financial (23,146) -
Total Actuarial Loss (Gain) 14,376 564,946
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 897,446 1,336,186

For Provision towards Sick Leave Benefits Liability

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 1,361,179 1,209,381
Service Cost

a. Current Service Cost 126,448 60,026
Interest Cost 115,700 102,797
Benefit Payments directly by Employer (148,695) (148,563)
Actuarial Loss (Gain) — Experience (126,335) 137,538
Actuarial Loss (Gain) — Financial (33,201)

Total Actuarial Loss (Gain) (159,536) 137,538
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 1,295,097 1,361,179

The Expected Future Cash flows for Next 10 years in regard to provision towards Home Leave Benefits Liability and
Provision towards Sick Leave Benefits Liability are as below:

Particulars 2024 July 151 (ZAATgr:lt?lts) 2023 July 161(2A|\r,1|1:r:1trr1‘ts)
For Provision towards Home Leave Benefits Liability

Year 1 175,692 276,679
Year 2 157,207 223,903
Year 3 140,664 200,351
Year 4 125,854 179,266
Year 5 112,589 160,386
Year 6-10 407,849 581,138
For Provision towards Sick Leave Benefits Liability

Year 1 258,662 273,217
Year 2 225,956 229,680
Year 3 202,165 205,518
Year 4 180,866 183,890
Year 5 161,795 164,527
Year 6-10 586,658 596,190

The sensitivity to Key assumptions, in regard to Provision towards Home Leave Benefits Liability and Provision towards
Sick Leave Benefit Liability are as below:

Particulars 2024 July 15 (Amount) 2023 July 16 (Amount)

Provision towards Home Leave Benefits Liability
Discount Rate Sensitivity

Increase by 1% 854,382 1,271,411
(% change) -4.80% -4.85%
Decrease by 1% 944,919 1,407,760
(% change) 5.29% 5.36%

Salary Growth Rate Sensitivity

Increase by 1% 935,789 1,393,808
(% change) 4.27% 4.31%
Decrease by 1% 861,987 1,283,012
(% change) -3.95% -3.98%
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Withdrawal Rate (W.R.) Sensitivity

Increase by 1% 896,886 1,333,662
(% change) -0.06% -0.19%
Decrease by 1% 898,063 1,338,976
(% change) 0.07% 0.21%

Provision towards Sick Leave Benefits Liability
Discount Rate Sensitivity

Increase by 1% 1,233,308 1,294,748
(% change) -4.77% -4.88%
Decrease by 1% 1,363,186 1,434,618
(% change) 5.26% 5.40%

Salary Growth Rate Sensitivity

Increase by 1% 1,350,018 1,420,390
(% change) 4.24% 4.35%
Decrease by 1% 1,244,290 1,306,561
(% change) -3.92% -4.01%

Withdrawal Rate (W.R.) Sensitivity

Increase by 1% 1,294,298 1,358,579
(% change) -0.06% -0.19%
Decrease by 1% 1,295,977 1,364,058
(% change) 0.07% 0.21%

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefit includes any benefits accruing to employee in respect of wages, salaries, allowances and
other pay in the period of related service. Short term employee benefits are charged to statement of profit or loss in period
which service are rendered by the employee.

Other benefits include various types of loan to its staffs at prescribed rates as per the provisions of Employees' Byelaws of
the Company. The types of staff's loans are namely EMI Loan (provided at base rate of Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd.)
and Housing Loan (Tied up with insurance policy). Difference between the fair value of loan given to employee and loan
amount given to employee at lower interest rate as compared to market interest rate are charged to statement of profit or
loss as employee benefits.

Employee Bonus Expenses: Employee Bonus Expenses has been provided on the basis of profit before staff bonus and
tax ensuing Bonus Act, 2030.

20. Provision and contingencies

Provisions comprise liabilities of uncertain timing or amount. Provisions are recognized when the company has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to be settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably
not require an outflow of resources or an obligation for which the future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable
certainty. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote,
no provision or disclosure is made.

Loss contingencies arising from claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. are recorded when it is probable that
a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

Provision for expenses of NRs. 2,631,180 has been recognized at the end of reporting period. The company does not have
any contingent liabilities at the reporting period end.
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The details of Provisions are as below:

Particulars 2024 July 15 (Amount) 2023 July 16 (Amount)
Provision for Other Expenses 1,501,655 1,711,821
Provision for Possible Liabilities and Debts 119,359 919,359
Total 1,621,014 2,631,180

21. Related Party Transactions

A person or entity is considered a related party if it:
© controls or has significant influence to the Company
© s subsidiary, joint venture, associates or in which the Company can have significant influence
© is member of key management personnel of the company or its parent

(A) Nature of Relationship and Name of Related Parties

- Parent Company: Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd.

- Associate Company:

Particular Percentage of Shareholding
M Nepal Ltd. 22.24%
H. Medical and Diagnostic Pvt. Ltd. 20.00%

- Sister Company: NIMB Stock Markets Ltd.

- Board of Directors:

Mr. Sachin Tibrewal Chairman

Mrs. Srijana Pandey Director

Mr. Rabindra Bhattarai Independent Director
Mr. Ananda Kumar Bhattarai Independent Director

Mr. Sachin Tibrewal, Mr. Deepak Kumar Shrestha and Mrs. Srijana Pandey have been appointed by the Parent
Company. Independent directors have been appointed by existing Board of Directors from AGM.

- Transaction with Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors are entitled to meeting allowances as per the Articles of Association of the Company. As
per amended Atrticles of Association as approved by Special General Meeting dated 2074 Mangsir 29, meeting
allowances per meeting per member of Board of Directors has been increased to NRs. 12,000 for Chairman and
NRs. 10,000 for other directors from existing allowance of NRs 8,000. No other benefits or allowances are provided
to the board of directors. During the year, NRs 750,000 has been paid as meeting allowances of Board of Directors
for Fourteen BOD meeting. The Meeting Allowances per meeting per member of Board of Directors of NRs. 10,000
has been provided for HR Committee Meeting and Investment Risk and Management Committee Meeting. During
the year, NRs 120,000 and NRs. 510,000 has been paid as meeting allowances per member of Board of Directors for
Six HR Committee meeting and Eighteen Investment Risk and Management Committee Meeting respectively. The
Meeting Allowances per meeting per member of NRs. 10,000 has been provided for SIF Advisory and Investment
Committee Meeting. During the year NRs. 360,000 has been paid as meeting allowances for 12 SIF committee
meeting.

- Key Management Personnel

Shivanth Bahadur Pandé Chief Executive Officer
Suvash Thapa Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Sachindra Dhungana General Manager

Chief Executive Officer has been deputed by the Parent Company and is entitled to monthly allowance of NRs.
160,000 (NRs. One Lakhs Sixty Thousand only). During the year, NRs. 2,080,000 (NRs. Twenty Lakhs Eighty only)
has been paid to the CEO as remuneration.

Deputy Chief Executive Officer has been deputed by the Parent Company and is entitled to monthly allowance of
NRs. 50,000 (NRs. Fifty Thousand only). During the year, NRs. 650,000 (NRs. Six Lakhs Fifty Thousand only) has
been paid to the DCEO as remuneration.
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Following is the key management compensation during the period.
Amount in NRs

FY 2023.24 FY 2022.23
Short term employee benefits
- Salary & Allowances including Dashain Allowance 8,303,286 6,943,024
Total Short Tern Employee Benefits (A) 8,303,286 6,943,024
Post-Employment Benefits
- Provident Fund 449,797 220,231
- Gratuity 374,680 183,453
- Leave Encashment 94,203 44,305
Total Post-Employment Benefits (B) 918,680 447,989
Total Benefits (A+B) 9,221,966 7,391,014

(B) Related party transactions
i Related Party Transactions with Parent

The following is the related party transactions with the Parent
Amount in NRs

SN Particular FY 202324 FY2022.23 hature of Transac- Remarks
1 Deposit at NIMB (Operating account) 1,679,381 2,673,779 Bank Deposit
2 Deposit at NIMB (Other bank balances) 92,583,880 43,995,393 Bank Deposit

Interest earned from account maintained at
3 NIBL (Operating Account) and Fixed Deposit 4,800,525 4,800,525 Interest Income
Account

4  Registrar to Share Fee from holding company 500,000 500,000 Share Registrar Income

Staff from the
holding company
has been deputed
1,306,807 1,249,286 Staff Expenses as RTA/RTS
officer of the
company for day
to day operations.

DP Commission Paid during the
Expenses year.

7  Service Level Agreement (SLA). 600,000 600,000 SLA Expenses Sgédr during the

5 Human Resource Expenses — expenses
reimbursed

6 Depository Participant Fee 602,488 617,670

ii. Related Party Transactions with NIBL Mutual Funds and Mega Mutual Fund
The Company is also fund manager and mutual fund depository for NIBL mutual fund and currently manages Four
schemes namely NIBL Pragati Fund, NIBL Sahabhagita Fund, NIBL Samriddhi Fund Il and NIBL Growth Fund
under NIBL Mutual Fund and Mega Mutual Fund — 1 under Mega Mutual Fund. The following is the related party
payment during the period.
Amount in NRs

Fiscal Year 2023.24

Related Party

Relation Transaction Amount g:lt:;igd'" Tlga:::;ﬁt?;n
NIBL Pragati Fund Fund Manager 6,166,045 - Receivable
NIBL Sahabhagita Fund Fund Manager 41,672,547 6,354,632 Receivable
NIBL Samriddhi Fund — Il Fund Manager 22,124,041 5,724,620 Receivable
NIBL Growth Fund Fund Manager 11,063,472 5,683,763 Receivable
Mega Mutual Fund - 1 Fund Manager 677,592 4,639,766 Receivable

Amount in NRs

Fiscal Year 2022.23

Related Party

Relation Transaction Amount g:::;igd'" T:\laarl::;gt‘i);n
NIBL Pragati Fund Fund Manager 12,875,825 3,258,370 Receivable
NIBL Sahabhagita Fund Fund Manager 17,506,437 6,354,632 Receivable
NIBL Samriddhi Fund — Il Fund Manager 22,124,041 5,724,620 Receivable
NIBL Growth Fund Fund Manager 11,063,472 5,683,763 Receivable
Mega Mutual Fund - 1 Fund Manager 677,592 4,539,766 Receivable

The company has not provided any provision or impairment allowances on such outstanding related party balances
and has not recognized any expenses for bad or doubtful debts on such balance. The company has not obtained
any guarantee on such transactions.
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iii. Related Party Transactions with M Nepal Ltd.

During the year, the company has advance receivable of NRs. 1,000,000 (2021.22 NRs. 1,000,000) as the advance
for expenses to M Nepal Ltd.

iv.  Related Party Transactions with Mega Stock Markets Ltd.

The following is the related party payment during the period, with its sister company, Mega Stock Markets Ltd.

Amount in NRs

Related Party

Fiscal Year 2023.24

Transaction Amount

Outstandin Balance Nature of Transaction

NIMB Stock Markets Ltd.

814,537

814,537 Receivables

Amount in NRs

Related Party

Fiscal Year 2022.23

Transaction Amount

Outstandin Balance Nature of Transaction

Mega Stock Markets Ltd.

112,057 Receivables

22. Events after the Reporting Period

The Company follows NAS 10 - Events after the Reporting Period for accounting and reporting of events that occur
after the reporting period, which requires to classify those events into adjusting and non-adjusting events.

There are no material events either adjusting or non-adjusting events for the reporting period end.

Sachin Tibrewal
Chairman

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai
Director

Bishal Raj Paudyal
CFO

Date: 13th November, 2024

Srijana Pandey
Director

Shivanth Bahadur Pandé
Chief Executive Officer

Ibika Adhikari
Head- Accounts

Rabindra Bhattarai

As per our report of even date,
Manish Amatya, FCA

Director Partner

Sachindra Dhungana

GM

N. Amatya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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QAIMB A(I:tED Managing shares. Managing investments.

NIBL Sahabhagita Fund

NIBL Sahabhagita Fund (the Scheme) under NIBL Mutual Fund (the Fund) is registered under Mutual Fund Regulations,
2067 as Nepal's first Open Ended Mutual Fund, a diversified investment scheme. The primary objective of the scheme
is to explore and establish open ended Mutual Fund in Nepalese Capital Market and provide investor’s with alternative
investment instrument across the country with ease of investment and liquidity. This scheme also encourages the con-
version of savings into investments regularly for long period of time. On the other side, the investment objective of the
scheme is to provide steady returns to unit-holders over the long period of time.

Fund NIBL Mutual Fund
Scheme NIBL Sahabhagita Fund
Fund Sponsor Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited (NIMB)

(Then Nepal Investment Bank Ltd.)
(Licensed by NRB as Class A bank)

Fund Management NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Then NIBL Ace Capital Ltd.)
(A subsidiary of Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited)

Fund Supervisors Dr. Bimal Prasad Koirala
Dr. Shambhu Ram Simkhada
Dr. Durgesh Man Singh
CA. Jitendra Bahadur Rajbhandari

Mr. Raju Nepal

Total Authorized Units of Scheme 400,000,000 (Four Hundred Million Units)

Outstanding Units of Scheme 399,722,785 (Three Hundred ninety nine Million, Seven Hundred Twenty
Two Thousand, Seven Hundred Eighty Five)

Total Unit Capital NPR. 3,997,227,847 (Three Billion Nine Hundred Ninety Seven Million

Two Hundred Twenty Seven ThousandEight Hundred Forty Seven)

Scheme type Open-ended
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INDéPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE UNIT HOLDERS OF NIBL SAHABHAGITA FUND

Report on the "Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NIBL SAHABHAGITA FUND (“the Mutual Fund")
which comprise the statement of financial position as ot Ashad 31, 2081 [July 15, 2024, the statement of profit
or loss, the statement of other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in unit holders fund & the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

In our opinion and te the best of our information and according te the explanations given to us, the accompanying
financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the financial position of the Mutual
Fund as at Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024) and its financial performance, changes in Unit Holders Fund and its
cash flows for the year then ended on that date in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards(NFRSs)
and comply with Securities Act 2063, Security Board Regulation 2064, Mutual Fund Regualtions 2067, Mutual
Fund Guidelines 2069 and other prevailing legislations.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Qur responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Mutual Fund in accordance with the Institute of Chartered
Accountant of Nepal's code of ethics for professional accountants together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities

in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidences we have obtained are sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of the audit of

the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do net provide « separate
opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

S.N Key Audit Matters ' Our Audit Apporach and Response

1 Investment Valuation Our audit approach regarding valuation of investment,
- . Investment of Mutual fund comprises  impairment, its accounting included:
of investments in listed securities,

initial public offerings, debentures - We ensured classifications and accounting of
and fixed deposits. The investments made by Fund and its valuation
classifications,  valuations  and were in accordance to NFRS @ and NFRS 13
disclosures of the aforesaid issued by Accounting Standard Board of Nepal.
investment shall be done in line with

NFRS @ Financial Instruments; NFRS - For the investment made on quoted equity
13 Fair Value Measurements; NFRS instruments, we ensured that fair valuation has
7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures. been done at the closing transaction rate in

NEPSE as on 31.03.2081.




- In view of significance of amount of
investment and complexity involved
in valuation and treatment of such
investments, we have considered it
as key audit matters in our audit.

2 Compliances

- Mutual Fund requires to comply with Qur  audit  approach regarding compliance with
the Securities Act 2063, Mutual various laws and regulations includes the following
Fund Regulation 2067, Mutual Fund ameng other things:

Guidelines 2069.

- Ensured the investment made by the fund in

- In view of Significance of various securities were within the limit *of
Compliance that needs to be threshold limit prescribed by Mutual Fund
adhered, we have considered as Regulations 2067 (fourth amendment).

key audit matters in our audit.
- Ensured the fees related to supervisor, Fund
manager and Depository read with Section 23
of the regulations has been complied with.

Other informuiion

The directors dre responsible for the other information presented in the Mutual Fund's annual report. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. We have nothing to report in this respect.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the prepearation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS), and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Mutual Fund's ability to
continue as a geing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Mutual Fund or fo cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Mutual Fund's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives, are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is o high level of assurance, but is not @ guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with NSAs will always detect @ material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due tofraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evide,




e} The scheme has effective interal audit system.

] The funds under the scheme have been invesied in accordance with the mutual fund regulations 2067,

g} The operation of the scheme were found satisfactory.

For MN. B. 5. M. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
= AL

CA. Rajesh Kumar
Partner
Date': 2024/09/05

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
UDIMN: 240906.CAC'0546LW3MM



NIBL Sahabhagita Fund

(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIMB Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July, 2024)

In NPR

Particulars Notes to Current Year Previous Year

Account
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.2 1,426,001,212 517,457,251
Other Current Assets 4.5 141,111,682 29,347,509
Financial Assets Held at Amortized Cost 13 573,426,418 425,568,810
Financial Assets Held at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 4.6 2,217,387,725 1,027,484,342
Total 4,357,927,037 1,999,857,912
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accrued Expenses & Other Payables 5.2 146,359,462 12,344,158
Liabilities (Excluding Net Assets Attributable to 146,359,462 12,344,158
Unitholders)
Unit Holder's Funds
Net Assets Attributable to Unit Holders 6 4,211,567,575 1,987,513,754

Total 4,357,927,037 1,999,857,912
Outstanding Units 399,722,785 186,154,193
NAV per Unit 10.54 10.68

Schedules and Explanatory Notes forms integral part of Statement of Position

On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Fund Management Company)

Sachin Tibrewal
Chairman

Srijana Pandey
Director

Shivanth Bahadur Pandé
Chief Executive Officer

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai
Director

Shulav Shrestha
Head-Investment Banking

: 5th September, 2024
: Kathmandu

Date
Place

Rabindra Bhattarai
Director

Sachindra Dhungana
GM

As per our report of even date,
CA. Rajesh Kumar Sah

Partner

N. B. S. M. & Associates,
Chartered Accountants

NIMB ACE
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NIBL Sahabhagita Fund

(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIMB Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Period from 1st Shrawan 2080 to 31st Ashad 2081 (17th July 2023 to 15th July 2024)

In NPR
Particulars Notes to Account Current Year Previous Year
Income
Interest Income 7.2 80,031,197 46,980,245
Dividend Income 7.3 9,537,022 2,340,118
Underwriting Incomes 7.4 1,000,000 325,000
Net Gains/(Losses) on Financial Assets at Fair Value 14(b) 104,254,579 70,594,493
through Proift or loss
Exit Load Incomes 1,069,581 364,621
Other Income - 9,835
Total 195,892,379 120,614,312
Expenses and Losses
Fund Management Fees 8.1 35,923,768 15,091,756
Depositary Fees 8.1 5,747,803 2,414,681
Fund Supervisors Fees 8.1 3,448,682 1,448,809
Scheme Listing & Registration Charge- SEBON 2,000,000 1,000,000
Publication Expenses 199,671 304,035
Audit Fees 113,000 113,000
Cerification Charge - 56,500
Bank Charges 26,608 13,092
Book Building Expenses-NEPSE 5,000 5,000
Communication Expenses 88,406 510,395
Annual Operating Expenses 605,600 419,440
DP & Other Expenses 18,993 14,831
Total expenses 48,177,531 21,391,539
Net Gains/(Losses) for the Period 147,714,848 99,222,773
Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the period 147,714,848 99,222,773

On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Fund Management Company)

Sachin Tibrewal
Chairman

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai
Director

Shulav Shrestha
Head-Investment Banking

Date :5th September, 2024
Place :Kathmandu

‘ NIMB ACE
CAPITAL LIMITED

Srijana Pandey
Director

Shivanth Bahadur Pandée
Chief Executive Officer

12* Annual Report 2023/2024

Rabindra Bhattarai
Director

Sachindra Dhungana
GM

As per our report of even date,

CA. Rajesh Kumar Sah
Partner

N. B. S. M. & Associates,
Chartered Accountants



NIBL Sahabhagita Fund

(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIMB Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement of Cash Flow

For the Period from 1st Shrawan 2080 to 31st Ashad 2081 (17th July 2023 to 15th July 2024)

In NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year 147,714,848 99,222,773
Adjustments For :
Increase/Decrease in Unrealised (gain)/loss on financial assets held for (13,765,788) (21,977,200)
trading purposes
Increase/(Decrease) in Liabilities 134,015,304 9,138,158

(Increase)/Decrease in Share

(1,176,137,594)

(674,511,315)

(Increase)/Decrease in Debenture

(23,857,608)

(85,114,000)

(Increase)/Decrease in Fixed Deposit

(124,000,000)

(185,500,000)

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets

(111,764,174)

(20,782,462)

Net Cash Generated /(used) in Operations (1)

(1,167,795,012)

(879,524,046)

B. Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Issue of Unit Capital

2,152,966,265

1,260,138,183

Dividend Paid during the year

(76,627,292)

(50,424,752)

Net Cash Generated / (used) in financing (2) 2,076,338,973 1,209,713,431
C. Cash Flow from Investing Activities - -
Net cash generated/(used) in investing (3) - -
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1+2+3) 908,543,961 330,189,385
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the year/period 517,457,251 187,267,866
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of period 1,426,001,212 517,457,251
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balance with Banks 1,426,001,212 517,457,251

On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Fund Management Company)

Sachin Tibrewal Srijana Pandey

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai Shivanth Bahadur Pandé
Director Chief Executive Officer GM

Shulav Shrestha
Head-Investment Banking

Date :5th September, 2024
Place :Kathmandu

Rabindra Bhattarai
Chairman Director Director

Sachindra Dhungana

As per our report of even date,
CA. Rajesh Kumar Sah

Partner

N. B. S. M. & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
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NIBL Sahabhagita Fund

(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIMB Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement of Change in Unitholder's Fund
For the Period from 1st Shrawan 2080 to 31st Ashad 2081 (17th July 2023 to 15th July 2024)

In NPR

Particulars Notes to Account Current Year Previous Year
Unit Holders' Fund at the Beginning of the Year/Period 1,987,513,754 678,577,550 46,980,245
Issue of Unit Capital 2,135,685,917 1,228,596,581 2,340,118
Unit Reserve Capital 17,280,348 31,541,602 325,000
Increase in Net Assets Attributable to Unit Holders: 70,594,493

Net Gains/(Losses) for the Period 147,714,848 99,222,773 364,621

Other Comprehensive Income - - 9,835
Distribution to Unit Holders' (76,627,292) (50,424,752) 2,414,681
Unit Holders' Fund at the End of the Year/Period 4,211,567,575 1,987,513,754 1,448,809

On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Fund Management Company)

As per our report of even date,

Sachin Tibrewal Srijana Pandey Rabindra Bhattarai CA. Rajesh Kumar Sah
Chairman Director Director Partner
Ananda Kumar Bhattarai Shivanth Bahadur Pandé Sachindra Dhungana N. B. 5. M. & Associates,

Director Chief Executive Officer GM Chartered Accountants

Shulav Shrestha
Head-Investment Banking

Date :5th September, 2024
Place :Kathmandu

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn

70 ‘L“JMEL&% 12* Annual Report 2023/2024




e afgEy
MUTOAL FUNRD
S|P oD

NIBL SAHABHAGITA FUND
NIBL Franfml Bas

As Per Mutual Fund Regulstions, 2067)

Systematic Ilwlﬂll\.n' Plan

+977-01-4525280, +977-01-4005080

info@nimbacecapital.com CNAIPMA?LQISEED Wholly owned * NIMB

subsidiary of e e A e B
) ) Managing Shares. Managing Investments.
www.nimbacecapital.com

INVESTMENT MEGA BANK UD.




CNJPMB A‘&E Managing shares. Managing investments.

NIBL Samriddhi Fund-Ii

NIBL Samriddhi Fund-Il (the Scheme), under NIBL Mutual Fund (the Fund), is a closed-end, diversified investment
scheme registered under the Mutual Fund Regulations, 2067. The Fund aims to generate returns by investing in a mix of
securities, including equities, equity-related instruments, and fixed income instruments, in accordance with prevailing rules
and regulations governing mutual funds.

The Scheme commenced operations on 24th Baishakh 2078 (Scheme allotment date) and has a maturity period of
10 years, concluding on 23rd Baishakh 2088. It was listed on NEPSE on 11th Ashad 2078. The Scheme's Financial
Statements for the fiscal year 2080/81 were approved by the Board of Directors of NIMB Ace Capital Ltd. (formerly NIBL
Ace Capital Ltd.) on 20th Bhadra 2081, in its capacity as the Fund Management and Depository Company. Additionally,
the Fund Supervisors’ consent for the approved Financial Statements has been duly obtained.

Fund NIBL Mutual Fund
Scheme NIBL Samriddhi Fund- II
Fund Sponsor Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited (NIMB)

(Then Nepal Investment Bank Ltd.)
(Licensed by NRB as Class A bank)

Fund Management NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Then NIBL Ace Capital Ltd.)
(A subsidiary of Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited)

Fund Supervisors Dr. Bimal Prasad Koirala
Dr. Shambhu Ram Simkhada
Dr. Durgesh Man Singh
CA. Jitendra Bahadur Rajbhandari

Mr. Raju Nepal
Total Units of Scheme 150,000,000 (One Hundred Fifty Million Units)
Total Unit Capital NPR 1,500,000,000 (NPR One Billion Five Hundred Million)
Scheme type Close-ended
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M.B. SHRESTHA & CO. g T

Chartered Accountants E—lnail : mbsshresthaic gmail.com
: G.P.O. Box: 720

Sankhamul Road = s

New Baneshwar athmandu, Nepal,

09 September 2024

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE UNIT HOLDERS OF NIBL SAMRIDDHI FUND - I

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

A. Opinion

¥

We have audiled the accompanying financial statements of NIBL Samriddhi Fund-Il {*the Mutual
Fund”) which comprise the stalement of financial position as at 31 Ashadh 2081 (corresponding to
15 July 2024), the stalement of profil or loss, the statement of other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in unit holders fund and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given lo us, the
financial statements referred to above, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Mutual Fund as of 31 Ashadh 2081 (15 July 2024), and its performances, changes in Unit
Holders Fund and its cash flows for the year ended on that date in conformity with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS) and comply with Securities Act 2063, Se?:urity Board Regulation
2064, Mutual Fund Regulations 2067 and Mutual Fund Guidelines 2069 and other prevailing
legislations.

B. Basis for Opinion

3

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Mutual Fund in
accordance with the Handbook of The Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the ICAN’s Handbook of The Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants,
We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis
for our opinion.

C. Key Audit Matters

B

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and

we do nol provide a separate opinion on these matters,
AT R
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Key Audit Matters

Investment Decisions by the Fund Manager
- The mutual fund managar makes invesiments
on behalf of unitholders. The investment
decisions as such shape a material portion of
the scheme.

Fees Payable to Supervisor, Manager and
Depository

- The material expenses for 2 mutual fund in

Nepal largely relate to the fees payable to the

Independent Auditor's Report
NIBL Samriddhi Fund -if

How the scope of our audit responded to
the Key Audit Matter

Qur procedures included but were not limited
to:

- Evaluate the results and returns from the
investments on an average.

- On a sample basis, evaluate the
performance of the investments in
comparison to market returns.

Our procedures included but were not limited
lo:

- Review of the approved rates for the feas.

- Evaluale the periodic gross nel assets

2080-81

supervisors, manager and depository.

- Rule 23 of the Mutual Fund Regulations,
2067 (4th Amendment) issued by SEBON
specifies the maximum limil of the fees so
payable by a mutual fund scheme.

values factored to calculale the fees payable.

D. Other Information

6. The direclors are responsible for the other information presented in the Mutual Fund's annual
report. Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and
accordingly we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. We have nothing to
report in this respecl.

E. Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial

Statements

7. Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS), and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

8. In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Mutual
Fund's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern hasis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Mutual Fund or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

9. Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Mutual Fund's financial
reparting process.

F. Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

10. Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a malerial
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Independent Auditor's Report
NIBL Sarmriddhi Fund -if
2080-81
misstatemenl when il exists. Misstalements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decision of users taken on the basis of these financial slalements.
11. As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audil. We also:

1141 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whelher
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriale lo provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission,
misreprasentations, or the override of internal control. Evaluate appropriateness of
accounting policies used and reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the management.

11.2  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our audilor's report lo the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up-to the date of our auditor's report. However,
fulure events or conditions may cause the Mutual Fund to cease to continues as a going
concern.

11.3  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statemenis represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

12. We communicated with those charged with governance regarding, among other matlers, the
planned scope and timing of the audil and significant audil findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

13. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and lo communicate wilh them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear our independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

14. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significant in the audil of the financial statement of the current period and
therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matiers in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our reporl because the adverse

consequances of doing so would reasonable be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits

of such communication.

M.B. Shrestha & Co,
Chartered Accountants
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2080-81
G. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
15. On examination of the financial statements as aforesaid, we report that:

151 We have obtained all information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit as per NSA.

18.2  The stalement of financial position as al 31 Ashadh 2081 ( 15 July 2024) , the statement of
profit or loss, other comprehensive income, slatement of changes in Unit Holders fund and
statement of Cash flow for the year then ended on that date, and the attached summary of
significant accounting policies and notes to accounls deall and other explanatory
information (thereafter referred to as "the financial statements”) dealt with by this report are
prepared in accordance with Securities Act 2063, Security Board Regulation 2064, Mutual
Fund Regulations 2067 and Mutual Fund Guidelines 2069 and other prevailing legislations.

15.3  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Mutual
Fund, in so far as appears from our examination of those books of account and the financial
slatements dealt with by this reporl. are in agreemenl with lhe books of accounts.

15.4  Inour opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to
us and from our examination of the books of account of the Mutual Fund, we have not come
across the cases where the Board of Directors or the representative or any employee of
the Mutual Fund has acled deliberately contrary lo the provisions of the law relating lo
accounts or caused loss or damage to the Mutual Fund nor have, we been informed of any
such case by the management.

For and on behalf of,

M.B. Shrestha & Co. R

Chartered Accountants .:..;,.;'5““ 230 \
fa ; /
| ._l

g :

CA. Maheswarendra Bdr. Shrestha

Proprietor

UDIN: 240909CA001176DWJJ
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NIBL Samriddhi Fund-Il

(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIMB Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July, 2024)

In NPR

Particulars Notes to Current Year Previous Year

Account
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.2 42,863,956 108,794,217
Other Current Assets 4.6 20,921,560 18,682,961
Financial Assets Held at Amortized Cost 13 352,844,323 352,844,323
Financial Assets Held at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 4.7 1,036,351,178 917,143,553
Total 1,452,981,017 1,397,465,054
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accrued Expenses & Other Payables 5.2 15,372,023 6,634,735
Liabilities (Excluding Net Assets Attributable to 15,372,023 6,634,735
Unitholders)
Unit Holder's Funds
Net Assets Attributable to Unit Holders 6 1,437,608,994 1,390,830,319

Total

1,452,981,017

1,397,465,054

NAV per Unit

9.58

9.27

Schedules and Explanatory Notes forms integral part of Statement of Position

On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Fund Management Company)

Sachin Tibrewal
Chairman

Srijana Pandey
Director

Shivanth Bahadur Pandé
Chief Executive Officer

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai
Director

Shulav Shrestha
Head-Investment Banking

: 5th September, 2024
: Kathmandu

Date
Place

Rabindra Bhattarai
Director

Sachindra Dhungana
GM

As per our report of even date,
Maheswarendra Bahadur Shrestha, FCA

Proprietor
M. B. Shrestha & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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NIBL Samriddhi Fund-Il

(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIMB Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Period from 1st Shrawan 2080 to 31st Ashad 20801 (17th July 2023 to 15th July 2024)

In NPR
Particulars Notes to Account Current Year Previous Year
Income
Interest Income 7.2 45,413,981 51,303,105
Dividend Income 7.3 5,102,147 4,169,855
Net Profit/(Loss) on Financial Assets Held at Fair Value 14b 21,710,940 76,073,694
through Profit and Loss
Other Income = -
Total 72,227,068 131,546,654
Expenses and Losses
Fund Management fees 20,469,708 19,521,213
Depositary Fees 2,729,294 2,602,828
Fund Supervisors Fees 1,637,577 1,561,697
Publication Expenses 138,138 140,468
Listing Fees 50,000 50,000
DP Expense 300 150
Audit Fees 113,000 113,000
Bank Charges 4,176 5,485
Book Building Registration & AMC Expenses- NEPSE = 5,000
Other Expenses 600 -
Annual Service Charges on Software 135,600 99,440
CDS Dematerialisation Registration Fee 170,000 170,000
Total expenses 25,448,393 24,269,281
Net Gains/(Losses) for the Period 46,778,675 107,277,373
Other Comprehensive income - -
Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the period 46,778,675 107,277,373

On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Fund Management Company)

Sachin Tibrewal Srijana Pandey
Chairman Director

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai
Director Chief Executive Officer

Shulav Shrestha
Head-Investment Banking

Date :5th September, 2024
Place :Kathmandu
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Shivanth Bahadur Pandé

Rabindra Bhattarai
Director

Sachindra Dhungana

GM

As per our report of even date,

Maheswarendra Bahadur Shrestha, FCA

Proprietor
M. B. Shrestha & Co.

Chartered Accountants



NIBL Samriddhi Fund-Il

(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIMB Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Period from 1st Shrawan 2080 to 31st Ashad 2081 (17th July 2023 to 15th July 2024)

In NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year 46,778,675 107,277,373
Adjustments For :
Increase/Decrease in Unrealised (gain)/loss on financial assets held for (5,380,082) (48,152,335)
trading purposes
Increase/(Decrease) in Liabilities 8,737,288 4,431
(Increase)/Decrease in Share (113,827,543) (24,522,288)
(Increase)/Decrease in Debenture - (7,500,000)
(Increase)/Decrease in Fixed Deposit - (5,000,000)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets (2,238,599) 1,888,215
Net Cash Generated /(used) in Operations (1) (65,930,261) 23,995,396
B. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Issue of Unit Capital = -
Dividend Paid during the year = -
Net Cash Generated / (used) in financing (2) - -
C. Cash Flow from Investing Activities = -
Net cash generated/(used) in investing (3) - -
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1+2+3) (65,930,261) 23,995,396
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the year/period 108,794,217 84,798,821
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of period 42,863,956 108,794,217
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balance with Banks 42,863,956 108,794,217

On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Fund Management Company)

As per our report of even date,

Sachin Tibrewal
Chairman

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai
Director

Shulav Shrestha
Head-Investment Banking

Date :5th September, 2024

Place :Kathmandu

Srijana Pandey
Director

Shivanth Bahadur Pandé
Chief Executive Officer

Rabindra Bhattarai
Director

Sachindra Dhungana
GM

Maheswarendra Bahadur Shrestha, FCA
Proprietor

M. B. Shrestha & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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NIBL Samriddhi Fund-Il

(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIMB Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement in Changes in Unit holders' Fund
For the Period from 1st Shrawan 2080 to 31st Ashad 2081 (17th July 2023 to 15th July 2024)

In NPR

Particulars

Notes to Account

Current Year

Previous Year

Previous Year

Opening Balance

1,500,000,000

1,500,000,000

Issue of Unit Capital

Net Profit (Loss) Upto Last Year - 100,841,014 (317,288,068) (216,447,054)
Net Profit (Loss) During the year - 59,125,038 48,152,335 107,277,373
Dividend Paid - - - -
Balance as on 31/03/2080 1,500,000,000 159,966,052 (269,135,733) 1,390,830,319
Opening Balance 1,500,000,000 - - 1,500,000,000
Issue of Unit Capital - - - -
Net Profit (Loss) Upto Last Year - 159,966,052 (269,135,733) (109,169,681)
Net Profit (Loss) During the year - 41,398,593 5,380,082 46,778,675
Dividend Paid - - - -
Balance as on 31/03/2081 1,500,000,000 201,364,645 (263,755,651) 1,437,608,994

On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited

(Fund Management Company)

Sachin Tibrewal
Chairman

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai
Director

Shulav Shrestha
Head-Investment Banking

Date :5th September, 2024
Place :Kathmandu

‘ NIMB ACE
CAPITAL LIMITED

Srijana Pandey
Director

Shivanth Bahadur Pandé
Chief Executive Officer

12* Annual Report 2023/2024

Rabindra Bhattarai
Director

Sachindra Dhungana
GM

As per our report of even date,

Maheswarendra Bahadur Shrestha, FCA
Proprietor

M. B. Shrestha & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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NIMB ACE

CAPITAL LIMITED

Managing shares. Managing investments.

NIBL Growth Fund

NIBL Growth Fund (the Scheme) under NIBL Mutual Fund (the Fund) is registered under Mutual Fund Regulations, 2067
as a closed-end, diversified investment scheme. The objective of the Fund is to generate moderate steady returns with
minimizing high risks and focusing on the growth of the investment by investing in different financial instruments with
concentrating on selected sectors/instruments as allowed by prevailing rules/regulations on mutual fund. The Scheme
commenced its operation on 3rd Magh, 2079 B.S. (Scheme allotment date) with maturity period of 10 years (i.e. 2nd Magh,
2089 B.S.). It was listed on NEPSE on 24th Magh, 2079 B.S. The Scheme’s Financial Statements for the year 2080/81
were approved by the Board of Directors of the NIMB Ace Capital Limited (Then NIBL Ace Capital Ltd.) on 20th Bhadra,
2081. being the Fund Management and Depository Company. Similarly, the Fund Supervisors’ consent on the approved
Financial Statements has also been duly obtained.

Fund NIBL Mutual Fund
Scheme NIBL Growth Fund
Fund Sponsor Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited (NIMB)

(Then Mega Bank Nepal Ltd.)
(Licensed by NRB as Class 'A' Bank)

Fund Management NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Then NIBL Ace Capital Ltd.)
(A subsidiary of Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited)

Fund Supervisors Dr. Bimal Prasad Koirala
Dr. Shambhu Ram Simkhada
Dr. Durgesh Man Singh
CA. Jitendra Bahadur Rajbhandari

Mr. Raju Nepal
Total Units of Scheme 132,000,000 (One Hundred Thirty Two Million Units)
Total Unit Capital NPR 1,320,000,000 (One Billion Thirty-Two Hundred Million)
Scheme type Close-ended
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82 ‘L“JMEL&% 12* Annual Report 2023/2024




M.B. SHRESTHA & CO. L A 4 AN

Chartered Accountants fg‘gl 2 !}1jb_!isgws111a!_é-gll1aiI.com
Sankhamul Road l\l h i g:\ .N, 1
New Baneshwar athmandu. Nepal.

09 September 2024

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE UNIT HOLDERS OF NIBL GROWTH FUND

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
A. Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NIBL Growth Fund ("the Mutual Fund”)
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 Ashadh 2081 (correspanding to 15 July
2024), the statement of profit or loss, the statement of other comprehensive income, the statement
of changes in unit holders fund and the statemant of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
financial statements referred to above, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Mutual Fund as of 31 Ashadh 2081 (15 July 2024), and its performances, changes in Unit
Holders Fund and its cash flows for the year ended on that date in conformity with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS) and comply with Securities Act 2063, Security Board Regulation
2064, Mutual Fund Regulations 2067 and Mutual Fund Guidelines 2062 and other prevailing
legislations.

B. Basis for Qpinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
responsibilities under those slandards are further described in the Audilor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Mutual Fund in
accordance with the Handbook of The Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of The Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.

4.  We believe thal the audil evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate lo provide basis

for our opinion.
C. Key Audit Matters

5. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial stalements of the current period. These matlers were addressed in the

context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, apg in forming our opinion thereon, and

we do nol provide a separate opinion on these mallers.
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Key Audit Matters

Investment Decisions by the Fund Manager
- The mutual fund manager makes investiments
on behalf of unitholders. The investment
decisions as such shape a material portion of
the scheme.

Fees Payable to Supervisor, Manager and
Depository

- The material expenses for a mutual fund in
Nepal largely relate to the fees payable lo the

Independent Auditor's Report
NIBL Growth Fund

How the scope of our audit responded to
the Key Audit Matter

Our procedures included but were nol limited
o

- Evaluate the results and returns from the
investments on an average.

- On a sample basis, evaluate the
performance of the investments in
comparisoen lo markel returns.

Qur procedures included bul were not limited
tor

- Review of the approved rates for the fees.

= Evaluate the periodic gross net assels

2080-81

supervisors, manager and depository.

- Rule 23 of the Mutual Fund Regulations,
2087 (4th Amendment) issued by SEBON
specifies the maximum limit of the fees so
payable by a mutual fund scheme.

values factored o calculate the fees payable.

D. Other Information

6. The directors are responsible for the other information presented in the Mutual Fund's annual
reporl. Our opinion on the financial statements does nol cover the other information and
accordingly we do nol express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. We have nothing to
report in this respect.

E. Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

7. Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS), and for such internal control
as management delermines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

8. In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Mutual
Fund's ability lo continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Mutual Fund or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative butl to do so.

9, Those charged wilh governance are responsible for overseeing the Mutual Fund's financial
reporling process.

F. Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee thal an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material

M.B. Shrestha & Co. e o
Chartered Accountants T
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Independent Auditor's Report
NIBL Growth Fund
2080-81
misstatement when it exists. Misstalements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected lo influence the
economic decision of users taken on the basis of these financial stalements.
11. As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1%.4 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Evaluate appropriateness of
accounting policies used and reasonableness of accounling estimates and related
disclosures made by the management.

11,2 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to
conlinue as a going concern. Il we conclude thal a malerial uncertainly exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up-lo the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Mutual Fund to cease lo conlinue as a going
concern,

113 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

12, We communicated with those charged with governance regarding, among other matlers, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

13. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear our independence and
where applicable, related safequards.

14, From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matlers
that were of most significant in the audit of the financial statement of the current period and
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances.
we determine that a matier should not be communicated in our report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would reasonable be expecled to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication,

M.B. Shrestha & Co. o2 e
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Independent Auditor's Report
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2080-81
G. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
15. On examination of the financial statements as aforesaid, we report that:

151 We have obtained all information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit as per NSA.

15.2  The statement of financial position as at 31 Ashadh 2081 (15 July 2024} , the slatement of
profit or loss, other comprehensive income, statement of changes in Unit Holders fund and
statement of Cash flow for the year then ended on that date, and the attached summary of
significant  accounting policies and notes to accounts dealt and other explanatory
information (thereafter referred to as "the financial statements”) dealt with by this report are
prepared in accordance with Securities Act 2083, Security Board Regulation 2064, Mutual
Fund Regulations 2067 and Mutual Fund Guidelines 2069 and other prevailing legisiations.

15.3 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Mutual
Fund, in so far as appears from our examination of those books of account and the financial
statements dealt with by this report, are in agreement with the books of accounts.

15.4  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us and from our examination of the books of account of the Mutual Fund, we have not come
across the cases where the Board of Direclors or the representative or any employee of
the Mutual Fund has acted deliberately contrary to the provisions of the law relating to
asccounts or caused loss or damage to the Mutual Fund nor have, we been informed of any
such case by the management.

For and on behalf of,
M.B. Shrestha & Co.
Chartered Accountants i ™"—

&d
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i
CA. MahesWarendra Bdr. Shrestha
Proprietor
UDIN; 240909CAD0117jg5ve
M.B. Shrestha & Co. 4714
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NIBL Growth Fund

(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIMB Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July, 2024)

In NPR

Particulars Notes to 31 Ashad 2081 31 Ashad 2080

Account
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.2 237,867,591 375,919,325
Other Current Assets 4.6 39,832,015 19,355,727
Financial Assets Held at Amortized Cost 13 221,304,000 266,304,000
Financial Assets Held at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 4.7 929,576,358 697,711,242
Total 1,428,579,964 1,359,290,294
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accrued Expenses & Other Payables 5.2 24,523,315 7,645,554
Liabilities (Excluding Net Assets Attributable to 24,523,315 7,645,554
Unitholders)
Unit Holder's Funds
Net Assets Attributable to Unit Holders 6 1,404,056,649 1,351,644,740

Total

1,428,579,964

1,359,290,294

NAV per Unit

10.64

10.24

Schedules and Explanatory Notes forms integral part of Statement of Position

On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Fund Management Company)

Sachin Tibrewal
Chairman

Srijana Pandey
Director

Shivanth Bahadur Pandé
Chief Executive Officer

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai
Director

Shulav Shrestha
Head-Investment Banking

Date
Place

: 5th September, 2024
: Kathmandu

Rabindra Bhattarai
Director

Sachindra Dhungana

GM

As per our report of even date,

Proprietor
M.B. Shrestha & Co.,
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Maheswarendra Bahadur Shrestha, FCA
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NIBL Growth Fund

(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIMB Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Period from 1st Shrawan 2080 to 31 Ashad 2081 (17th July 2023 to 15th July 2024)

In NPR

Particulars Notes to Account 31 Ashad 2081 31 Ashad 2080
Income
Interest Income 7.2 41,436,030 27,081,609
Dividend Income 7.3 3,402,657 14,316
Underwriting Income 1,019,499
Net Profit/(Loss) on Financial Assets Held at Fair Value 14b 31,517,248 26,972,026
through Profit and Loss
Total 77,375,434 54,067,951
Expenses and Losses
Fund Management fees 8 20,037,817 9,761,887
Depositary Fees 8 2,671,709 1,301,585
Fund Supervisors Fees 8 1,603,025 780,951
Publication Expenses 150,764 67,121
Listing Fees 50,000 50,000
Audit Fees 113,000 113,000
Bank Charges 4,433 3,510
Annual Service Charges on Software 135,600 41,433
Pre-operating Expenses 10,133,724
CDS Dematerialisation Registration Fee 170,000 170,000
Book Building Registration Expense-SEBON 10,000 -
Other Expenses 16,977 -
DP Expense 200 -
Total expenses 24,963,525 22,423,211
Net Gains/(Losses) for the Period 52,411,909 31,644,740
Other Comprehensive income - -
Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the period 52,411,909 31,644,740

On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited

(Fund Management Company)

As per our report of even date,

Sachin Tibrewal Srijana Pandey Rabindra Bhattarai Maheswarendra Bahadur Shrestha, FCA

Chairman Director Director Proprietor

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai Shivanth Bahadur Pandé Sachindra Dhungana M.B. Shrestha & Co.,

Director Chief Executive Officer GM Chartered Accountants

Shulav Shrestha
Head-Investment Banking

Date :5th September, 2024
Place : Kathmandu

.............................
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NIBL Growth Fund

(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIMB Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Period from 1st Shrawan 2080 to 31 Ashad 2081 (17th July 2023 to 15th July 2024)

In NPR
Particulars 31 Ashad 2081 31 Ashad 2080
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year 52,411,909 31,644,740
Adjustments For :
Increase/Decrease in Unrealised (gain)/loss on financial assets held for 18,057,271 (2,414,160)
trading purposes
Increase/(Decrease) in Liabilities 16,877,760 7,645,554
(Increase)/Decrease in Share (249,922,387) (695,297,082)
(Increase)/Decrease in Debenture (5,000,000) (68,304,000)
(Increase)/Decrease in Fixed Deposit 50,000,000 (198,000,000)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets (20,476,287) (19,355,727)
Net Cash Generated /(used) in Operations (1) (138,051,734) (944,080,675)
B. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Issue of Unit Capital - -
Dividend Paid during the year = -
Net Cash Generated / (used) in financing (2) > -
C. Cash Flow from Investing Activities = -
Net cash generated/(used) in investing (3) - -
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1+2+3) (138,051,734) (944,080,675)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the year/period 375,919,325 -
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of period 237,867,591 (944,080,675)
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balance with Banks 237,867,591 375,919,325

On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Fund Management Company)

As per our report of even date,

Sachin Tibrewal
Chairman

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai
Director

Shulav Shrestha
Head-Investment Banking

Date :5th September, 2024

Place :Kathmandu

Srijana Pandey
Director

Shivanth Bahadur Pandé
Chief Executive Officer

Rabindra Bhattarai
Director

Sachindra Dhungana
GM

Maheswarendra Bahadur Shrestha, FCA
Proprietor

M.B. Shrestha & Co.,

Chartered Accountants
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NIBL Growth Fund

(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIMB Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement in Changes in Unit holders' Fund
For the Period from 1st Shrawan 2080 to 31 Ashad 2081 (17th July 2023 to 15th July 2024)

In NPR

Particulars

Unit Capital

Realized Profit

Unrealized Profit

Total

Opening Balance

Issue of Unit Capital

1,320,000,000

1,320,000,000

Net Profit (Loss) Upto Last Year -

Net Profit (Loss) During the year - 29,230,580 2,414,160 31,644,740
Dividend Paid - -
Balance as on 31/03/2080 1,320,000,000 29,230,580 2,414,160 1,351,644,740
Opening Balance 1,320,000,000 - - 1,320,000,000
Issue of Unit Capital - - - -
Net Profit (Loss) Upto Last Year - 29,230,580 2,414,160 31,644,740
Net Profit (Loss) During the year = 70,469,180 (18,057,271) 52,411,909
Dividend Paid e = - -
Balance as on 31/03/2081 1,320,000,000 99,699,760 (15,643,111) 1,404,056,649

On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Fund Management Company)

As per our report of even date,

Sachin Tibrewal Maheswarendra Bahadur Shrestha, FCA

Srijana Pandey Rabindra Bhattarai

Chairman Director Director Proprietor
Ananda Kumar Bhattarai Shivanth Bahadur Pandé Sachindra Dhungana EA'B' Shrestha & Co.,
Director Chief Executive Officer GM hartered Accountants

Shulav Shrestha
Head-Investment Banking

Date :5th September, 2024
Place :Kathmandu

‘ NIMB ACE
CAPITAL LIMITED
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NIBL Stable Fund

NIBL Stable Fund (the Scheme), under NIBL Mutual Fund (the Fund), is a closed-end, diversified investment scheme
registered under the Mutual Fund Regulations, 2067. The Fund’s objective is to generate moderate, steady returns while
minimizing high risks, with a focus on the growth of the investment. This is achieved by investing in various financial
instruments, concentrating on selected sectors and instruments, as permitted by the prevailing rules and regulations
governing mutual funds.

The Scheme commenced operations on 28th Magh, 2080 B.S. (Scheme allotment date) and has a maturity period of 12
years, concluding on 27th Magh, 2092 B.S. It was listed on NEPSE on 17th Jestha, 2081 B.S. The Scheme's Financial
Statements for the fiscal year 2080/81 were approved by the Board of Directors of NIMB Ace Capital Ltd. (formerly
NIBL Ace Capital Ltd.) on 20th Bhadra, 2081, in its role as the Fund Management and Depository Company. The Fund
Supervisors’ consent for the approved Financial Statements has also been duly obtained.

Fund NIBL Mutual Fund
Scheme NIBL Stable Fund
Fund Sponsor Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited (NIMB)

(Then Nepal Investment Bank Ltd.)
(Licensed by NRB as Class A bank)

Fund Management NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Then NIBL Ace Capital Ltd.)
(A subsidiary of Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited)

Fund Supervisors Dr. Bimal Prasad Koirala
Dr. Shambhu Ram Simkhada
Dr. Durgesh Man Singh
CA. Jitendra Bahadur Rajbhandari

Mr. Raju Nepal
Total Units of Scheme 113,000,000 (One Hundred Thirteen Million Units)
Total Unit Capital NPR 1,130,000,000 (One Billion Thirteen Hundred Million)
Scheme type Close-ended
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M.B. SHRESTHA & CO. FaxNo. :O77-1.4791759

Chartered Accountints E-mail  : mbsshresthai@ gmail.com
. G.P.O. Box: 720

Sankhamul Road K sthmandu. Nepal

New Baneshwar AR el

09 September 2024

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE UNIT HOLDERS OF NIBL STABLE FUND

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

A. Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NIBL Stable Fund (“the Multual Fund")
which comprise the statemeni of financial position as at 31 Ashadh 2081 (corresponding to 15 July
2024), the statement of profit or loss. the statement of other comprehensive income, the statement
of changes in unit holders fund and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our epinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
financial statements referred to above, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Mulual Fund as of 31 Ashadh 2081 (15 July 2024), and its performances, changes in Unit
Holders Fund and its cash flows for the year ended on that date in conformity with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS) and comply with Securities Act 2063, Securily Board Regulation
2064, Mutual Fund Regulations 2067 and Mutual Fund Guidelines 2069 and other prevailing
legislations.

B. Basis for Opinion

a

We conducled our audil in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Qur
responsibilities under those slandards are furlher described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Stalements section of our report. We are independent of the Mutual Fund in
accordance with the Handbook of The Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the
Institute of Charlered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of The Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.
We believe thal the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis
for our opinion.

C. Key Audit Matters

5.

Key audit matters are those malters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audil of the financial stalements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.




Key Audit Matters

Investment Decisions by the Fund Manager
- The mutual fund manager makes investments
on behall of unitholders. The investment
decisions as such shape a malerial portion of
the scheme.

Fees Payable to Supervisor, Manager and
Depository

- The material expenses for a mutual fund in
Nepal largely relate to the fees payable to the

Independent Auditor's Report
NIBL Stable Fund

How the scope of our audit responded to
the Key Audit Matter

Qur procedures included but were not limited
lo:

- Evaluate the results and returns from the
investmants on an average.

- On a sample basis, evaluale the
performance of the investments in
comparison io market returns.

Our procedures included but were not limited
to:

- Review of the approved rates for the fees.

- Evaluate the periodic gross net assats

2080-81

supervisors, manager and depository.

- Rule 23 of the Mutual Fund Regulations,
2067 (4th Amendment) issued by SEBON
specifies the maximum limit of the fees so
payable by a mutual fund scheme.

values {aclored lo calculate the fees payable.

D. Other Information

6. The directors are responsible for the other information presented in the Mutual Fund's annual
report. Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and
accordingly we do nol express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. We have nothing to
report in this respect.

E. Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

7. Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS), and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

8. In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Mutual
Fund's ability lo continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related Lo going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends o
liquidate the Mutual Fund or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

9. Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Mutual Fund's financial
reporting process.

F. Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

10. Our objeclives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from malerial misstatement, whather due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with

As will always detecl a malerial

M.B. Shrestha & Co. i f g
Charlered Accountants
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2080-81
misstatemenl when il exisls. Misstaiements can arise from fraud or error and are considersd
material if, individually or in aggregale, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decision of users taken on the basis of these financial stalements.
11. As parl of an audil in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

111 Identify and assess the risks of material misstalement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate lo provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral, Evaluate appropriateness of
accounting policies used and reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the management.

11.2  Conclude on the appropriateness of managemenl's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the relaled disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit avidence obtained up-to the date of our auditor's report. However,
fulure events or conditions may cause the Mutual Fund to cease lo continue as a going
concern.

11.3  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

12. We communicaled with those charged with governance regarding, among other matlers, the
planned scope and liming of the audit and significant audil findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

13. We also provide those charged with governance with a statemen! thal we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicale with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear our independence and
where applicable. related safeguards.

14. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance. we determine those mallers
that were of most significant in the audit of the financial statement of the current period and
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonable be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

M.B. Shrestha & Co.
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G. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
15. On examination of the financial statements as aforesaid, we report that:

151 We have obtained all information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and
beliel were necessary for the purpose of our audit as par NSA.

16.2  The statement of financial position as at 31 Ashadh 2081 (15 July 2024) . the statement of
profit or loss, other comprehensive income, statement of changes in Unit Holders fund and
statement of Cash flow for the year then ended on that date, and the attached summary of
significant  accounting policies and notes to accounts dealt and other explanatory
information (thereafter referred to as "the financial statements”) dealt with by this report are
prepared in accordance with Securities Act 2083, Security Board Regulation 2084, Mutual
Fund Regulations 2067 and Mutual Fund Guidelines 2089 and other prevailing legislations.

1583  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Mutual
Fund, in so far as appears from our examination of those books of account and the financial
stalements dealt with by this report, are in agreement with the books of accounts.

154  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us and from our examination of the books of account of the Mutual Fund, we have not come
across the cases where the Board of Directors or the representative or any employes of
the Mutual Fund has acled deliberately contrary to the provisions of the law relating to
accounts or caused loss or damage to the Mutual Fund nor have, we been informed of any
such case by the managemeant.

For and on behalf of,
M.B. Shrestha & Co.
Chartered Accountants -

Ligih

= e

CA. Maheswarendra Bdr. Shrestha
Proprietor
UDIN: 240908CA00117xABcG

M.B. Shrestha & Co.
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NIBL Stable Fund

(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIMB Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July, 2024)

In NPR
Particulars Notes to 31 Ashad 2081 31 Ashad 2080
Account
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.2 703,185,028 -
Other Current Assets 4.6 11,134,992 -
Financial Assets Held at Amortized Cost 13 169,500,000 -
Financial Assets Held at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 4.7 275,395,759 -
Total 1,159,215,779 -
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accrued Expenses & Other Payables 5.2 17,336,392 -
Liabilities (Excluding Net Assets Attributable to 17,336,392 -
Unitholders)
Unit Holder's Funds
Net Assets Attributable to Unit Holders 6 1,141,879,387 -
Total 1,159,215,779 -
NAV per Unit 10.11 -
Schedules and Explanatory Notes forms integral part of Statement of Position
On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Fund Management Company)
As per our report of even date,
Sachin Tibrewal Srijana Pandey Rabindra Bhattarai Maheswarendra Bahadur Shrestha, FCA
Chairman Director Director Proprietor
Ananda Kumar Bhattarai Shivanth Bahadur Pandé Sachindra Dhungana M. B. Shrestha & Co.

Director Chief Executive Officer GM Chartered Accountants

Shulav Shrestha
Head-Investment Banking

Date :5th September, 2024
Place :Kathmandu
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NIBL Stable Fund

(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIMB Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Period from 28th Magh 2080 to 31st Ashad 2081 (11th February 2024 to 15th July 2024)

In NPR

Particulars Notes to Account 31 Ashad 2081 31 Ashad 2080
Income
Interest Income 7.2 10,165,360 -
Dividend Income 7.3 186,513 -
Dividend Income 7.4 538,359 -
Net Profit/(Loss) on Financial Assets Held at Fair Value 14b 17,305,257 -
through Profit and Loss
Total 28,195,489 -
Expenses and Losses
Fund Management fees 8 7,455,338 -
Depositary Fees 8 994,045 -
Fund Supervisors Fees 8 596,427 -
Publication Expenses 61,924 -
Listing Fees 50,000 -
Audit Fees 113,000 -
Bank Charges 821 -
DP Charges 50 -
Annual Service Charges on Software 90,400 -
Pre-operating Expenses 6,784,097 -
CDS Dematerialisation Registration Fee 170,000 -
Total expenses 16,316,102 -
Net Gains/(Losses) for the Period 11,879,387 -
Other Comprehensive income c -
Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the period 11,879,387 -

On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited

(Fund Management Company)

As per our report of even date,

Sachin Tibrewal Srijana Pandey Rabindra Bhattarai Maheswarendra Bahadur Shrestha, FCA

Chairman Director Director Proprietor

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai Shivanth Bahadur Pandé Sachindra Dhungana M. B. Shrestha & Co.

Director Chief Executive Officer GM Chartered Accountants

Shulav Shrestha
Head-Investment Banking

Date :5th September, 2024
Place :Kathmandu

.............................
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NIBL Stable Fund

(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIMB Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Period from 28th Magh 2080 to 31st Ashad 2081 (11th February 2024 to 15th July 2024)

In NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year 11,879,387 -
Adjustments For :
Increase/Decrease in Unrealised (gain)/loss on financial assets held for (9,042,013) -
trading purposes
Increase/(Decrease) in Liabilities 17,336,392 -
(Increase)/Decrease in Share (266,353,746) -
(Increase)/Decrease in Debenture s -
(Increase)/Decrease in Fixed Deposit (169,500,000) -
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets (11,134,992) -
Net Cash Generated /(used) in Operations (1) (426,814,972) -
B. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Issue of Unit Capital 1,130,000,000 -
Dividend Paid during the year - -
Net Cash Generated / (used) in financing (2) 1,130,000,000 -
C. Cash Flow from Investing Activities - -
Net cash generated/(used) in investing (3) - -
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1+2+3) 703,185,028 -
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the year/period - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of period 703,185,028 -
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balance with Banks 703,185,028 -

On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited

(Fund Management Company)

As per our report of even date,

Sachin Tibrewal Srijana Pandey Rabindra Bhattarai Maheswarendra Bahadur Shrestha, FCA

Chairman Director Director Proprietor

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai Shivanth Bahadur Pandé Sachindra Dhungana M. B. Shrestha & Co.

Director Chief Executive Officer GM Chartered Accountants

Shulav Shrestha
Head-Investment Banking

Date :5th September, 2024
Place :Kathmandu
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NIBL Stable Fund

(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIMB Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement in Changes in Unit holders' Fund
For the Period from 28th Magh 2080 to 31st Ashad 2081 (11th February 2024 to 15th July 2024)

In NPR

Particulars Unit Capital Realized Profit Unrealized Profit Total
Opening Balance - - - -
Issue of Unit Capital 1,130,000,000 - - 1,130,000,000
Net Profit (Loss) Upto Last Year - - - -
Net Profit (Loss) During the year - 2,837,374 9,042,013 11,879,387
Dividend Paid - - - -
Balance as on 31/03/2081 1,130,000,000 2,837,374 9,042,013 1,141,879,387

On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited

(Fund Management Company)

As per our report of even date,

Sachin Tibrewal Srijana Pandey Rabindra Bhattarai Maheswarendra Bahadur Shrestha, FCA

Chairman Director Director Proprietor

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai Shivanth Bahadur Pandé Sachindra Dhungana M. B. Shrestha & Co.

Director Chief Executive Officer GM Chartered Accountants

Shulav Shrestha
Head-Investment Banking

Date :5th September, 2024
Place :Kathmandu
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Mega Mutual Fund-1

Mega Mutual Fund-1 (the Scheme) under Mega Mutual Fund (the Fund) is registered under Mutual Fund Regulations,
2067 as a closed-end, growth investment scheme. The objective of the Fund is long term capital appreciation investing
predominantly in equity and equity related instruments and partly in fixed income securities. The Scheme commenced its
operation on 23 Bhadra, 2078 B.S. (Scheme allotment date) with maturity period of 10 years (i.e., 22 Bhadra 2088 B.S.).
It was listed in NEPSE on 28th Kartik, 2078. The Scheme’s Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors
of the NIMB Ace Capital Ltd. (Then Mega Capital Markets Ltd.) on 20th Bhadra 2081 being the Fund Management and
Depository Company. Similarly, the Fund Supervisors’ consent on the approved Financial Statements has also been
obtained.

Fund Mega Mutual Fund
Scheme Mega Mutual Fund-1
Fund Sponsor Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited (NIMB)

(Then Mega Bank Nepal Ltd.)
(Licensed by NRB as Class 'A' Bank)

Fund Management NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Then Mega Capital Markets Ltd.)
(A subsidiary of Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd.)

Fund Supervisors Prof. Dr. Bishwambhar Pyakurel
Prof. Dr. Bharat Bahadur Karki
Dr. Yuba Raj Pandey

Total Units of Scheme 125,000,000 (One Hundred Twenty-Five Million units)
Total Unit Capital NPR. 1,250,000,000 (One Billion Two Hundred Fifty Million)
Scheme type Close-ended
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Z2nd Floor, House No. 2979/33 Tel.: 977-1-4720983
S.R. PANDEY & Co. Nabil Galli, Maharajgunj Fax; 977-1-4720983
Chartered Accountants P. O. Box No. 2343 e-mail: info@srp.com.np
Kalhmandu, Nepal

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO
THE FUND MANAGER AND UNIT HOLDERS OF MEGA MUTUAL FUND-1

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mega Mutual Fund - | (“the Scheme"),
which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31, 2081, (July 15, 2024), the
Statement of Profit or Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Change in Unit
Holders' Fund and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended on that date, and a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereafter referred to as “the
financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid the financial statements presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Scheme, as at Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024), and its financial performance, changes in Unit
Holders' Fund, cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information, in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS)
and other prevailing laws.

Basis for Opinion

\We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing
(NSAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Audilor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Scheme in accordance with the Handbook of The Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of The Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of the audit of financial statement as a whole, and in forming the auditor opinion thereon, and
the auditor does not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no any key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Scheme's Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information, The other
information comprises the information included in the Management report, Report of the Board of
Directors and Chairman's statement but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based an the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard,
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Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial Statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as managament
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud and error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Scheme's ability
to continua as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Scheme or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors / Scheme managers are responsible for overseeing the Scheme's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whale
are free from malerial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in
accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are caonsidered material if, individually or in the agagregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statemants.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professicnal skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive o those risks, and oblain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk af not
detecting a2 material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

= Obiain an understanding of infernal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Scheme's internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasenableness of accounting
astimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audt evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
avents or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Scheme's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required io draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosuras in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequeate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
avidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Scheme to cease to continue as a going concern.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among cther matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based cn our examination, we would like to further report that:

i The Financial Statement dealt by this report are prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS); Securities Act, 2063; Securities Board Regulations, 2084, Mutual
Fund Regulations, 2067; Mutual Fund Guidelines, 2089 and other prevailing laws and are in
agreement with the books of account maintained by the Scheme.

il.  During our examination of the books of account of the Scheme, we have not come across the

cases where any office holder or any employee of the Scheme has acted contrary to the
provisions of law or caused loss or damage to the Scheme.

ii. The Fund manager has maintained the required internal control system.

iv. We have not come across any cases where the Scheme has conducted any activities against
the interest of unit holders and the capital market.

v.  The Scheme has an effective internal audit system.

vi. The Scheme has invested its funds according to Mutual Fund Regulations 2067

vii. The operations of the Scheme were found satisfactory

vii. Contrary to Clause 6(1) of Mutual Fund Regulation 2087, the fund only had three fund
supervisors for the pariod from 19" December, 2023 till 15™ July, 2024.

For, 5. R. Pandey & Ca.
Chartered Accountants

2N y 7
Nl /] St
v L

Place: Kathmandu “ann S T e
Date: 5" September, 2024 Rajesh Poudel, FCA
UDIN: 240006CA00081vETaQ Partrar
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Mega Mutual Fund-1

(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIMB Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July, 2024)

In NPR

Particulars Notes to 31 Ashad 2081 31 Ashad 2080

Account
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.2 66,248,250 121,073,034
Other Current Assets 4.6 860,202 328,993
Financial Assets Held at Amortized Cost 4.7 108,858,000 108,915,250
Financial Assets Held at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 4.8 990,226,490 888,379,475
Total 1,166,192,942 1,118,696,752
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accrued Expenses & Other Payables 5.2 6,647,901 5,198,206
Liabilities (Excluding Net Assets Attributable to 6,647,901 5,193,206
Unitholders)
Unit Holder's Funds
Net Assets Attributable to Unit Holders 6 1,159,545,041 1,113,503,546
Total 1,166,192,942 1,118,696,752
NAV per Unit 9.28 8.91

Schedules and Explanatory Notes forms integral part of Statement of Position

On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Fund Management Company)

As per our report of even date,

Sachin Tibrewal Srijana Pandey Rabindra Bhattarai Rajesh Poudel, FCA
Chairman Director Director Partner

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai Shivanth Bahadur Pandé Sachindra Dhungana S'hR' Panthay &Co,,
Director Chief Executive Officer GM Chartered Accountants

Shulav Shrestha
Head-Investment Banking

Date :5th September, 2024
Place :Kathmandu

.............................
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Mega Mutual Fund-1

(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIMB Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Period from 1st Shrawan 2080 to 31st Ashad 2081 (17th July 2023 to 15th July 2024)

In NPR
Particulars Notes to Account 31 Ashad 2081 31 Ashad 2080
Income
Interest Income 7.2 12,827,550 12,417,681
Dividend Income 7.3 11,229,267 19,133,025
Net Profit/(Loss) on Financial Assets Held at Fair Value 13b 41,968,800 21,083,341
through Profit and Loss
Total 66,025,617 52,634,047
Expenses and Losses
Fund Management Fees 16,351,563 15,669,027
Depositary Fees 2,180,208 2,089,204
Fund Supervisors Fees 824,213 1,044,602
Publication Expenses 156,820 175,262
Listing Fees 50,000 50,000
Audit Fees 113,000 113,000
Bank Charges 2,268 5177
Book Building Registration & AMC Expenses- NEPSE - 10,000
DP Expenses = 250
Software Charges 135,600 -
Other Expenses 450 6,113
CDS Dematerialisation Registration Fee 170,000 170,000
Total expenses 19,984,122 19,332,635
Net Gains/(Losses) for the Period 46,041,495 33,301,412
Other Comprehensive income c -
Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the period 46,041,495 33,301,412

On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Fund Management Company)

Sachin Tibrewal
Chairman

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai
Director

Shulav Shrestha
Head-Investment Banking

Date :5th September, 2024
Place :Kathmandu

Srijana Pandey
Director

Shivanth Bahadur Pandé
Chief Executive Officer

Rabindra Bhattarai
Director

Sachindra Dhungana

GM

As per our report of even date,

Rajesh Poudel, FCA
Partner

S. R. Pandey & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

NIMB ACE
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Mega Mutual Fund-1

(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIMB Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Period from 1st Shrawan 2080 to 31st Ashad 2081 (17th July 2023 to 15th July 2024)

In NPR

Particulars

31 Ashad 2081

31 Ashad 2080

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year 46,041,495 33,301,412
Adjustments For :

Increase/Decrease in Unrealised (gain)/loss on financial assets held for (6,735,242) 39,609,123
trading purposes

Increase/(Decrease) in Liabilities 1,454,695 (6,862,048)
(Increase)/Decrease in Share (95,054,523) (13,381,039)
(Increase)/Decrease in Debenture - (3,858,000)
(Increase)/Decrease in Fixed Deposit - 25,000,000
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets (531,209) 11,190,041
Net Cash Generated /(used) in Operations (1) (54,824,784) 84,999,489
B. Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Issue of Unit Capital - -
Dividend Paid during the year = -
Net Cash Generated / (used) in financing (2) = -
C. Cash Flow from Investing Activities 3 -
Net cash generated/(used) in investing (3) - -
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1+2+3) (54,824,784) 84,999,489
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the year/period 121,073,034 36,073,545
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of period 66,248,250 121,073,034
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balance with Banks 66,248,250 121,073,034

On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Fund Management Company)

As per our report of even date,

Sachin Tibrewal
Chairman

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai
Director

Shulav Shrestha
Head-Investment Banking

Date :5th September, 2024
Place :Kathmandu
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Srijana Pandey
Director

Shivanth Bahadur Pandé
Chief Executive Officer
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Rabindra Bhattarai
Director

Sachindra Dhungana
GM

Rajesh Poudel, FCA
Partner

S. R. Pandey & Co.,
Chartered Accountants



Mega Mutual Fund-1

(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIMB Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement in Changes in Unit holders' Fund
For the Period from 1st Shrawan 2080 to 31st Ashad 2081 (17th July 2023 to 15th July 2024)

In NPR

Particulars

Unit Capital

Realized Profit

Unrealized Profit

Total

Opening Balance

Issue of Unit Capital

1,250,000,000

1,250,000,000

Net Profit (Loss) Upto Last Year - 7,564,256 (177,362,122) (169,797,866)
Net Profit (Loss) During the year - 72,910,535 (39,609,123) 33,301,412
Dividend Paid - -
Balance as on 31/03/2080 1,250,000,000 80,474,791 (216,971,245) 1,113,503,546
Opening Balance 1,250,000,000 - - 1,250,000,000
Issue of Unit Capital - - - .
Net Profit (Loss) Upto Last Year - 80,474,791 (216,971,245) (136,496,454)
Net Profit (Loss) During the year - 39,306,253 6,735,242 46,041,495
Dividend Paid - - - -
Balance as on 31/03/2081 1,250,000,000 119,781,044 (210,236,003) 1,159,545,041

On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Fund Management Company)

As per our report of even date,

Sachin Tibrewal Srijana Pandey Rabindra Bhattarai Rajesh Poudel, FCA
Chairman Director Director Partner

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai Shivanth Bahadur Pandé Sachindra Dhungana S'hR' Pand;:;y &Co,
Director Chief Executive Officer GM Chartered Accountants

Shulav Shrestha
Head-Investment Banking

Date :5th September, 2024
Place :Kathmandu

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn

12* Annual Report 2023/2024 ‘ yAIPMA?Lﬁ‘Aﬁ:EE 109




aurerd afgen
OPEN ENDED
MUTUAL FUND

NIBL SAHABHAGITA FUND

(As Par Mutual Fund Regulations, 2067)

SAIDT dATL 3 A

3MBo! TATA Aol JUST AT Uej,
SIAIAT oMl ANSToll e I I |

SIP aioids NIMB JgADTAT Bosal ciomoit

\u‘q',.l\l.l'.’\r\l]ll)
c!t - warog e

NIMB ACE

-l
\mann s samang -
Syamr L
LTI

ASooT RAAWAED:

# JAUAD URS T JSToET AU JoNGRA A5Toll  #p SIS SIONGN, SIGIATT AT SrefapIcilor claT
# FETIIHS JdaTeaT A UGS AU JTef JBET @ FLSAA B. 9000 WY RATAA ST

+977-01-4525280, +977-01-4005080 N I B AC E
info@nimbacecapital.com CApllvTIAL EPpind= —

: Managing Shares. Managing | subsidiary of
www.nimbacecapital.com

satior

NIMB

Sl SEdfEcAIUE #0 A 6.
NEPAL INVESTMENT MEGA BANK D




NIBL Equity Partners ("Fund")

NIBL Equity Partners, a private equity fund operating under the approval of the Specialized Investment Fund (SIF)
Regulations 2075. The registered size of the Fund is NPR 10 bn with a tenure of 15 years. It is also regulated by the
NIBL Equity Partner Constitution of 2080, Specialized Investment Fund Regulation 2075, Investment Policy and Investor
Agreements, it is proudly managed by NIMB Ace Capital Limited, with Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited as the anchor
investor.

NIBL Equity Partners is dedicated to driving sustainable growth and creating lasting value for its investors and portfolio
companies. As a leading private equity fund backed by an experienced investment ecosystem, it specializes in identifying
and nurturing investment opportunities across various sectors to deliver superior returns. It aims to cultivate a better future
and prioritize investments in sustainable agriculture and food production, integrating ESG factors into its decision-making
process. Additionally, it proactively supports women-led businesses and capacity building initiatives, empowering women
entrepreneurs to thrive in the business landscape and contribute to Nepal’s sustainable development.

The company provides a compelling proposition for investors seeking strategic partnerships. Combining its investment
ecosystem and industry expertise, partnership-driven approach, and commitment to excellence it delivers value and
success, making it the preferred choice for investors and entrepreneurs alike.
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:II; ]OSH’ & BHA NDARY = Chartered Accountants = G.P.O. Box: 3423

Kosi Compound, Dillibazar
Kathmandu, Nepal

Tel: 977-1-4419364

Tel: 977-1-4423550

Fax: 977-1-4413038

Web: www.jb.com.np

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NIBL Equity Partners
KATHMANDU, NEPAL.

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of NIBL Equity Partners. (‘Fund’) which comprise the Statement
of Financial Position as at Asad 31, 2081 (corresponding to July 15, 2024), the Statement of Profit and Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flow for
the year then, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Medicare Hospital Limited. as at Asad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024) and its financial performance,
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended in accordance
with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We have conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the Institute of
Chartered Accountant of Nepal's code of ethics for professional accountants (ICAN Code) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal and we have fulfilled
our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and ICAN Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 6 of Financial statements where Net Assets Attributable to Unit Holders (NAV)
has been calculated on the basis of provisional financial statements of investee companies. The provisional
financials are subject to adjustment, and the reported Net Asset Value (NAV) may vary once audited
financials are finalized. Our opinion is not modify in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matter/s

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditor's professional judgment, were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements for the audit period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to
communicate in our report.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Fund's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

B Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the
effectiveness of the Fund's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.
. Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related fo events or conditions that may cause significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosure in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safequards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As per requirement of Specialized Investment Fund Rules 2075, we further report that:

e Books of accounts have been kept in accordance with the prevailing cats, rules and standards
related to accounts

+ Fund manager has performed the works as per the constitution of fund and investment
agreement

« Investment has been made in accordance with Specialized Investment Fund Rules and
investment procedures of fund

« To the best of our information and according to explanations given to us and so far, appeared
from our examination of the books of account of the Fund, we have not come across cases
where Fund manager or any employees of the Fund have acted contrary to the provisions of law
or committed any misappropriation relating to the accounts or caused loss or damage to the Fund
or acted in a manner to jeopardize the interest and security of the Fund.

Gyanendra Su
Partner

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 29 Kartik, 2081(14 Nov,2024)
UDIN: 241129CA00482NEys9



NIBL Equity Partners

Statement of Financial Position
As of 31 Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

Amount in NRs.

Particulars Notes 31 Ashad 2081
Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.2 6,758,286
Other Current Assets 4.6 293,300
Deferred Tax Assets 10.2 -
Financial Assets Held at Amortized Cost 4.2 =
Financial Assets Held at Fair Value Through OCI 4.7 566,896,240
Total 573,947,826
Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accrued Expenses & Other Payables 5.2 6,084,576
Deferred Tax Liability 10.2 715,813
Liabilities (Excluding Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders) 6,800,388
Unit Holder's Funds

Net Assets Attributable to Unit Holders 6 567,147,438
Total 573,947,826
NAV per Unit 1,003.80

Significant Accounting Policy Notes to the financial Statement is an Integral part of this Financial Statement

On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Fund Management Company)

Sachin Tibrewal Srijana Pandey
Chairman Director

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai Shivanth Bahadur Pandé
Director Chief Executive Officer

Date :13 November, 2024
Place : Kathmandu

Rabindra Bhattarai
Director

Suvash Thapa
Deputy CEO

As per our report of even date,

Gyanendra Subedi, FCA
Partner
Joshi and Bhandary, CA

Bishal Raj Paudyal
CFO
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NIBL Equity Partners

Statement of Profit or Loss Account and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Period from 11th Bhadra 2080 to 31st Ashad 2081 (28th August 2023 to 15th July 2024)

Amount in NRs.

Particulars Notes As at 15 July 2024
Income
Interest Income 7.2 1,955,336

Dividend Income -

Other Income -

Total 1,955,336
Expenses and Losses

Registration fee 1,050,000
Consultancy fee 1,198,375
Legal cost 372,900
Advertising Cost =
Audit fee costs 169,500
Set up fee 25,000,000
Fund management fee 3,197,551
Total expenses 8 30,988,326
Net Gains/(Losses) for the Period (29,032,990)
Tax Expense( Deferred Tax Assets) 10.2 7,258,247
Net Gains/(Losses) for the Period (21,774,742)
Net Profit/(Loss) on Financial Assets Held at Fair Value through OCI 4.7 31,896,240
Tax Expense on unrealized Gain( Deferred tax liability) 10.2 (7,974,060)
Other Comprehensive income 23,922,180
Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the period 2,147,438

Significant Accounting Policy Notes to the financial Statement is an Integral part of this Financial Statement
On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited

(Fund Management Company)

As per our report of even date,

Sachin Tibrewal Srijana Pandey Rabindra Bhattarai Gyanendra Subedi, FCA
Chairman Director Director Partner
Joshi and Bhandary, CA

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai Shivanth Bahadur Pandé  Suvash Thapa Bishal Raj Paudyal
Director Chief Executive Officer Deputy CEO CFO

Date :13 November, 2024
Place : Kathmandu
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NIBL Equity Partners

Cash Flow Statement

For the Period from 11th Bhadra 2080 to 31st Ashad 2081 (28th August 2023 to 15th July 2024)

Amount in NRs.

Particulars FY 2080/81
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year 2,147,438

Adjustments for:

Increase/Decrease in Unrealised (gain)/loss on financial assets held for trading purposes

(31,896,240)

Adjustment For Deffered tax assets (7,258,247)
Adjustment for Deffered tax liability 7,974,060
Increase/(Decrease) in Liabilities 6,084,576
(Increase)/Decrease in Share -
(Increase)/Decrease in Debenture =
(Increase)/Decrease in Fixed Deposit -
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets (293,300)

Net cash generated/(used) in Operations (1)

(23,241,714)

B. Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Dividend Paid during the year

Unit Holder's Fund 500,000,000
Advance For unit 65,000,000
Net cash generated/(used) in financing (2) 565,000,000
C. Cash Flow from Investing Activities (535,000,000)
Net cash generated/(used) in investing (3) (535,000,000)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1+2+3) 6,758,286
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the year/period -
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of period 6,758,286
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balance with Banks 6,758,286

Significant Accounting Policy Notes to the financial Statement is an Integral part of this Financial Statement

On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Fund Management Company)

Sachin Tibrewal
Chairman Director

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai Shivanth Bahadur Pandé
Director Chief Executive Officer

Date :13 November, 2024
Place : Kathmandu

Srijana Pandey

As per our report of even date,

Rabindra Bhattarai
Director Partner

Gyanendra Subedi, FCA

Joshi and Bhandary, CA

Suvash Thapa
Deputy CEO
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CFO

NIMB ACE
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NIBL Equity Partners

Statement of Change in Unit Holders' Fund

For the Period from 11th Bhadra 2080 to 31st Ashad 2081 (28th August 2023 to 15th July 2024)

Amount in NRs.

Particular FY 2080/81

Unit Holders' Fund at the Beginning of the Year/Period 0
Unit Holder's Fund 500,000,000
Advance For unit 65,000,000

Increase in Net Assets Attributable to Unit Holders:

Net Gains/(Losses) for the Period

(21,774,742)

Other Comprehensive income 23,922,180
Distribution to Unit Holders' -
Unit Holders' Fund at the End of the Year/Period 567,147,438

Significant Accounting Policy Notes to the financial Statement is an Integral part of this Financial Statement

On Behalf of NIMB Ace Capital Limited
(Fund Management Company)

Sachin Tibrewal Srijana Pandey
Chairman Director

Ananda Kumar Bhattarai Shivanth Bahadur Pandé
Director Chief Executive Officer

Date :13 November, 2024
Place : Kathmandu
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Rabindra Bhattarai
Director

Suvash Thapa
Deputy CEO

As per our report of even date,

Gyanendra Subedi, FCA
Partner
Joshi and Bhandary, CA

Bishal Raj Paudyal
CFO
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